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EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff, CASE NO. D-0%9-411537-D
vs. DEPT. L
LYNITA NELSON, (SEALED)

Defendant.
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BEFORE THE HONORABLE FRANK P. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

TRANSCRIPT RE: ALL PENDING MOTIONS

MONDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2013

D-09-411537-D NELSON 10/21/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLG (520) 303-7356
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and that -- that needs to come from Jeffery Burr.
MR. NELSON: And he did approve it.
THE COURT: 2And I think he --

MR. LUSZECK: He did it. And he approved. it. It's

not -- 1it's not what the trustee did. Tt's -- Jeff Burr made

this decision and he made that change.

THE COURT: T think he also testified that he didn't
file under rules and give people 10 day notice when he made
changes in the past.

MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, that -- that's irrelevant
though. But the distribution trustee knew that it was
occurring. The distribution trustee is the only one that
could object to that. She didn't object to it.

THE COURT: Well -- well, you know, this case will
go bnvand on ahd on as far as I'm going to deny the motion.
Noone's asked for my input on this before. 'They move back and
forth with distributidm trustees from back and forth with Mr.
Burr. He was under attack for not following the formalities.
I made it real clear in.my divorce decree that the supreme
court -- depending what they do on that came back to me on a
question for this Court that I would invalidate the trust
because I don't think they've been following the fules or
procedures or doing wily-nilly and why now all of a suddén

they want an order from the court and there's the substituted

D-09-4115637-D NELSON 10/21/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356
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Qas challenged that they didn't.

Basically on one of their challenges to a writ that
the effect that they failed to follow that procedures could be
grounds. But I think I made my divorce decree real quick --
real clear. I think I made a specific finding that in the
event that I felt clearly I could invalidate the trust. That
—- because that gave indication where I was golng in case
supreme ruled otherwise that I would invalidate the trust
based on the formalities, the --. the concerns about the
conflict of interest I felt and a breach of fiduciary duties
that that could invalidate the trust, but I'11l leave thaﬁ to
the supreme court to decide, because my ‘goal was not to
invalidate trust if I didn't have to if I could achieve the
divorce decree.

Based on what I'11 do on that, that we'll protect
everybody from third party c;editors because I could see
lawsuits coming out. So that's protect both sides and I think
that was my finding on that. So to restate, I'm denying the
motion and the countermotion for me to specifically appoint
distribution trustee or to substitute parties,

As far as another issue we have is do you want to
deal with the funding issue as far as the account that was in
issue?. Are you prepared for that issue as far as -~ because

we sald we would do it by phone cbnference. They were

D-089-411537-D NELSON 10/21/2013 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLG (520) 303-7356
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1 ORDR
2
3 EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
4 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
5
6 ERIC L. NELSON
Plaintiff,
7 Case No. D411537
8 * Dept. No. 1X
9 LYNITA SBUE NELSON, Defendant.
10
ORDER DENYING MOTION TO DISQUALIFY JUDGE FRANK P. SULLIVAN
. This Court, having considered all pleadings filed in refation to the Plaintiff’s Motion to
- Disqualify filed December 3, 2013, decides the matter upon the pleadings and without oral
' argument pursuant to EDCR 2.23.
14 Considering the merits of the present Motion, this Court concludes that Plaintiff's Motion
' ,L does not raise sufficient grounds to support disqualification and is denied. Fitst, this Court notes
6 that the Nevada Supreme Court held that “a judge or justice is presumed not to be biased, and the
v burden is on the party asserting the challenge to establish sufficient factyal grounds warranting
8 disqualification.” Hogan v. Warden, Fly State Prison, 112 Nev. 553, 559-60, 916 F.2d 805, 809
9 (1996) citing Goldman v. Brvan, 104 Nev. 644, 649, 764 P.2d 1296, 1299 (1988). Plaintiff has not
20 met this burden. The instant Motion states that Judge Sullivan should be disqualified due to his
- bias against Plaintiff. Plaintiff raises several allegations of judicial bias in support of his Motion: that
i Judge Sullivan penalized Plaintiff for filing a Writ of Prohibition, that his bias against Plaintiff was so
=3 strong that he would not foliow the direction of the Nevada Supreme Court, and that he was so
4 biased against Plairtiff that he refused to correctly apply the law in order to damage Plaintiff. This
%’ ] 22 Court, considering the entiraty of the record, finds that Plaintiff's Motion fails to meet the burden
%” % 27 mandated in Hogan v, Wardaen and orders the Mation DENIED.
A E 28
1
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. Allegations of Bias .

a. Penalization of Plaintiff for Filing Writ of Prohibition

First, Plaintiff's Motion does not allege sufficient proof of Judge Sullivan’s retaliation against
Plaintiff for filing a Writ of Prohibition. Plaintiff states that Judge Sullivan denied several of Plaintif's
requests after the Writ was filed, and that Judge Sullivan’s motivation for doing so was to have an
adverse effact on the Writ. The instant Motion states that, at a hearing held October 21, 2013 on a
Motion to Substitute Parties, Judge Sullivan stated he would deny Plaintiff's Motion to Substitute
and that he was “not sure if [the denial] could impact [Plaintiff's] writ.” Plaintif'a Motion further
states that Judge Sullivan denied the Motion to Substitute Parties because he believed it would
adversely effect the Writ, which at the time was pending before the Nevada Supreme Court, and
that he did not grant the Motion because he was biased against Plaintiff. Besides being speculative
in nature, this allegation does not support a finding of bias on the part of the judge. 1t is well
established that the “[rlulings and actions of a judge during the course of official judicial
proceedings do not establish legally cognizable grounds for disqualification," Matter of Dunleavy,
104 Nev. 784, 789, 769 P.2d 1271, 1274 (1988). As a result, Judge Sullivan’s rulings, even those
aclverse to Plaintiff, are not grounds for disqualification.

Next, to suppott the allegation that Judge Sullivan retaliated against Plaintiff after the filing
of the Writ, Plaintiff states that Judge Sullivan set unreasonable deadlines so that Plaintiff could not
seek relief from the Nevada Supreme Court. Plaintiff alleges that, at a hearing held June 19, 2013
on Defendant’s Motion of Payment, Judge Sullivan ordered funds transferred from Plaintiff's Trust
to Defendant's Trust within thirty days because he believed Plaintiff would file an appeal and
wanted to give Plaintiff enough time to do so. The Judge then “quickly changed course and
demanded that [Plaintiff] turnover said funds. . . more than ten days sooner than required under the
divorce decree.” This allegation that the Judge shortened a deadline is insufficient evidence of bias
or partiality on the part of the Judge, and does not support his disqualification. There is nothing

about the shortened deadline that would prevent Movant from seeking a stay and/or relief before

27 || the Nevada Supreme Court. Again, under Matter of Dunleavy, Judge Sullivan’s rulings are not

28




J ENNIFER TOGLIATTI

P1/18/20814 15:43 6714394 DC 9 PAGE 04/86
1 || grounds for disqualification, and this allegation is insufficient to support disqualification. Id.
2 || b. interpretation of Supreme Court Rulings
3 Second, Plaintiff alleges that Judge Sullivan's bias is apparent because he sought to thwart
4 | the Nevada Supreme Court’s rulings In this matter, as evidenced by his statements that if the
5 || Supreme Court granted Plaintif’'s Writ of Prohibition, he would invalidate Plaintiff's trust. At a
6 || hearing held September 5, 2013, Judge Sullivan stated that “depending on what the Supreme Court
7 || does, you know, | thought my order of decree made it clear that | was inclined to set aside those
8 || spendthrift trusts,” and “depending on what the Supreme Court does, they may remand it back to
9 || me andlmay set aside the trust and we'll go to round twe in the Supreme Court” Plaintiff
10 || contends that these statements show bias toward Plaintiff and the Judge's “pradisposition to do
11 | anything he believes is necessary, even if it means ignoring the direction given hy the Nevada
12 | 3upreme Court and/or Nevada law, to provide an economic windfall to [Defendant).” However,
13 || these statements alone do not show sufficient bias to warrant judicial disqualification, It seems that
14 | Judge Sullivan made these statements to show his confidence in his awn interpretation of the law
15 || concerning setting aside the trust, and noting that his previous decree should be clear in that
16 | regard. Even if his legal position was incorrect, it would not be grounds for disqualification under
17 || Dunleavy. Id.
18 || o Incorrect Application of the Law
19 Finally, Plaintiff's Motion states that Judge Sullivan should be disqualified because he has
20 | repeatediy granted Defendant relief that is improper under the law, To illustrate this, Plaintiff points
21 | tothe Judge's alleged misinterpretation of Aime v. Aime, 106 Nev, 541 (1990). Ata July 22, 2013

22 |l hearing, Judge Sullivan stated that he wished to treat a trust asset as an undisclosed asset, but that
23 he was “not sure” he could do 50 under Aime. Judge Sullivan further addressed his uncertainty of
24 || how the asset should be treated under Aime, and stated “I don’t know if that would hold up, to be

25 || honest, because | haven't researched it.” This allegation is also insufficlent to warrant

g
é % 26 || disqualification. As noted above, Matter of Dunleavy states that a judge’s ruling is not grounds for
§ g 27 || disqualification. Matter of Dunleavy at 789, 1274. Furthermore, in order for a motion to disqualify
&
A 28 || tosucceed, a party must show “sither actual bias against a party or evidence to support a
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reasonable inference of bias.” City of Sparks v. Second Judicial Dist. Court ex rel County of
Washoe, 112 Nev. 952, 920 P.2d 1014 (1998). Here, Judge Sullivan's uncertainty of the

correctness of his rulings does not constitute actual bias or a reasonable inference of bias. As a
result, this allegation is also insufficient to warrant disqualification.
d. Conclusion

Overall, Plaintiff's allegations of bias are insufficient to warrant the disqualification of Judge
8ullivan, Before a judge can be disqualified due to animus towards a party, egregious facts must

be shown. City of Las Vegas Downtown Redevelopment Agency v. Hecht, 113 Ney. 632, 637, 940

P.2d 127, 130 (1997). Further, to support disqualification, a party must show that a judge’s hostility
must be “so extreme as to display clear inability to render fair judgment,” Liteky v. United States,
510 U.5. 540, 114 S, Ct, 1147 (1994). As Plaintiff has not shown any such egregious facts, not has
he shown any extreme hostility on the part of the Judge, the Motion to Disqualify must be denied.
Further, the Motion relies on Judge Sullivan's rulings, which, even if incarrect, are insufficient to
support his disqualification. Additionally, Judge Sullivan swore in his affidavit that he bears no bias
or prejudica for or against any of the parties involved, and that all of his decisions and rulings have
been based on law, not based upon any prejudice or bias
Il. Procedural Issues
a. Lack of Affidavit Required by NRS 1.235

As correctly noted by Defendant in her Opposition filed Dacember 13, 2013, NRS 1.235 (1)
requires that motions to disqualify must be accompanied by an affidavit specifying the facts upon
which disqualification is sought. Plaintiff argued in his Response to Defendant’s Opposition filed
Dacember 24, 2013 that the notion that a motion to disqualify be accompanied by an affidavit is
“absurd and unsupported by law.” However, this is incorrept, and because there was no affidavit
included with the instart Motion, the Motion is procedurally deficient under NRS 1.235 (1),
b. Timeliness

Next, the Motion is untimely, as it was filed after the time periods provided in NRS 1.235 (1).

Plaintiff filed the Motion under the guidelines provided in Towbin Dodge. LLC v. Eighth Judicial Dist.

Gt., 121 Nev. 251 (2008), which are that a party may file a motion to disqualify after the time
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1 || deadline set by 1,235 if new grounds for disqualification are discovered. However, as stated in
2 I Defendant's Opposition, Towbin Dodge states that a party must file their motion to disqualify as
3 || soon as possible after new grounds have been discovered. Id. Here, Plaintiff filed the Motion to
4 || Disqualify between three and six months after the actions of Judge Sullivan took place. Therefora,
5 || the Motion is not timely under Towbin Dodge nor NRS 1.235 (1), ld.
6 || ¢. Defendant’s Countermotion for Attorney's Fees
7 First, this Court notes the authority for its decision on a Motion to Disquaiify is silent as to
8 | the need for a responsive pleading by any party, as well as silent as to the Court’s authority to
9 (| award attorneys fees for the same. NRS 1.235. The Nevada Supreme Court has noted that only
10 | the judge whose bias and prejudice has been questionad “can determine whether he of she has a
11 | personal bias or prejudice toward Iiﬁgants or their counsel.” Millen v. Eighth Judicial District, Ex rel,
12 )| Gounty of Clark, 122 Nev. 1245, 1254, 148 P.3d 694, 700 (2008). As a result, the instant Motion,
13 || which calls into question the bias of Judge Sullivan, cannot necessarily be considered frivolous, as
14 | itseeks an answer that only Judge Sullivan himself could give. While EDCR 7.60 allows for
15 || attorneys fees as a sanction for a frivolous motion, based upon Millen and the unusual nature of
16 | disqualification proceedings and the law in this area, the Court declines to award attorneys fees
17 | under EDCR 7.60 and ORDERS the Countermotion DENIED.
18 T Therefore, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintif'a Motion to Disqualify Judge Sullivan is
19 DENIED, and Defendant's Countermotion for Attorney's Fees is DENIED.
.10
o1 DATED this of January, 2014,
22
23 =
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

. - ————" e e

| hereby certify that on about the date filed, a true copy of the foregoing Order Denying

Metion To Disqualify Judge Frank P, Sullivan (D411537) was served upon the following:

Hon Frank P. Sulfivan
Departrment O

601 N. Pecos Rd.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Fax: 455-1338

RHONDA FORSBERG, EsqQ.
SMITH CHTD

64 N. PECOS RD #700
HENDERSON NV 89074
Fax: 990-6456

ROBERT DICKERSON, ESQ.
DICKERSON LAW GROUP
1745 VILLAGE CENTER CR
LAWS VEGAS, NV 8989134
Fax: 388-0210

MARK A. SOLOMON, EsQ.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER LTD
9060 W. Cheyanne Ave.

lLas Vegas, NV 88129

Fax: 853-5485

JEFFREY LUSZECK, Esq.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER LTD
85080 W. Cheyenne Ava.

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Fax; 853-5485

94 _Lr)\f/ LA

ROSE NAJERA
JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT, DEPARTMENT IX

AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 238B.030
The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding Declsior and Qrder
filsd in District Court case number 090263054~-2 DOES NOT contain tha
social sevurity number of sny person.

Rose N Date 1/10/14
Judicial Exacutive Assistant
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NOTC

Larry L. Bertsch, CPA, CFF

Nicholas S. Miller, CFE

LARRY L. BERTSCH, CPA & ASSOCIATES
265 East Warm Springs Rd., Suite 104

Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Telephone:  (702) 471-7223

Facsimile:  (702) 471-7225

Forensic Accountants

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
- CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Case No. D-09-411637-D
Plaintiff, - Dept. O

V.

NOTICE OF FILING ASSET SCHEDULE
LYNITA SUE NELSON, AND NOTES TO ASSET SCHEDULE

Defendant.

Larry L. Bertsch, CPA, CFF, and Nicholas S. Miller, CFE, of the accounting firm of LARRY
L. BERTSCH, CPA & ASSOCIATES, hereby file as Exhibit “A” their Asset Schedule and Notes to
Asset Schedule pursuant to Judge Sullivan’s Order in this matter,

DATED this J" Zt day of July? 2011,

LARRY L. BERTSCH CPA & ASSOCIATES

/B A , CFF
Nichdlas S. Miller, CFE
265 East Warm Springs Rd., Suite 104
Las Vegas, Nevada 891 19

(702) 471-7223 Telephone .

(702) 471-7225 Facsimile

Farensic Accountants

10015-01/545216




-SR-S B - U ¥ S Vs I S

NN VNS T
NN R RREBRBRES %S w s w =0

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
1 hereby certify that on thei day of July, 2011, I mailed a copy of the Notice of Filing
Asset Schedule and Notes to Asset Schedule to the following at the last known address, by

depositing the same in the United States mail in Las Vegas, Nevada, first class postage prepaid and

addressed as follows:

David A. Stephens, Esq. Robert P. Dickerson, Esqg.

STEPHENS, GOURLEY & BYWATER THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

3636 N. Rancho Drive 1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, NV 89130 Las Vegas, NV 89134

Attorneys for Plaintiff Eric L. Nelson Attorneys for Defendant Lynita Sue Nelson

employee of Larry L. Bert)%h, CPA & Associates

10015-01/545216
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Nelson v. Nelson
Asset Schedule

July 5, 2011

Larry L. Bertsch, CPA & Associates

Larry L. Bertsch, CPA, CFF
Nicholas S. Miller, CFE, CSAR, MBA



Nelson v, Nelson
Asset Schedule
i i
o . . . : . .
o ) L . Lynita Erie l . Asset | lncome
| o o NOTE|  Value Value Titled | Producing |
Real Estate . . : ﬁ : ! |
“7065 Palmyra - Las Vegas. Nevada R 650000 916,000 Lynita - Trust ) NO
2911 Bella Kathryn Circle - Las Vegas ~ 2 TBD | 900000 EricTrust-Bamone . NO
29| I Bella Kathryn Circle - Las Vegas .2 TBD ' 175.000 Erlc Trust Banone NO
'AZ-3| Gateway Lots o [ 24 . 139,500 l 139.500 LynitaTrust © | NO
:AIZ-29 Gateway Lots B on ‘ 139 500 139,500 Erlc Trust ‘ NO
. . :
[Russell Road Property (65%) 3 . P |
! Owned by Eric Nelson Auctionecring (50%) . 3a :  TBD 2000000 Eric-Trust {  YES
‘Owned by Eric Nelson Trust (15%) 3% TBD 2000000 Eric- Trust . YES
Rcca.xvable from CJE & L. LLC e 3 742368  TBD  Eric- Trust : Unknown
iBrianhead, Utah o | 4 2000000 2000000 EachTrust-50%  NO
: | .
oot v PP ! H . . . .
3611 Lindel! - Las Vegas » . I 5 , _TBD 1,400,000 ‘iEach Trust-50% YES
: o . N LI - .
15913 Pebble Beach o o6 75,000 | 75000 Lynita - Trust : NO
{ ‘ ! : ’
v . ¢ . .- .
'Wyoming - 200 acres (40%) o © 7 ¢ TBD  800.000 Lynita- Trust © NO
Mississippi Properties , ; . S N
'830 Amold Ave. (Clay House) - Greenville, Miss. 8 40,000 40.000 {Lynita - Trust . . YES
;MS Bay 200 Acres - allocated . l 9 i
memld Bay, LLC_ (Holding Company) ¢ 9 i _. 45,500 None :Eaiih Trust - 50% NO
" Bal Harbour, LLC L | o ~“TBD EachTrust-50%  NO
‘Bay Beach Resorts, LLC o . % . TBD _Each Trust-50% NO
Ba\' Resorts, LLC o . %  TBD _[Each Trust-50% NO
MS Bay allocated acreage- Lynita Trust . : — ' o .
l.ynna Trust - not used % I TBD | Lynita - "Trust ) NO
[RV Park 9 | 'TBD l Lynita - Trust YES
Pl _—
( D!nagu . 10 : TBD . ?Eric Trust - Dynasly : R
; Silver Slipper 10 TBD _Eric Trust - Dynasty - YES
. 'MS Bay allocated acreage Titled to Dynasty b TBD 937,500 Eric Trust - Dynasty NO
'MS Bay allocated acreage Titled Frank Soris Trust . 0 TBD 312,500 Eric Trust - Dynasty NO
Crotta, LLC - 16.67% interest ' T TBD Lymta Trust 1 NO
~ Dynasty profit sharing agreement lla  TBD | _Lynita - Trust ) NO
.MS Buay allocated interest - titled to Grotta, LLC ¢ b ; TBD ! 16,667 .Lymta Trpsl . NO
:G rotta Financial Partnership E lle ] NO
'.R%verwnlk Ent. ('Hg'ldlng Company for Hidewav Casino) 12 Unknown None :Eric - Trust NO_ _

TBD = To Be Determined Notes to Asset Schedule are an integral part of this schedule



"

Other Investments

Banone, LL.C

.
0

62,522

4412 Baxter - Las Vegas 13,132 82,522 |Eric Trust - Banone 'YES
‘53 4 Clovcr Blossom Court - North Las chas. Nevada j 13 108, 705 108,750 |Eric Trust Banone YES
11301 Heathcr Ridge - North Las Vegas .13 118 459 118,459 :Eric Trust Banone YES
6”!3 Anaconda Las Vegas Cn B4l 81,411 Enc Trust - ‘Banone YES
1608 Rusly R:dge Lane - Flenderson (Daughters Housce) 13 71.526 77.526 Fruc Trust - Banone NO
Mcsa Vista (5 acres) i3 " 100,000 100,000 'Enc Trust - Banonc NO
Mc.sa Vista - Lot 68 13 21,229 21229 Eric Trust - Banone NO
2209 Farmouth Circle - Nevada 13 88,166 88.166 |Eric Trust - Banone YES
330[ Terra Bella Drive - Nevada 13 65, 013 ] 65013 |Eric Trust - Banone YES
14133 Compass Rose Way - Nevada 13 [ 67,820 67,820 |Eric Trust - Banone 'YES
14601 Concord Village Drive - chada N .13 61 070 61.070 |Eric Trust Banone YES
4612 Sawyer Ave - Nevada 13 49304 49.304 Eric Trust-Banonc = YES
_4820 Marnell Dnve Nevada 13 23,643 23.643 ‘Enc Trust Banone YES
5113 Churchill Ave. - Nevada 13 58,070 _ 58.070 Eric Trust - Banone YES
5704 Roseridge Ave. - Nevada B3 61.510 61.510 Eric Trust - Banonc YES
6301 Cambria Ave. - Nevada i 13 68.244 68.244 :Eric Trust - Banonc YES
6304 Guadalupe Ave. - Nevada ¢ 13 41,599 | 51.499 Eric Trust - Banone YES
Mt.sa Vista - Lot 67 - Arizona (Decded Back) 14 | 21, 263 21.263 |Eric Trust - Banone } NO '
1628 W. Darrel Road - Arizona 14 37.8821 37,882 |Eric Trust-Banone |  YES
1830N 66th Drive - Arizona 4 24791 24.791 Eric Trust - Banone ° YES
1837N 59th ‘Street - Arizona 14 29,050 29,050 Eric Trust Banone ?ES_
22"0 W. Tonto Street - Arizona L) 30,906 30.906 Eric Trust - Banone YES
3225 W. Roma Ave, - Arizona .14 31299 31.299 Eric Trust,. Banone } YE§
3307 W. Thomas Road - Arizona ] l R C 35, 383 i 35383 Eric Trust - Banone ° YES
3332 N, 80&1 Lanc Arizona D4 29, 924 29.924 Eric Trust - Banone YES
34 15 N. 84th Lanc - Arizona RL 35,368 | 35.368 |Eric Trust - Banone YES
3424 W, Blpomﬁcld Road - Arizona M 43‘084_ : 43,084 Eric Trust - Banone YES
363] N. 81st Ave. - Arizona L 30,063 30,063 Eric Trust- Banone YES
4I4| N. 3dth Ave. - Arizona 14 21,804 21.804 .Eric Trust - Banone . YES
'4S4I N 76th Ave, - Arizona IE 32,540 32.540 Eric Trust - Banone | YES
i48I6 S. [ Tth Street - Arizona . B 19,633 19,633 Eric Trust - Banone l YES
15014 W. Cypress Street - Arizona o4 30,324 30,324 |Eric Trust - Banone YES
5518 N. 34th Drive - Arizona L _ 27,641 . 27,641 [Eric Trust - Banone l YES
6172 W, Flllmore Strect - Arizona 14 39.871 39,871 Eric Trust - Banone | YES
6202 S. 43rd Street - Arizona . EERE 21,1712 27,772 Eric Trust - Banone YES
6720 W. Cambridge Ave. - Arizona_ 14 32,563 32,563 Eric ] Trust Banone YES
6822 W. Wilshire Drive - Arizona M 40477 , 40477 Eric Trust Banone YES
_6901 W. Coolidge Street - Arizona 4 32. 583 32,583 Eric Trust Banone YES
Banone, LLC - AZ ‘ ‘ i , N
14838 W Berkeley Rd. - Arizona 15 TBD 32622 |Eric Trust- Banone |  YES
:8 Homes - Arizona 15 ©  TBD | 251,000 |Eric Trust - Banone NO
ga_nogg Nevada Notes Receivable 16 . _Eric Trust - Banone o
‘R & D Custom Builders - DMV Lot 16-1 7 (secured) 16a 46463 Eric Trust - Banonc YES
Advamage Constructmn MV Lot 37 (secured) i 20,08] _Eric Trust - Banom: YES
Gcmld & Lmda Fixsen - MV Lot 52 (securcd) | 22, 838 (Eric Trust - - Banone ' YES“
Gz.rald & Lmda lescn MV Lot 53 (securcd) l 22,838 | Eric Trust Banone YES
.loc Willlams & Shcrry Fixsen - MV Lot 54 {secured) { 2,838 . (Eric Trus_t_ - ﬁanonc YES
Bldco Inc. - MV Lot 61 (secured) ) 21.263 | _Eric Trust - Banone YES
Carv & Troy Fixsen- MV Lot 98 (secured) ) 22.838 . Eric Trust - Banone YES
Amada & Chris Stromberg (secured by Condo in PA) 16b 133.357 Eric Trust - Banone YES
JB Ramos Trust (secured by 436 Europa Way) l6c 78.000 1Eric Trust - Banone . YES
Kalhmne Slephens (securcd by 1601 Knoll Heights) 16d | 83,000 | 63.000 |Eric Trust Banonc YES L
Chad Ramos (secured 7933 Dovcr Shores) |6e 60,000 ! .IInc [‘rust Banonc | YES
' |Alicia Hamson (secured by 1025 Acadcmy) 68.620 }Enc Trust Banone | YES
Eric T Nclson (secured by 8619 W. Mohave - AZ) i6f 95.000 Eric Trust - Banone | YES
[Michael & Lyﬁdla Asquith - MV Lot 50 (secured) lé6g 23,625 "Eric Trust - Banone NO

TBD = To Be Determined

Notes to Asset Schedule are an integral part of this schedule




Ojlhe'r Receivables ‘
_Frank Soris (Contmgent)
kakl Cvintavich

Fa:milx Loans
(Chad Ramos

Jesse Harber
Brock Nelson

Autos/Vehic)
2008 Escalade EXT SUV (Owned) (Eric’'s)

2007 Mercedes SL 550 (Owned) (Eric's)
2001 Audi (Lcascd) (Lynita's)
‘A'TV's and Snowmobiles

l
Tg}_ Situation
l2006 Tax Rcl‘und (Held by Davc Slcphcns Esq.)

Cash & Investment Aggg_g

.Lxmta s Accounts
‘Schwab Capstone Capital- 2834 (3/3172011)

Crcdll Union 1 37214-01 (3/3!/201 ()
_Cndll Union | 37214-22 (35312011)
Silver State 3736-01 (3/3122011)
Silver State 3736-80 (3/31/2011)

|Erl'ic Accounts o

jBank of America 5010-0976-582% (3/3(/2011)
'Bank of America 5010-0716-2754 (3/31/20(1)
_Bank of America 0050-1157-7064 (3/31/2011)
iBank of America 5010-1 100-6958 (3/31/2011)
Clu National Bank 363201539 (3/3 172001
_Clu National Bank 363005[52 (33172010
Citi National Bank 363250807 (3/31720110)
‘Mellon - 10594001700 (3/31/2011)

Liabilities T

:ank Soris Contingent Liability
Due on Line of Credit (3/31/201 1)

17
18

19
20

21
2]

:Zla:

22

2

23
23
23

23
23
23
23
23
23
23
23

17
23

i

B
|

TBD 1000000 Eric- Trust
200,000 200,000 ‘Eric Nelson
261,675 | - |Erie - Trust
47,000 25,000 |Eric - Trust
10,000 10,000 Eric - Trust
40475 38.840 Eric - Trust
50115 42,845 Eric - Trust
Lease ~ Lease  Lynita
™D ' TBD Unknown
110,125 1 © 110128 }Eric Nelson
1,016,969 :Lynita ~ Trust
5 _Lynita ~ Trust
482714 Lymtn = Trust
2020 _Lynita Nelson
3,767 'L) nita Nelson
:
. 82,781 |Eric-Trust
| 13.685 |Eric Trust - Banone
3,533 :Eric Trust - Banone
7.439 Eric Trust - EN Auct .
84919 Eric Trust - Banone

430
13316
'2,757.160

YES
YES

__ Unknown
.. Unknown
_Unknown

NO
NO
NO
NO

NO

“Eric Trust - Dynasty .

_Eric Trust - Banone
_Eric - Trust

‘ _(562,981)|Eric - Trust
{1,807,369)! Eric - Trust

TBD = To Be Determined

Notes to Asset Schedule are an integral part of this schedule
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Note 1 - 7065 Palmyra

This is the current residence of Lynita Nelson. It has been alleged that improvements
have been made to the property in the last two years. The parties do not agree on the value of the
Property.

Since there is no agreement on the value of the property, it is recommended an appraisal be
made on the property directed by an independent third party.

~ Note 2 - 2911 Bella Kathryn

This is the current residence of Eric Nelson which includes an adjacent vacant lot for
which Eric is conducting improvements. Fric has valued the property as $900,000 for the

" residence and $175,000 for the adjoining lot. Lynita does not agree and her issue is stated below.

According to the detailed records of Eric Nelson, a total amount of $1,362,612.57 has
been spent towards the property which contains the house. The house was initially purchased for
$381,984.00 on 12/28/2009 and improvements have been made to the property as of 06/11/2011 -
amounting to $980,628.57.

In reviewing the details of the house improvements on the general ledger kept by Eric
Nelson, there was only one payment recorded to a relative, Paul Nelson, in the amount of
$25,000 and«designated as contract labor in building the Residence. There were other payments
recorded to relatives for reimbursement of materials and supplies used on the building of the
residence. None of the reimbursed amount appeared material or not related to the residence.

Those reimbursed payments were made to Paul Nelson, Cal Nelson, and to Big Fish, LLC, a

company owned by Cal Nelson.

The adjoining lot was purchased on 08/11/2010 for a cost of $175,000. As of 06/11/2011,
improvements have been made towards the lot in the amount of $64,558.68. In total, the
purchase price and additional improvements towards this property amount to $239,558.68.

Therefore the aggregate costs of the residence and adjoining lot at 06/11/201 lamounts to
$1,602,171.25. ‘

Since there is no agreement on the value it is recommended an appraisal be made of the
property directed by an independent third party or a decision that funds expended for the
property be the criteria of value.

At issue - Lynita claims Evic has used community funds to build this residence and feels
regardless of an appraisal, she should receive 50% on the costs to buy and build the property.
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Note 3 - Russell Road Property

History

Property consisting of 3.3 acres at 5220 E. Russell Road was purchased on November 11,
1999 for $855,945 by the Lynita Nelson Trust and the down payment from Cal Nelson
amounting to $20,000. Lynita then became a 50% partner with Cal Nelson in a partnership
named CJE&L, LLC which was formed for the purpose of renting the property to Cal's Blue
Water Marine. ’

Shortly thereafter, CJE&L, LLC obtained a loan from Business Bank of Nevada in the
amount of $3,100,000. The purpose of this loan was to build a building for the operations of
Cal's Blue Water Marine, Inc. The loan was to be guaranteed by Clarence and Jeanette,
individually as well as their Trust dated May 31, 2001 and also Cal's Blue Water Marine, Inc.

Sometime in 2004, Lynita signed a guarantee on the ﬂooririg contract for the inventory of
Cal's Blue Water Marine, Inc. On 01/01/2005, Lynita withdrew her guarantee of the flooring
contract and in return, Lynita signed an assignment or forfeit of her interest in the partnership to
remove her from the property records. (The Examiner has not seen the flooring agreement that
was signed by Lynita, although requested - Each of the parties claims the other has the contract).
According to the records, the forfeiture of partnership interest was transferred to the capital
account of Cal Nelson there being no cash attached to the transaction.

The boat business failed in 2008. At that time, the Bank demanded a $300,000 pay down
to keep the loan in performing status. Eric paid the $300,000 which was secured by property
owned by Cal Nelson and located in Utah.

Eric’s purchase of the interest in property

On or about 02/10/2010, Eric Nelson decided to purchase a 65% interest in the property.
Eric's 65% interest is said to have cost $4,000,000; which is comprised of the following amounts:

1) In 2009, Eric purchased an FDIC note on a property in Phoenix commonly
known as "Sugar Daddy's" for approximately $520,000. The source of these funds
came from the Line of Credit. The property was sold with proceeds amounting to
$1,520,597.88. Since this was designed as a 1031 exchange, the proceeds were
used in 2010 to purchase Eric's interest in the Russell Road Property.

2) As indicated above, Eric had previously paid $300,000 to pay down the Bank
Loan which was secured by property in Utah. In addition, Eric paid off the
mortgage on Cal's house amounting to $400,000. Both amounts were paid from
Eric’s Line of Credit. These two amounts aggregating $700,000 were then used as
a credit towards the purchase price for Eric's interest.
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3) EBric gave a credit amounting to $522,138.47 which represented future
agreements with Cal and the termination of any present verbal partnership
agreements. This also included money on rental payments given to Cal.

4) The remaining amount to fulfill the obligation of the purchase price was to
borrow $1,257,263.67 from the Line of Credit in 2010.

Therefore the purchase of Eric's interest is comprised of the following:

Pay down of Bank Loan : $ 300,000.00
Pay off of personal residence of Cal Nelson 400,000.00
Credit to Cal Nelson for prior payments 522,138.45
Amount to pay Bank Note from Sugar Daddy's 1,520,597.88
Amount to pay Bank Loan from Line of Credit 1,257,263.67

$ 4,000,000.00

Therefore the amount of cash contributed directly to the interest in the property by Eric in
2010, amounts to $2,777,861.55 (1,520,597.88 + 1,257,263.67). The cash reportedly paid off the
original loan held by Business Bank of Nevada.

According to CJE&L’s tax returns and representations made by Cal Nelson, Cal Nelson’s
capital account includes $855,000; which represents the purchase price of the land originally
purchased on November 11, 1999 by the Lynita Nelson Trust as well as $501,529 in leasehold
improvements made by Cal’s Blue Water Marine. The summary document supporting the
leasehold improvements contribution was believed to be at cost and not the net depreciated
value. As prior indicated Cal’s Blue Water Marine eventually failed in 2008. Since the Business
failure in 2008, Cal Nelson has taken distributions from CJE&L of $11,096 in 2009 and $73,978
in 2010, aggregating to $85,074.

The current ownership of the 5220 E. Russell Road property is 50% by Eric Nelson
Auctioneering (an asset of the Eric Nelson Trust), 15% by the Eric Nelson Trust and 35% by
CJE&L, LLC. (See below).

Note 3a - 50% in Russell Road owned by Eric Nelson Auctioneering

In the purchase of the Russell Road Property, the ownership of 65% of the property
purchase from CJE & L, LLC was described above to be $4,000,000. Eric Nelson says that 50%
of the interest was designated to be owned by Eric Nelson Auctioneering and the other 15% by
the Eric Nelson Trust.
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Note 3b - 15% sale back to Cal Nelson for 15% interest by Exic Trust

The 15% interest is evidenced by a note in the amount of $2,000,000 the principal
amount is due in seven years from 2/3/2010 from Cal Nelson to Eric Nelson Trust. The note is
secured by 15% of the real property owned by CJE & L, LLC and 15% of all rents collected
from the property will be recognized as interest on the note.

Note 3¢ - Receivable from CJE & L; LLC amounting to $742,368.

According to the 2010 tax return of CJE&L, LLC (owned 99% by Nelson Nevada Trust
(Cal’s Trust) and 1% by Cal Nelson), the company reports a liability in the amount of $742,368
is due to Eric Nelson Auctioneering (Reported under Eric Trust - Eric Nelson Auctioneering).
We have not received information as to the nature of this note.

Because of the controversy on_ this property, it is recommended that an appraisal of the
property be made directed by an independent third party.

At issue, Lynita believes that Cal Nelson has not put any capital into the investment and
therefore the amount of this asset is 100% owned solely by Lynita and Eric Nelson.

Also at issue is that Lynita bought the land for $855,000 and was forced to forfeit her interest
through an assignment to Cal Nelson. This issue is over a guarantee made by Lynita on a
flooring arrangement on boats for a company owned by Cal Nelson, named Cal's Blue Water
Mayvine.

Subsequent Transaction

The property was sold to the Oasis Baptist Church on 05/27/2011, prior to this
transaction, the church held an option to purchase for $6,500,000. The payments on the note
were to begin on 09/01/2011. Until this date, the Oasis Baptist Church was to pay $17,500 each
month for the months of June, July, and August. Then starting on 09/01/2011 the Oasis Baptist
Church will pay interest only at 6% on $6,000,000 for 5 years and then will have a balloon
payment due of $6,500,000. '

This contract was amended on 06/15/2011 because the Church could not get an
exemption from property taxes unless they own the property. Therefore the original financial
arrangement has been amended.

The Oasis Baptist Church needs additional improvements in order to bring their school
over to the Russell Road property. In order to do this, they need an additional $300,000 in funds
for improvements to the property. Currently, they are paying $20,000 per month space rental for
them to conduct their school.

As 0f 06/15/2011, Julie Brown loaned $300,000 to the Oasis Baptist Church and has a 1st
Note/Deed on the property.
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A 2nd Note/Deed is placed on the property to recapture all back rents and taxes in the
amount of $295,000. The 2nd Note/Deed is shared 1/3rd to Eric Nelson Auct1oneermg, 1/3rd to
the Eric Nelson Trust and 1/3rd to CJE&L, LLC.

Therefore the remaining amount of $6,500,000 through subordination has become a 3rd
Note/Deed in the favor of shared 1/3rd to Eric Nelson Auctioneering, 1/3rd to the Eric Nelson
Trust and 1/3rd to CJE&L, LLC.

The current terms are to pay $17,500 per month until 09/01/2011 and $30,000 thereafter.
However they may ask that the payments be extended to 12/01/2011 before they begin to pay
$30,000 per month for their purchase of the property.

We understand there is a servicing agreement to collect the mortgage payments. We do
not know the entity that the servicing arrangement is contracted.

The servicing agency is an issue with Lynita.

Note 4 - Brianhead, Utah
The property located in Brianhead, Utah includes a cabin on 150 acres. In addition to the
property and building, the ownership includes water rights.

Eric originally valued the asset at $3,000,000 but now believes the property has a value
of approximately $2,000,000. Lynita states the property should bring $2,000,000 at sale, which is
her preference.

It appears there is an agreement on the value of this property. However, there is no
agreement on the disposition of the asset. As a result, a _third-party appraisal mav be
required to determine the value either party should pay to buy the other one out.

Note 5 - 3611 Lindell

This property is ah office complex. The complex has 13,040 square feet and is the
location of Eric Nelson offices. Eric collects the monthly rents as well as pays for the monthly
maintenance.

Both income and expenses will be listed in the Sources of Income and Expenses report.

Since there is a disagreement about the value of the office building, it is recommended an
appraisal by made of the property by an independent third party.

Note 6 - 5913 Pebble Beach

This property is owned by the LSN Nevada Trust and is occupied by Lymta s sister,
Thelma. The mortgage of $69,000 has been paid off and the property is currently unencumbered.
It appears that neither party is interested in the property and may become a non-issue.
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Note 7 - Wyoming (200 acres) :

This property consists of 200 acres located in Evanston, Wyoming and owned 40% by
Lynita’s Trust, 50% by Paul Nelson (relative) and 10% by Aleda Nelson (relative). This property
could be developed into 84 Lots and are in the name of Equestrian Estates, LLC.

Fric has given a value for Lynita’s 40% interest in the property of $800,000. Lynita has
not determined a value,

It is recommended an appraisal be made by an independent third party to obtain a value of
the 40% interest. ' )

Note 8 - 830 Arnold Ave. ,

This is a 1,300 sq. ft. house located in Greenville Mississippi. The house is being rented
at $500 per month and the rent is being collected and deposited into Banone’s Bank Account.
Fric has valued the property at $40,000, which is believed to be the initial purchase price of the
property.

Because there are so many other issues, it is recommended the purchase price be
considered the value based upon the current economic conditions,

Note 9 - MS Bay (200 acres)

This is 200 acres located in Mississippi. The ownership and titles to the property are not
clear and need to be addressed. Currently the property is titled as follows:

Acres
Bal Harbour, LLC (Note 9b) 4.7790560
Bay Harbour Beach Resort, LLC (Note 9¢) 2.7996560
Emerald Bay, LLC (note 9a) 0.2217080
Grotta (Note 11) 25.3773880
Lynita Trust - RV Park (Note 9¢) 20.6856080
Lynita Trust (Note 91) 41.0152290
__94.8786450_
Dynasty (Note 10b) 91.0927580
Frank Soris Family Trust (Note 10c) 30.1382120

121.2309700

Total Acres 216.1096150

Note 9a - Emerald Bay, LLC has .221708 acres titled in its name, which was purchased for
$55,000. Emerald Bay, LLC (formally Paradise Bay Mississippi, LLC was formed in 2005 and
changed name in 2007) is a holding Company whose purpose was to assemble property of 120
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acres about 2 miles from the current Silver Slipper Casino to develop a resort type project. The
subsidiaries of the Company were Bal Harbour, LLC, Bay Harbour Beach Resort, Montgage
Resort, LLC, Bay Resorts, LLC, and Paradise landing, LLC. This project is not currently
operating and is at a standstill.

In 2008 the ownership in this property went from 100% ownership by Eric Trust to an
ownership of 50% to Lynita Trust and 50% to Eric Trust.

At issue, Emerald Bay owes Nelson & Associates $45,500.

P

The amount due from Emerald Bay, LLC were funds advanced to pay for expenses in the
assembling process. Emerald Bay does not have funds and therefore doubtful to repay Nelson &
Associates back. '

Note 9b - Bal Harbour, LLC has 4.779056 acres titled in its name.

Note 9¢ - Bay Harbour Beach Resort, LLC has 2.799656 acres titled in its name.

Note 9d - Bay Resorts, LLC currently does not have any ownership in land. This entity
operated the RV Resort, had its own Bank Account until the law suit was filed. The Bank
Account was closed and the rental income from Silver Slipper was the deposited into Banone.

Note 9e - Lynita Trust has 41.0152290 titled in its name. This property is not being used.

Note 9f - RV Park is owned by Lynita’s Trust. The property designated for its use is

20.6856080 acres. The Silver Slipper is leasing this property and pays an amount of

approximately $4,000.00 per month.

Since there are different owners and the property is being used differently, it is
recommended either an appraisal for the separate parcels be made or that the entire 200+
acres be appraised altogether, then the value could be allocated to the individual owners. In
either case, the appraisal should be directed by an independent party.

Note 10 - Dynasty
Dynasty is an entity that is included in the Eric Nelson Trust consisting of various types
of investments as described below.

Note 10a - Silver Slipper (Cwned by Dynasty)

Dynasty has a 34% interest in the Silver Slipper Casino. If options were to be exercised,
then the interest could increase to 43%.

There is currently a dispute between Eric Nelson and the other partners of the Silver
Slipper Casino. In the operating agreement of Silver Slipper is a buyout provision. The other
partners are attempting to exercise that provision and have offered $1,586,000 and are pushing
Eric Nelson to accept.
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The other partners have filed a law suit in Los Angeles to force Eric Nelson to accept
their offer. Eric Nelson is unwilling to accept the current position of the other partners. In order
to oppose the other partners, Eric Nelson did put Dynas_ty‘into Bankruptcy, filing in Mississippi.

The other partners filed a motion to have the Bankruptcy dismissed as a bad faith filing.
It is understood that hearing has taken place and the Bankruptcy has been dismissed. Therefore it
is back to defending the law suit filed in Los Angeles.

There are other issues affecting the .ownership interest in the Silver Slipper, one of which
being that Lynita is not currently licensed by the Mississippi Gaming Atthorities and therefore
not qualified to own an interest in a gaming property.

It is recommended that a Business Valuation be directed by an independent third party to
determine the value of the Silver Slipper and also to determine the value of the percent
interest owned by Dvnasty.

Note 10b - Dynasty owns 91.092758 acres. There has been a lien of $1,000,000 placed
against the property by BBJ, a lender to Silver Slipper.

Note 10c¢ - This land consisting of 30.1382120 acres was deeded to Frank Soris Family to
collateralize the $1,300,000 owed from the 2002 transaction between Soris and Lynita Trust.
(See Note 17 for the Soris transactions). It has been stated that this acreage has been quitclaimed
back to Dynasty when the property in Banone was substituted as collateral for the $1,300,000
note to Soris. The quitclaim has not been recorded. A

Fric Nelson stated the value of the property, both what Dynasty owns and the Frank Soris
property totaling 121.230970 acres is valued at $1,250,000.

It is recommended that an appraisal be made of the property owned by Dynasty and the
property currently owned by Frank Soris. Such an appraisal should be conducted as
recommended in Note 9. ' ‘
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Note 11 - Grotta, LLC

Lynita’s Trust owns a 1/6™ interest or 16.67% with Eric Nelson’s relatives owning the
remaining 5/6™ interest. Grotta, LLC controls various investments as described below:

Note 11a - Dynasty Profit Sharing Agreement

Eric Nelson states that this Company has an interest in a Profit Sharing agreement
whereby Grotta, LLC is to receive 10% of Dynasty’s Profits. (No determination has been made
to ascertain if that is an investment and/or operating profits). There have been no profits to-date;
therefore no payments from Dynasty have ever been made to Grotfa, LLC.

Note 11b — Mississippi Land

The Grotta, LLC owns 25.377388 acres of the 200 acres described in Note 9 as MS Bay
~ 200 acres. Fric states the value of that land is approximately $100,000.

Eric values Lynita’s trust ownership in this land at $16,667. Lynita does not have a
separate value for the property owned by Grotta, LLC.

Note 11c - Grotta Financial Partnership

The Grotta Financial Partnership owned land on Flamingo Road in Las Vegas, Nevada,
which was condemned for the purpose of using the land to construct the "Beltway". The

commendation was used as an IRS Section 1033 exchange. Cash amounting to $3,025,000 which
was in the Grotta Financial Partnership, was transferred to the Eric Nelson Trust for future

investing purposes in order to comply with the IRS Section 1033 exchange provisions.
Therefore, the cash on the books of Grotta Financial Partnership was replaced with a Note
Receivable to the Eric Nelson Trust. The investments made by Eric Nelson through the Eric
Nelson Trust would at this time be included in the current asset schedule.

If the Eric Nelson Trust were to pay Grotta Financial Partnership the amount of
$3,025,000 or any part thereof, it would then create the situation that the amount would become
taxable because the transaction would be treated as a loan which does not qualify under the IRS
Section 1033 exchange rules.

At issue, there is a Note Receivable in the amount of $3,025,000 booked on Grotta Financial
Partnership financial statements from the Eric Nelson Trust. The transaction contains various
issues relating to taxable consequences if paid back.
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Note 12 - Hideaway Casino

This was an Investment between Eric Nelson and Steve Bieri. Eric Nelson has not spent
community funds in his effort to develop a casirio. The investment was not viable and thus failed.
Eric states that there may be a law suit against Eric Nelson to the extent of the loss suffered by
Mr. Bieri amounting to approximately $3,000,000.

Note 13 - Banone, LLC (Nevada)

These properties are located in Nevada and titled in the name of Banone, LLC, which is
in Eric Nelson Trust. The value indicated on the schedule is the purchase price of the property
including repairs thereto. In discussion with Lynita, she appeared to have a willingness to accept
those values, with the exception of 4412 Baxter as described below:

Note 13a - 4412 Baxter - According to Lynita, the amount booked for 4412 Baxter is
$20,000 greater than it should be. Lynita claims the proper amount should be $62,522; instead of
$82,522. .

Note 14 — Banone, LLC (Arizona)

These properties are located in Arizona and titled in the name of Banone, LLC which is
in BEric Nelson Trust. The value indicated on the schedule is the purchase price of the property
including repairs thereto. In discussion with Lynita, she appeared to have a willingness to accept
those values.

Note 15 - Banone AZ, 1L1C

There is one property in Banone AZ, LLC that is income producing. During 2010, 8
additional homes were purchased at a cost of $251,000; at which time we have not received
indication that they are income producing.

Note 16 - Notes Receivable

To date, we have not received copies of the documents relating to the various notes
receivable. Eric represented that the notes were secured by property but we have not examined-
appropriate evidence to determine the validity of the collateral. ‘

a. This note is in default. Roger Nelson is owner of RD Builders. Roger Nelson is not a
relative.

b. Amada & Chris Stromberg are the daughter and son-in-law of Eric and Lynita Nelson.
c. JB Ramos Trust is related to an employee of Eric Nelson

d. Niece - At issue by Lynita, Purchased by Banone on 03/02/2010 and questions the
- down payment of $20,000 and if that money came from Community Funds.
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e. Chad Ramos is a Nephew to Eric
f. Eric T. Nelson is a Nephew to Eric

g. Have received deed in lieu of foreclosure.

Note 17 - Soris Transaction
History

This first transaction commenced in 2002 when Frank Soris made an investment as
mortgage holder in the Wyoming operations. Mr. Soris loaned $2,300,000 to the Lynita Trust on
a building that was to be used for Off Track Betting to support a Race Track owned at that time
by the Nelson's. The operations in the building were outlawed and the operations had to cease.

The $2,300,000 was an amount needed by Frank Soris to complete a 1031 exchange (Tax
Code provision to defer taxes). The amount actually loaned is $1,300,000 and a note payable to
Lynita's Trust for $1,000,000. Sometime between the date of the 1031 and 2010, the promissory
note was transfetred to the Eric L Nelson Nevada Trust. We have not received indication as to
why the note was transferred out of Lynita's Trust or if any consideration was given in return for
the transfer. Information has been received that interest of $75,000 was received in 2009 relating
to the $1,000,000 note which is being serviced by U. S. Loan Servicing.

When the Off Track Betting business failed, Mr. Soris insisted on collateral to replace the
building in Evanston, Wyoming. Eric Nelson then collateralized the note with property in
Phoenix, Arizona. Upon failure of that collateral, Eric Nelson then collateralized the note with
property in Mississippi. Since there was ongoing litigation in Mississippi, Mz. Soris again sought
collateral for the amount due him. It was then, in early 2010, when Eric made a decision to take
the better of the Banone properties in Arizona and transfer those rental properties to the Frank
Soris Family Trust. '

It was understood from Eric Nelson that there was a deal with Frank Soris that if the
properties were to sell in excess of the $1,300,000, Eric would be entitled to monies from such
sales. In documents received there was a written agreement that upon the transfer of the Banone
properties, the $1,000,000.00 note made payable to the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust is cancelled
and considered satisfied. We have not received further documentation as to why the note was
cancelled or satisfied. We have yet to determine which position is current. Of course, if the
properties sell for less than $1,300,000, the concerns of the $1,000,000 will be dispelled.

Current Situation

The cost of the current twenty properties transferred to Soris has a book value of
$737,018.67. Therefore the aggregate amount of collateral against a debt of $1,300.000 leaves a
contingent liability of $562,981.33. In addition, Eric has pledged to use 8 lots from his
investment in AZ-29 Gateway Lots, but actual lots are to be determined at a later date according
to the February 19, 2010 agreement between Soris and Eric Nelson.
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The contingent asset may or may not have value if the properties sell for more than
$1,300,000, depending on the outcome of the agreement to share or if the note has been
cancelled.

The interest on the $1,300,000 note is being paid by the rents collected on the properties.

At issue, Lynita believes Eric gave Soris the best properties from Banone. Eric agrees with that
statement.

Note 18 - Nikki Cvintavich Note Receivable '

This is a loan made by Eric Nelson to Nikki Cvintavich, an employee in Mississippi. This
loan has mno direct connection to the Mississippi investments. We have not received
documentation evidencing if this note is collateralized by any type of property.

Note 19 - Family Loan (Chad Ramos)

This was money given to start several businesses. The businesses have all failed. This
money was given to him prior to 01/01/2009 and should be considered as community
participation and be eliminated as an issue. ‘

It is recommended that this item be eliminated from any settlement.

Note 20 - Family Loan (Jesse Harber) _

We have not received documentation relating to the terms and conditions of this
receivable. As a result, we cannot determine a value of the outstanding amounts due or if there
was or is any collateral against the receivable.

Note 21 - Autos/Vehicles

The values given by each party was from Kelly Blue Book. It has not been determined
what was used as mileage, accessories, or wholesale or retail suggested prices.

Note 21a — Both parties have indicated the presence of several ATVs and snowmobiles.

It is recommended a determination by an independent third party at a selected date
determined by the Court.

Note 22 - Tax Situation ,

Is has been understood that the 2006 taxes were filed jointly. Thereafter the Federal
Income Tax Returns have been filed as Married filing Separate. It has been stated that a 2006
refund in the approximate amount of $110,125 is currently held by Eric Nelson’s attorney in a
separate bank account.
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Note 23 — Bank Accounts
It is recommended that all of the Banking Accounts be brought up to a date determined by

the Court and that all transactions be reviewed for subsequent transactions.

Note 24 - AZ-31 Gateway Lots

The property in this account consists of the following:

1. 29 parcels that ae titled to the Lynita Trust.

2. 8 parcels where the:Lynita Trust has a 25% interest, Harber Investments has a
25% interest, Louis Walter has a 25% interest, and Gary & Margaret Zahlen have
a 25% interest.

3. 2 lots that were in foreclosure. As of the date of this report, we have not received
documentation relating to the disposition of the foreclosure proceedings.

4. 7 lots from Joan Ramos. Joan Ramos filed bankruptcy and all lots were to be
deeded back to Lynita’s Trust. As of the date of this report, all seven lots are
currently in the name of “Ramos Joan B Trustee™.
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
ROBERT P, DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945

JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email; info@dickersonlawgroup.com
Attomeys for LYNITA SUE NELSON

Electronically Filed
06/05/2013 11:49:28 AM

R

CLERK OF THE COURT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
V.
LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Defendant/Coumerclaimant.

ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and TSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Parties (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)

e

LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (joined in this action
pursuant to Stipulation and Order
entered on August 9, 2011)/ Purported
Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant,

e

”,
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CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
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LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

LCYNITA SUE NELSON, g

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually and as the
Investment Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001; the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001; LANA MARTIN, individually,
and as the current and/or former Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001, and as the g
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001 ); )

Counterdefendant, and/or
Cross-Defendants, and/or
Third Party Defendants.

‘NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS MOTION WITH

THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF
YOURRESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF TEIS MOTION, FAILURE
TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN (10)
DAYS OF YOUR RECEXPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED RELIEE
BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED
HEARING DATE.

MOTION FOR PAYM OF FUNDS BELONGING TO DEFENDANT
PURSUANT TO COURT’S DECREE TO ENSURE RECEIPT OF SAME, AND
FOR IMMEDIATE PAYMENT OF COURT APPOINTED EXPERT

COMES NOW Defendant, LYNITA SUE NELSON (“Lynita”), by and through
her attorneys, ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ., and JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ,,
of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, and respectfully moves this Honorable Court for

the following relief:

1)  AnOrzder directing that $1,032,742.00 and $35,258.00 be paid directly to
Lynita and Court appointed expert, Lamry Bertsch (“Mr. Bertsch”), from the
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$1,568,000.00 béing held by David Stephens, Esq. (“Mr. Stephens”), in accordance with
this Court’s Decree of Divorce entered June 3, 2013;

2)  Inthealternative, if the §1,568,000.00 has already been transferred by M.
Stephens to Lana Martin (“M;. Martin”) and the ELN Trust, and/or Plaintiff, Eric
Nelson (“Eric”), for an Order directing Ms. Martin and Exic to immediately transfer the
sum of $1,032,742.00 to Lynita and $35,258.00 to Mr. Bertsch; and

3)  Any other orders that this Court deems necessary and appropriate.

This Motion is made and based upon the records, files and pleadings on file

herein, including the Court’s June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce, the Points and Authorities

submitted herewith, Lynita’s affidavit attached hereto, and such other and further
evidence as may be adduced at the hearing of this matter.
DATED.this_5"_day of June, 2013,
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

Newvada Bar No. 00094

JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634

1745 Village Centex Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Attorneys for LYNITA SUE NELSON
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NOTICE OF MOTION

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing MOTION
FOR PAYMENT OF FUNDS BELONGING TO DEFENDANT PURSUANT TO
COURT’S DECREE TO ENSURE RECEIPT OF SAME, AND FOR IMMEDIATE
PAYMENT OF COURT APPOINTED EXPERT on for hearing before the above-entitled
Court, on the | " day of :)’\;)i_\’f_;; , 2013, at the hour of 2. id
a.m./p.m., or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.

‘DATED this 53*" day of June, 2013.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

Nevada Bar No 000945
JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 010634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Attorneys for LYNITA SUE NELSON
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L FACTUAL STATEMENT

On June 3, 2013, this Court issued its Decree of Divorce (“Decree”), which was
fifty (50) pages in length and contained extensive and detailed findings and Court
Orders. In the Decree, Lynita was awarded lump sum alimony in the amount of
$800,000.00, child support arrears in the amount of $87,775.00, and attorneys’ fees in
the amount of $144,967.00 from Eric and the ELN Trust (for a total amount owed to
Lynita of $1,032,742.00). The Court also ordered that Eric and the ELN Trust pay the
outstanding balance owed to Mr. Bertsch in the amount of $35,258.00. All of the
aforementioned sums were ordered to be paid within thirty (30) days of the issuance of
the Decree from the approximately $1,568,000.00 which was previously' enjoined in
Mr. Stephens’ trust account.

The Court was extremely clear in its Decree that the reason it was awarding lump
sum alimony to Lyﬁita, and ordering that the $1,568,000.00 be used to satisfy such
Jump sum alimony, child suppoxt arrears, and attorneys’ fees, was due to the Court’s well
founded concems that absent such an Order Lynita would never receive such sums from
Eric and/or the ELN Trust. Specifically, the Court concluded that Eric’s overall behavior
and attitude during the divorce proceedings “illustrate[d] the possibility that he might
attempt to liquidate, interfere, hiypothecate or give away assets out of the ELN Trust to
avoid payment of his support obligations to Ms. Nelson . . . .”

The Court’s Decree dissolves the injunction freezing the $1,568,000.00 in Mr.
Stephens’ trust account, and allows for said monies to be distributed to Eric and the
ELN Trust before Eric and the ELN Trust are required to provide Lynita and Mr.
Bertsch their reépective portions of same. Itis feared that Lynita will never receive her
portion of said funds, and that instead, Bric and the ELN Trust will refuse to pay Lynita

her share, and/or completely dissipate said funds, thereby precluding Lynita from

1 The Court’s Decree dissolves the previously issued injunction.
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possibly ever receiving her lump sum alimony, child support arrears, and attorneys’ fees.?
The Court’s extensive findings detail why such fears are justified, and how such actions
are more than a mere possibility. This is exactly the result the Court was attempting to
avoid by awarding Lynita lump sum alimony, child support arrears, and attomeys’ fees
from the $1,568,000.00 previously frozen by the Court.

As the Court is aware, Lynita received very little of the parties’ community
income, and no child support or maintenance, during the pendency of these proceedings.
If Lynita does not receive the $1,032,742.00 due to her she will suffer irreparable harm,
as she has several outstanding obligations and has an imunediate need for such funds.
Currently, Lynita has approximately $19,000.00 in her bank accounts, but has
outstanding credit card balances of $53,674.00, current household bills of $3,130.00,
and an outstanding balance for attorneys’ fees and costs of over $140,000.00. If Lynita
does not receive the monies awarded to her from the $1,568,000.00 previously enjoined
in Mr. Stephens’ trust account she will be unable to support herself and will suffer
irreparable financial hamm. Lynita previously made several requests for temporary
support and maintenance, most recently in her Motion for Temporary Support and to
Establish Child Support Orders (“Motion for Support™), filed January 28, 2013 (over
four (4) months ago). The hearing on Lynita’s Motion for Support was continued and
eventually vacated by the Court because the Court intended for the Decree to resolve
Lynita’s requests, and provide her with any support she required. If the Court does not
direct Lynita’s monies to be paid directly to her immediately, it is likely that Eric and
the ELN Trust will attémpt to withhold or dissipate same, thereby attempting to defeat

the Court’s Orders and intent and further delaying Lynita’s receipt of desperatelyneeded

monies.

2 For the same reasons, it is also feared that Mr. Bertsch will not receive his outstanding balance from the
$1,568,000.00 previously frozen by the Court.
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II. LEGAL ANALYSIS

Nevada Revised Statutes, Section 125.240 (2013), provides: .

NRS 125.240 Enforcement of judgment and orders: Remedies. The final
judgment and any order made before or after judgment may be
enforced by the court by such order as it deems necessary. A receiver
may be appointed, security may be required, execution may issue, real or
personal groperty of either spouse may be sold as under execution in other
cases, and disobedience of any order may be punished as a contempt.

Furthermore, it is well settled that the Court has inherent authority to protect the
dignity and decency of its proceedings, and to enforce its decrees. See, e.g., Halverson v.
Hardeastle, 123 Nev. 29, 163 P.3d 428, 440 (2007).

It is necessary that the Court issue an Order requiring Mr. Stephens’ to
immediately pay to Lynita the $1,032,742.00 she is entitled to from the approximately
$1,568,000.00 Eeing held in Mr. Stephens’ trust account, and to pay to Mr. Bertsch the
sum of $35,258.00. In the event Eric and/or the ELN Trust have already received the
$1,568,000.00 in Mr. Stephens’ trust account, the Court should issue an Order
requiring the ELN Trust and/or Eric to pay Lynita her $1,032,742.00, and Mr. Bertsch
his $32,258.00, from said funds immediately. Such Orders are necessary to enforce the
Court’s Decree, and prevent the dissipatidn of the funds Lynita and Mr. Bertsch are
entitled to receive. Without such an Order, the Cowrt’s concerns that Lynita may never
actually receive her lump sum alimony, child support arrears, and attorneys’ fees, or will
be delayed in her receipt of same, are likely to be realized.

Eric and the ELN Trust have no valid objection to the requests for relief madeé
herein. Lynita is simply requesting receipt of the monies awarded to her in the Court’s
Decree, and that Mr. Bertsch receive the monies ordered to be paid to him in the
Decree, to which Eric and the ELN Trust have no right or interest. If Eric or the ELN
Trust oppose these requests it will only make it more clear why such Orders are
necessary, and demonstrate further the validity of Lynita's and the Court’s concerns that

Eric and/or the ELN Trust will continue to disobey and attempt to defeat the Court’s
Orders.
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or.  CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above in this Motion, Lynita respectfully requests the

following relief:

1)  An Order directing that $1,032,742.00 and $35,258.00 be paid directly to

Lynita and Mr. Bertsch from the $1,5680,000.00 being held by Mr. Stephens, in

accordance with this Court’s Decree of Divorce entered June 3, 2013;

2) Inthe alternative, if the §1,568,000.00 has already been transferred by Mr.

Stephens to' Ms. Martin and the ELN Trust, and/or Eric, for an Order directing Ms.

Martin and Exic to immediately transfer the sum of $1,032,742.00 to Lynita and

$35,258.00 to Mr. Bertsch; and

3) - Any other orders that this Court deems necessary and appropxiate.
Dated this _ 53" day of June, 2013,

Respectfully Submitted by:
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

Ci AO\ L

D )
Nevada Bar No. 000945
JOSEF M. KARACSONYT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 010634
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneéys for LYNITA SUE NELSON
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AFFIDAVIT OF LYNITA SUE NELSON
STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF CLARK

I, LYNITA SUE NELSON, declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the
State of Nevada that the following statement is true and correct:

1. I am over the age of 18 years. Iam the Defendant in this action. I have
personal knowledge of the facts contained herein, and I am competent to testify thereto.

2. Yammaking this affidavitin support of my MOTION FOR PAYMENT OF
FUNDS BELONGING TO DEFENDANT PURSUANT TO COURT’S DECREE TO
ENSURE RECEIPT OF SAME, AND FOR IMMEDIATE PAYMENT OF COURT
APPOINTED EXPERT (“Motion”).

3. I'have read the Motion prepared by my counsel and swear, to the best of
my knowledge, that the facts as set forth therein’are true and ﬁccurate, save and except
any fact stated upon information and belief, and as to such facts I believe them to be
true. I hereby reaffirm said facts as if set forth fully herein to the extent that they are
not recited herein. If called upon by this Court, I will testify as to my personal
knowledge of the truth and accuracy of the statements contained therein.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

Subscnbggi and sworn to before me
this _Q " day of June, 2013.

C%ﬁm /ZLOXQ LKLS?‘

ary Public in and forsaid
County and State.

NOTARY PUBLIC
_._SHARI AIDUKAS __
STATE OF NEVADA COUNTV OF CLAHK .

MY ARPOINTMENT EXP,OCT 26,2013 §-
NO 09-¥ 1568-;1 \
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON
Plaintiff(s),
-VS-

LYNITA SUE NELSON

Defendant(s).

CASE NO. D411537
DEPT. NO. O

FAMILY COURT
MOTION/OPPOSITION FEE
INFORMATION SHEET
(NRS 19.0312)

14

Party Filing Motion/Opposition: |_| Plaintiff/Petitioner

[X] Defendant/Respondent

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

MOTION FOR OPPOSITION TO Motion for Payment of Funds Belonging to

Defendant Pursuant to Court's Decree to Ensure Receipt of Same, and for Inmediate

Payment of Court Appointed Expert

Motions and
Oppositions to Motions
filed after entry of a final
order pursuant to NRS
125, 125B or 125C are
subject to the Re-open
filing fee of $25.00,
unless specifically

NOTICE:

if it is determined that a motion or
opposition Is filed without payment
of the appropriate fee, the matter
may be taken off the Court's
calendar or may remain undecided
until payment is made.

Mark correct answer with an “X.”
1. No final Decree or Custody Order has been
entered. [_| YES NO

2. This document is filed solely to adjust the amount of
support for a child. No other request is made.

[ IYES

excluded. (NRS 19.0312) | 3. This motion is made for reconsideration or a new

XINO

trial and is filed within 10 days of the Judge's Order
If YES, provide file date of Order:

[ IyEs [XINO

[f you answered YES to any of the questions above,
you are not subject to the $25 fee.

Motion/Oppasition | X Xis

[S NOT subject to $25 filing fee

Dateci/;g\is 5 of June 200 3-J13
i Mdalces

|Printed Name of Preparer .~~~ =

&@W}l yib, te /Sl

Slgnature of Preparer

Mo’uon—Gpposmon Fee doc/1/30/05
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NOTC

Larry L. Bertsch, CPA, CFF

Nicholas S Miller, CFE, CSAR

LARRY L BERTSCH, CPA & ASSOCIATES
265 East Warm Springs Rd., Suite 104 :
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Telephone: . (702) 471-7223

Facsimile: (702) 471-7225

Forensic Accountants
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ERIC L. NELSON, . '
Case No. D-09-411537-D
Plaintiff, - Dept. O :
V. |
LYNITA SUE NELSON,
Defendant.

NOTICE OF FILING IN COME AND EXPENSE REPORTS FOR LYNITA NELSON FOR
THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1,2011 THROUGH MARCH 31,2012

LARRY L. BERTSCH and NICHOLAS MILLER, FORENSIC ACCOUNTANTS hereby file |
the Income and Expense Report for Lynita Nelson for the Period of January 1, 2011 Through March
31,2012, Said report is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. | |

Dated this J@t_day of May, 2012. |

LARRY L BERTSCH, CPA & ASSOCIATES

/" Ytryl/Beriséh, CPA, CFF
Niclélas S Miller, CFE, CSAR
265 East Warm Springs Rd., Suite 104
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119

Forensic Accountants
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I certify that on the 1st day of May, 2012, I mailed a copy of the NOTICE OF FILING INCOME
AND EXPENSE REPORTS FOR LYNITA NELSON FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2011
THROUGH MARCH 31, 2012 to the following at their last known address, by depositing the same

in the United States Mail, in Las Vegas, Nevada, first class postage prepaid and addressed as

follows:
Rhonda K. Forsberg, Esq. . ' Robert P. Dickerson, Esq.
IVEY FORSBERG & DOUGLAS THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP
1070 West Horizon Ridge Parkway, #100 1745 Village Center Circle
Henderson, NV 89012 4 Las Vegas, NV 89134
Attorneys for Plaintiff Eric L. Nelson Attorneys for Defendant Lynita Sue Nelson

Mark A. Solomon, Esq.

Jeffery P. Luszeck, Esq. :

SOLOMON DWIGGINS FREER &
MORSE, LTD.

9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Attorneys for Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust

An employee of Larry L. Bertsch; CPA & Associatey
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Source and Application of F unds
For

Lynita Nelson

From JahUary 1, 2011 through March 31, 2012

District Court F amily Division
Clark County, Nevada
Case Number: D-09-411537-D

Department O
~ Report Date: May 1, 2012

Prepared by:
Larry L. Bertsch, CPA, CFF
& :
Nicholas Miller, CFE, CSAR, MBA



Lynita Nelson



EXHIBIT A



Income
Dividend Income
Income Tax Refund
Sale of Investment
Unknown Deposit
Total Income

Expense
_Bank of America

Bank Service Charge
Cash Withdrawal

Children Payments
Amanda
Aubrey Nelson
Carli Nelson
Erica Nelson
Garett Nelson
General Items
Total Children Payments

Community Assets
Taxes
Total Community Assets

FIA Card Services

Housing Expenses
Alarm
Improvements |
Lawn Service
Maintenance
Other
Pest Control
Pool
Taxes
Utilities

Total Housing Expenses

Interest Expense
Medical
Payments to Individuals

Allen Weiss
Total Payments to Individuals

Jan - Dec 11

Jan-Dec 09  Jan -Dec 10 Jan - Dec 12 TOTAL

121.35 51.81 234.68 34,59 442 .43

- - 30,741.05 . - 30,741.05
317,604.65 876,000.00 484,930.00 150,000.00 1,828,534.65
219,210.56 2,000.00 "10,249.95- - 231,460.51
536,936.56 878,051.81 526,155.68 150,034.59 2,091,178.64
536,936.56 878,051.81 526,155.68 150,034.59 2,091,178.64
3,172.60 370.98 448.43 - 3',992.01
586.40 930.59 2,304.73 88.00 3,909.72
185,717.45 39,218.21 5,412.50 1,406.00 231,754.16
- - - 115.00 115.00

328.36 - - - 328.36
536.00 13,213.72 5,854.00 879.00 20,482.72
20.00 94.97 830.00 - 944,97
542.10 1,598.40 2,438.71 - 4,579.21
1,105.59 5,928.59 18,760.11 6,208.38 32,002.67
2,532.05 20,835.68 27,882.82 7,202.38 58,452.93
1,380.00 1,549.80 5,127.44 - 8,057.24
1,380.00 1,549.80 5,127.44 - 8,057.24
3,259.68 1,519.01 - - 4,778.69
371.55 445.45 479.40 119.85. 1,422.25
14,757.34 33,990.90 1,785.36 - 50,533.60
8,237.42 22,870.99 16,169.74 1,679.14 48,957.29
3,207.47 14,759.63 25,080.74 2,204.59 45,252.43
5,954.32 4,257.41 743.58 1,084.81 12,040.12
520.00 480.00 520.00 120.00 1,640.00
3,542.11 3,187.43 1,636.82 758.68 9,125.04
13,863.16 . 558640 - 5,757.25 - 25,206.81
16,290.08 15,746.30 19,008.78 3,724.10 54.,769.26
66,749.45 101,324.51 71,181.67 9,691.17 . 248,946.80
929.19 273.08 1,706.54 - 2,908.81
9,235.82 22,516.25 10,779.12 5,310.94 47,842.13
3,910.00 - - - 3,910.00
3,910.00 - - - 3,910.00.



Total Personal Expenses

Professionals

Anthem Forensics

Boyce and Gianni LLP
Bradshaw Smith & Co (CPA)
DeBecker Investigations, Inc.
Dukes Dukes Keating
Jeffrey Burr & Associates
Ladner Appraisal Group
Margaret Johanson (Counselor)
Melissa Attanasio

Reed Van Boerum

Robert Gaston

Rogers & Haldeman-

The Dickerson Law Group

~ Total Professionals

Total Expense

110,04047  217,84022  171,186.55 42,834.60 542,801.84
7,941.00 59,665.50 3,250.50 842.50 71,699.50
- 1,800.00 700.00 - 2,500.00
- 1,980.00 1,875.00 - 3,855.00
- ; 3,700.00 - 3,700.00
- 5,000.00 18,515.63 - 23,515.63

948.00 '- 2,062.50 . 3,010.50
. 2,600.00 - - . 2,600.00
1,870.00 2,750.00 2,370.00 1,270.00 8,260.00
y 57,442.50 27,637.50 6,650.00 91,730.00
- 14,040.00 - - 14,040.00
- 4,600.00 - - 4,600.00
1,500.00 1,225.00 - = 2.725.00
67,17420  254,722.09  193.432.40 79,370.90 594,699.59
7943320 405,825.00  253,543.53 88,133.40 826,035.22
467,846.31  812,203.42  549,57333 154,666.49 1,084,289.55
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 000945 :
JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ. : Electronically Filed
Nevada Bar No. 0010634 08/31/2012 01:35:08 PM
KATHERINE L. PROVOST . .
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle % izgg““m'
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Telephone: (702) 388-8600 . CLERK OF THE COURT
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email: info@dickersonlawgroup.com

Attorneys for Defendant, LYNITA. SUE NELSON

DISTRICT COURT, FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON, )
)
Plaintiff/Counterdefendant, )
V. )
)

L'YNITA SUE NELSON, ) CASENO. D-09-411537-D

) DEPT NO. “O”

Defendant/Counterclaimant. )
: )
AND RELATED ACTIONS )
)

DEFENDANT’S POST-TRIAL MEMORANDUM ON DIVORCE ISSUES

COMES NOW, DEFENDANT, LYNITA SUE NELSON ‘(“Lynita”), by and through her attorneys
of THE DICKERSONLAW GROUP, and respectfully submits for the Court’s consideration this Posf-Trial
Memorandum on the divorce issues involved in this matter.

DATED this 3} _day of August, 2012.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

RO; B%T P. DICKERSON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 000945

JOSEF M. KARACSONYT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 0010634
KATHERINE L. PROVOST
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L  INTRODUCTION |

From the inception of this litigation Plaintiff, Eric Nelson (“Eric”), has waged war against his wife
of nearly thirty (30) years, seeking to maintain the same control over her in the termination of their marriage
as he did during their marriage. While Eric has consistently been the “wheeler-dealer” businessman,
damaging his credibility time and again, playing games with Lynita, her attorneys, and this Court,' and
forcing Lynita to search for answers and incur increased legal fees, Lynita has borne this assault in the only
manner she could, with dignity and fortitude.?

Eric initiated this action with the filing of his Complaint for Divorce in May 2009. In the more than
three (3) years that have elapsed since that time, he has followed a scorch and burn pattern of litigation,
taking systermatic actions to reduce the community’s liquidity by spending'the parties’ cash, acquiring new
assets in violation of the Joint Preliminary Injunction (“JPI”"), and encumbering existing assets.? While Eric
has had the benefit of the use of nearly all of the community’s assets aﬁd income for the duration of these
proceedings, he has refused to voluntarily share the same with Lynita, forcing her to fund her representation
in this action from the one account of value at her disposal, her Charles Schvvaﬁ account. As confirmed by
Larry Bertsch, CPA (“Mr. Bertsch”), in 2009 Eric provided Lynita with $65,505.94 ($47,922.00 in direct
payments, and $17,583.94 in expenses paid .on Lynita’s behalf) in community income.* In 2010, Eric
provided Lynita with a mere $13,003.58 (which consisted of only $2,300.00 in direct payments, and
$10,703.58 in expenses),’ and in 2011, with 2 mere $10,763.60 ($5,750.00 in direct payments which were

Court Ordered attorneys’ fees and mediation fees,’ and $5,013.60 in expenses).” Shockingly, during the first

! Eric personally has been represented in these proceedings by five (5) different law firms, namely: Ecker & Kainen
(Edward Kainen, Esq.); Jimmerson Hansen (James J. Jimmerson, Esq.), Stephens, Gourley & Bywater (David Stephens, Esq.);
The Willick Law Group (Marshal Willick, Esq. and Kari Molnar, Esq.); and Forsberg, Douglas & Ivey (Rhonda Forsberg, Esq.),
In addition to these five (5) firms, Eric retained the law firm of Solomon, Dwiggins & Freer (Mark Solomon, Esq. and Jeffrey
Luszeck, Esq.) as counsel for the ELN Trust.

2 Lynita has at all times during these proceedings been represented by The Dickerson Law Group.

? The parties have appeared before the Court numerous times regarding such actions by Eric. Some examples, many
of which are discussed later in this Brief, include the Russell Road transaction, Eric’s expenditures on his personal residence on
Bella Kathryn, Eric’s sale of Harbor Hills, and Eric’s reacquisition of the Wyoming racetrack and encumbrance of same.

*+ See Mr, Bertsch’s Report, admitted into evidence as Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGQG, and specifically DEF006828.

5 See Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG, and specifically DEF006832,

§ Without such Orders, Eric would not have given one cent of community funds to Lynita.

7 See Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG, ard specifically DEF006836.

2
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three (3) months 0f 2012, Eric gave Lynita the nominal sum of $244.00 (which was simply a reimbursement
for unreimbursed medical expenses).! Meanwhile, during the same period of time Eric feceived personal
draws and paid personal expenses totaling $697,476.29, gave his family members (other than the parties’
children) $3,900,115.29, gave $407,392.13 to the parties’ children (of which $333,501.46 was given to the
adult children) in an effort to buy their love and loyalty and turn them against their mother, and spent
$1,839,494,79 on his personal residence.’ There can be no doubt from Eric’s actions in this matter, and
unwillingness to share community income and assets, that Eric’s strategy was simply to starve Lynita out
in an effort to force Lynita to accept a settlement designed by Eric to maintain control over her into the
future. At the start of this litigation, Lynita had access to approximately $2 million dollars, today she has
less than $200,000.00 remaining at her disposal; she was forced to deplete every dollar she had on
professional fees (which were exponentially inc‘reased by Eric’s vexatious litigation tactics) and living
expenses, without ever being able to replenish same with the large amounts of community income that was
received by Eric during the same period of time.

As will be discussed throughout this Brief, Fric’s unjustifiable and oppressive actions during this
litigation cannot be condoned, and Lynita is entitled to an equitable division of community property which
compensates her for the harm Eric has tried to cause.”®
IL FACTUAL STATEMENT

Lynita and Bric were married on September 17, 1983, and have been married for nearly thirty (30)
years. Eric is fifty-three (53) years old, and Lynita is fifty-one (51) years old. Lynita and Eric have spent
almost their entire adult lives together and married. During their lengthy marriage the parties were blessed
with five (5) children. Three (3) of the parties® children are now adults. Custody ofthe remaining two (2)
minor children was resolved by the parties’ Stipulated Parenting Agreement entered as an Order of this
Court on February 8,2010. By agreement, Lynita has primary physical custody of the minor children, with

Eric exercising visitation. Lynita has been a stay-at-home mother and primary care giver for all of parties’

¥ See Defendant's Exhibit GGGGG, and DEF006847.
® See Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG, and DEF006818.

0 Adjudication of the parties’ community assets will first require a decision on the trust issues frivolously interposed
into this action by Eric. Pursuant to the Court’s instructions, Lynita is submitting a separate post-trial brief concerning the trust

issues concurrently with this Brief. Accordingly, trust issues are not discussed herein, and this Brief assumes that the Court W111

find that all of the property held by the parties, whether individually or in trust, is COmMUnItY property.
3
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children for the duration of their lives." While Lynita has worked in the home, Eric has worked outside the
home and has been the “bread winner.” Specifically, Eric is an extremely skilled businessmanwhose resumé
includes experience as a casino owner, casino investor, land developer, commercial and residential landlord,
and auctioneer. Over the nearly thirty (30) years that the parties were martied, the parties earned and
accumulated substantial assets worth in excess of $18 million today.
A. The Community Property Estate

On June 9,2011, the Court entered an Order appointing Mr. Bertsch and Nicholas Miller, CFE (“Mr.
Miller”), “to perform a forensic accounting intended to provide the Court with an accurate evaluation of the
parties’ estate.” Such appointment was necessary due to Eric’s continuous movement of the parties’ assets,
which made it impossible for anyone, including the Court, to obtain a clear understanding of the community
estate. Pursuant to the Court’s assignment, Mr Bertsch and Mr. Miller spent over one (1) year analyzmg
and valuing the parties’ assets, and tracking each party’s expenditures. Mr. Bertsch and Mr., Mﬂler created
several detailed reports concerning same, all of which were admitted into evidence attrial. The information
compiled by Mr, Bertsch and Mr, Miller is extremely thorough and detailed, and provides the Court with
all ofthe financial information needed to adjudicate the parties’ property in this matter. The subparagraphs
that follow simply summarize Mr, Bertsch’s and Mr. Miller’s findings concerning the extent of the parﬁes’
property, and highlight some of the more important, and egregious transactions by Eric during the course
of this litigation.

()] Bella Kathryn and Russell Road.

Prior to discussing the full extent of the parties’ assets, a discussion of the BellaKathryn and Russell
Road properties is necessary because the values of same should, in equity and fairness, be adjusted to reflect

Eric’s misconduct in this matter, and then awarded to Eric.

1 Prior to marriage Lynita completed approximately 1 !4 years of college at Brigham Young University, studying
horticulture. After marriage, Lynita worked for approximately 2 !4 years as a receptionist, until the parties jointly agreed she
should no longer work, but should stay at home toraise their chlldren By agreement Lynita has not worked outside of the home
sitice 1986.

4
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(a) Bella Kathryn

During the pendency of this action Eric has spent large amounts of community funds on the
acquisition, construction, and improvement of the Bella Kathryn residence despite the existence of the
Court’s JPL'? Attached as Exhibit A is Mr. Bertsch’s explanation of the sums Eric spent towards B‘ella
Kathryn through June 11,2011." Since thattime, Eric has spent additional amounts towards Bella Kathryn,
and Mr. Bertsch has updated his reports accordingly. According to Mr. Bertsch’s April 23, 2012 Notice of
Filing Source and Application of Funds Pursuant to April 10, 2012 hearing, Eric’s continued dissipation of
community funds into BellaKathryn has increased to $1,839,494.79 as of March 31,2012. See ExhibitB."
It is unknown how much more community funds Eric has invested into this home since April 1, 2012.

Bric’s testimony regarding Bella Kathryn has varied throughout trial. Initially, Eric testified that he
purchased Bella Kathryn to live in a home near Lynita and the children. Later, when questioned about this
purchase being in violation of the JPI, he testified that Bella Kathryn was an investment property purchased
in the “normal course of business.” Near the conclusion of trial, when asked if he would sell Bella Kathryn
at this time, Eric testified that he would not agree to do so — an answer confirming Bella Kathryn was
purchased and iniproved so Bric could have a luxurious home in which to reside, rather than as an
investment property. Eric has clearly dumped $1,839,494.79 into BellaKathryn in order to create his dream
home from community funds, and totally deplete the liquidity of the community estate.

Eric has requested the Court to value BellaKathryn according to the appraisal he insisted be obtained
(knowing that such appraised value would never correspond with the community funds he spent on the
home). Fortunately, the Court has already made it clear that it is unlikely to entertain such an absurd result:

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that if he desires to do so, Plaintiff [Eric] may order an

appraisal of his Bella Kathryn residence (2911 Bella Kathryn Circle), at his expense. The

Court has informed Plaintiff that Plaintiff’ s purchase of this residence and continued use of

community funds to improve this residence appears to be a violation of the Joint Preliminary

Injunction and the Court is inclined to assess the cost value against Plaintiff. The cost of

Plaintiff’s appraisal, if performed, will be assessed against Plaintiff in the final division of
property.”

12 This action was commenced in May 2009. In December 2009, Eric took $381,984.00 in community cash to purchase
Bella Kathryn at auction. At the time, Eric was residing in the home located at 2721 Harbor Hills Lane (“Harbor Hills™), which
Eric had purchased for approximately $682,392.00 in 2007, shortly before the parties’ separated. As confirmed in his frial
testimony, Eric later sold the Harbor Hills home for $350,000.00 inMarch 2011. The sale of Harbor Hills is yet another example
of Bric’s purposeful violation of this Court’s JPI, and dissipation of available liquid and unencumbered assets.

13 Tneluded in Defendant’s Bxhibit GGGGG, and specifically DEF006483.

" tneluded in Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG, and specifically DEF006818, ©
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Order entered August 24, 2011, Pursuant to such Order, and in furtherance of fairness and equity; Eric
should be awarded the Bella Kathryn property at a value of $1,839,494.79.
(b) 5220 E. Russell Road (“Russell Road™)

As part of their investigation, Mr. Bertsch and Mr. Miller examined the history and transactions
surrounding the Russell Road property. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is the narrative prepared by Mr.
Bertsch and Mr. Miller summarizing their results .'* While it is unnecessary to restate such summary herein,
there is one major issue that warrants further discussion, siaeciﬁcally, Cal Nelson’s interest in Russell Road.

AsMr. Bertsch and Mr. Miller explain, “[The] property consisting of 3.3 acres at 5220 E. Russell
Road was purchased on November 11, 1999 for $855,945 by the Lynita Nelson Trust and the down payment
from Cal Nelson amounting to $20,000.” Title to the property was taken solely in the name of Lynita’s 1993
revocable trust.® Although Cal Nelson contributed only $20,000.00 towards Russell Road, by 2005 he
owned 100% of the property through CJE&L, LLC. Erichad Lynitatransfer 100% of the property to CIE&L
(in separate transactions explained by Mr, Bertsch and Mr, Miller) without any financial consideration.

' In 20.1 0, in violation of the JPI, Eric paid $4,000,000.00 (of which $2,777,861.55 was community
liquid cash) to purchase only a 65% interest in Russell Road from Cal Nelson, who obtained the property
ﬁom the parties virtually for free (if one were to calculate ownership percentages By contributions to the
purchase price, Cal Nelson would have a 2.28%" interest in same). During these proceedings, and again
in violation of the JPI, Eric and Cal Nelson sold Russell Road to Qasis Baptist Church (“Oasis”) for |
$6,500,000.00. According to Eric’s and Cal Nelson’s subéequent agreement, Eric is entitled to 66.67% of
fhe $6,500,000.00, and Cal Nelson is entifled to the remaining 33.33%.° Tn addition, Fric made a
$300,000.00 cash loan of community funds to Oasis for improvements,” and Oasis owes an additional
$295,000.00 for past due rents and taxes to Eric and Cal Nelson. Accordingly, the interest in Russell Road

is worth $7,095,000.00, and given the information provided by Mr. Bertsch, this Court should find that

1 Included in Defendant’s Exhibit GGQGGG, and specifically DEF(06484-DEF006487.

16 See Defendant’s Exhibit UUUU, and specifically Grant, Bargain, Sale Deed 1999112301029, executed on September
25, 1999, and recorded on November 23, 1999, contained within said Exhibit,

17 $20,000.00 (down payment)/$875,945.00 (total purchase price).
18 Included in Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGQG, and specifically DEF006487.

19 Bric admitted during his testimony on August 20, 2012, that he is entitled to 100% of the $300,000.00 loan he made
to Oasis with community funds, but claims to only be entitled to 65% of the $6,500,000.00 promissory nete and the $295,000.00

1| second promissory note for back rents and taxes.
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based on the community funds invested in Russell Road, and lack of contribution by Cal Nelson, Eric and
Lynita own a 100% interest in the three (3) Russell Road promissory notes, and award same to Eric at a
value 0f $7,095,000.00. Even if the Court accepts Eric’s position that Lynita’s transfer of her 100% interest
in Russell Road to Cal Nelson was a “legitimate transaction” (if such a finding is possible without
consideration, and notwithstanding Eric’s total lack of credibility), and that Eric only has a 66.67% interest
in the $6,500,000.00 promissory note and $295,000.00 promissory note, and 100% interest in the

$300,000.00 promissory note, Eric should be awarded the parties’ interest in the Russell Road promissory

notes at a value of $4,830,226.50 (($6,500,000.00 x .6667) + ($295,000.00 x .6667) + $300,000.00).

(1)  The Parties’ Assets and Liabilities.

(a) Assets

Attached hereto as Exhibit D is Mr. Bertsch’s breakdown of the parties” assets.® The following is

a list of assets and values as compiled by Mr. Bertsch, as well as adjusted values based on the discussions

concerning Bella Kathryn and Russell Road above, and the testimony and evidence presented at trial:

Asset Mr. Bertsch’s Value Notes/Adjusted Values

Eric Cash $1,159,769 (03/31/12) $80,000 (current value)

Eric AZ-29 Gateway lots $139,500

Russell Road Property $4,000,000 (65%) $7,095,000 (discussed above)
Family Members $35,000

Nikki Cvintavich $200,000

2911 Bella Kathryn $1,602,171 ($925,000 appraisal) | $1,839,495 (discussed above)

17 Banone Properties (Nevada)

$1,184,236

21 Banone Properties (Arizona) | $629,221

8 Banone — AZ Properties $284,122

Notes Receivable $720,761

Silver Slipper (cash) $1,568,000

MS Property (121.23 acres) $607,775

Lynita Cash $1,071,035 (03/31/12) $200,000 (current value)
7065 Palmyra $725,000 $750,000 (appraised value)
Lynita AZ-31 Gateway lots $139,500

20 Triclilded in Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG, aud specifically DEFO06657.
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5913 Pebble Beach. $75,000

Wyoming - 200 acres $405,000

830 Arnold Ave $40,000

MS Property (RV Park) $559,042

MS Property $870,193

Grotta - 16.67% (25.37 MS acres) | $21,204

Brianhead cabin and land $985,000

3611 Lindell $1,145,000

MS Property (Emerald Bay) $560,900

Total Assets $18,717,429 $20,178,249

As can be seen, Mr. Bertsch valued the community estate at $18,443,307.00. Mr. Bertsch’s value of the
parties’ cash was as of Marchi 31, 2012, however, and the adjusted values for cash are based on eéch party’s
testimony at trial. I\,ynita’s testimony regarding her remaining cash was based on the actual numbers
obtained from the bank during the August 20, 2012 trial proceedings. Eric, on the other hand, simply
estimated that he had $80,000.00 remaining in his bank account without explanation, It can only be assumed
that the vast majority of the $1,159,769 held in Eric’s bank accounts as of March 31, 2012, was expended
in advancing the frivolous legal position advocated by the ELN Trust on Eric’s behalf. The adjustments to
Bella Kathryn and Russell Road are based on the information provided in the previous subsections.

In addition, there is one asset that was not included in Mr, Bertsch’s report and the chart above,
because same was bought by Eric without anyone’s knowledge or approval. As the Court will recall, on
December 13, 2011, the parties appeared before this Court on the ELN Trust’ s Motion to Dissolve Injunction
(“Motion to Dissolve”). The Motion to Dissolve sought the release of the $1,568,000.00 held in David

Stephens, Esq.’s trust account. The ELN Trust and Eric requested release of such funds, in part, “for an

opportunity to purchase Wyoming Racing LLC, a horse racing track and RV park, for $440,000.00.”2‘_ In

2 Motion to Dissolve Injunction, pg. 6, lines 15-17.
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| fact, Eric and the ELN Trust specifically represented to the Court that the Wyoming property could not be

purchased without such funds:
[The ELN Trust] has a contract to purchase Wyoming Downs at $450,000.00 and it needs
its proceeds to complete its transaction, It has $75,000.00 down that’s going to be forfeited
under the terms of the contract at least if we don’t have the monies to close.

[12-13-11 Hearing VTS 13:52:53, by Mr, Solomon]

We’re not trying to waste money, we’re not trying to throw it away, hide it, we’re trying to
investit, and invest it for profit.

[12-13-11 Hearing VTS 13:53:31, by Mr. Solomon}

The Court, obviously not sympathetic to Eric’s pleas, and refusing to allow Eric to continue to dissipate
community funds and conduct his so called “ordinary course of business,” denied the ELN Trust’s Motion
to Dissolve, reissuing its injunction freezing the $1,568,000.00 held in Mr. Stephens’ trust account.

Despite the Court’s December 13, 2011 Order, and notwithstanding the representations quoted
above, on January 6, 2012, Eric magically concluded the purchase of the property located at 10180 State
Highway North, Uinta County, Wyoming 82930 (“Wyoming Downs property”), from Wyoming Racing,
LLC (“Wyoming Racing”), expending hundreds of thousands of additional community funds. Eric never
informed Lynita, her counsel, or the Court about this purchase.

Most alarmingly, just sixty (60) days after completing the purchase of Wyoming Downs (after the
Court implicitly denied him permission to do same), the ELN Trust filed its Motion for Payment of
Attorneys’ Fees and Costs, claiming that it was without any funds to pay its attorneys and experts, again
requesting the release of the fimds frozen in Mr. Stephen’s trust account. Nowhere in said motion did the
ELN Trust mention its purchase of Wyoming Downs — (Eric no doubt thought that the purchase of this
property was not going to be discovered by Lynita and her counsel).”

Even more shockingly, at the same time as he purchased Wyoming Downs, Eric took a loan against

|| same, cashing out any benefit that could have flowed to the community. The purchaseprice of the Wyoming

Downs property was only $440,000.00, and Eric had already put a deposit o£ $75,000.00 down towards such

2 {ynita will always wonder, given Bric’s lack of candor during these proceedings, what other secret transactions of
Eric’s have gone undiscovered. For example, in January 2012, Eric also transferred two (2) Banone properties (ie., 2209
Farmouth Circle, Las Vegas, NV, and 5704 Roseridge Ave., Las Vegas, Nevada), to his star witness, Rochelle McGowan’s
parents, and his employee, Keith Little. Fortunately, Lynita and her counsel were able to discover these two (2) additional secret
trangactions on the eve of sevond 'to Iast day of trial. : : :
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purchase, Eric borrowed $700,000.00 against the Wyoming Downs property concurrently upon the purchase
of same, thereby cashing out nearly $335,000.00 in equity that presumably existed in the property at the time
of purchase, which was mére than enough to pay the fees and costs the ELN Trust sought from Mr.
Stephen’s trust account. Of course, Eric would not rest until he saw that every liquid dollar of community
funds was spent, Fortunately, the Court would not allow the inequity Eric sought, ordered Mr. Bertsch to
provide an update of the cash available to Eric and the ELN Trust, and denied the motion for fees and costs.

The Wyoming Downs property is still owned by the parties today, held in the name of Dynasty
Development Management, LLC,* anewly formed entity. Unfortunately, it was impossible for Mr. Bertsch
to value the property since Eric hid the reacquisition. The only equitable solution is to equally &ivide the
interest in Wyoming Downs, subject to the condition that Eric be wholly responsible for the encumbrance
thereon since he has already received a $335,000.00 windfall from the property.

(bj Liabilities

Aspart of'their analysis, Mr. Bertsch and Mr, Miller examined whether the partieshad any legitimate
liabilities. Attached hereto as ExhibitE is their summary regarding liabilities.* As canbe seen, nota single
liability was verified by Mr. Bertsch and Mr. Miller. There is one (1) known and documented liability,
specifically the encumbrance Eric placed on Wyoming Downs in violation of the Cowurt’s JPI. As previously
stated, such liability should be awarded to Eric, and Lynita should still be awarded a 50% interest in
‘Wyoming Downs.
B.  Eric’s Dissipation And Waste Of Community Assets

As previously stated, Mr. Bertsch and Mr. Miller examined all the parties® expenditures from 2009
through March 31, 2012. During the process, they uncovered countless payments by Eric to related
individuals (Eric’s family members and employees). Attached hereto as Exhibit F is a sumumary of the
information concerning such payments contained in Mr. Bertsch’s and Mr. Miller’s reports (with references
to pages in the actual reports where such information can be found). The amount received by each
individual in the summary was reduced (from Mr. Bertsch’s and Mr. Miller’s numbers) for documented loan

repayments and income that was supported by 21099. Also taken out of the equation were any monies paid

B Tg avoid any confusions, Dynasty Development Management, LLC is a distinct and separate entity from Dynasty
Development Group, LLC, which has filed for bankruptey protection.

- 2 Admitted as Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG, and specifically DEF0014893-DEF14894,
10
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{| for “reimbursements” or “expenses”. Inaddition, the monies received by Cal Nelson related to the Russell

Road transaction were deducted from Mr. Bertsch’s and Mr. Miller’s total calculation of monies given to

.Cal Nelson by Eric, since such sums were already discussed and accounted for above with respect to the

Russell Road property. As can be seen, during the course of these proceedings, Eric has given related
individuals $1,329,065.25 which Eric has failed to document were anything other than gifts and
unauthorized dissipations of community funds. Such transfers should be found by this Court to constitute
community waste, with Lynita being compensated accordingly.

C. Community Farnings During The Course Of This Litigation, and Eric’s Expenditure Of Same

Attached hereto as Exhibit B, are the consolidated totals of the parties’ community earnings and

expenditures from 2009 through the first three and one-half (3 %) months of 2012, compiled by Mr. Bertsch
and Mr. Miller. Notwithstanding the fact that Eric completely closed Eric Nelson Auctioneering during this
divorce in order to intentionally reduce his income, Eric has earned significant sums of money during the
pendency of this matter. From January 2009 to April 2012, Eric’s net income from. rental and interest
payments was $1,024.822.53. Exhibit B. During the same time period, Eric had other sources of income
totaling $13,880,124.60, of which only $594,500.72 was necessary for Eric’s company operating expenses.
Exhibit B. The remaining $13,285,623.88, plus the net rental and interest income of $1,024,822.53, was
completely at Erie’s disposal. From this $14,310,446.41, Eric graciously shared $89,517.12, or 0.63%, with
Lynita (if you can credit Eric with the amounts the Court ordered him'to pay). Nevada Revised Stafutes,
Section 123.225 (2012), provides that “the respective interests of the husband and wife in community
property during continuance of the marriage relation are present, existing and equal interests.” Apparently
Eric’s couﬁsel did not advise him of the existence of this statute. In addition, Eric could not find in his
$14,310,446.41 sufficient sums to begin paying Lynita child support for raising their two (2) remaining
minor children. °
. LEGAL ANALYSIS
A.  Division Of The Parties’ Community Property and Debt

Attached hereto as Exhibit G and Exhibit H are two (2) proposed property divisions which equally

divide the parties’ community property. Exhibit G assigns a value of $7,095,000.00 to the Russell Road

% Bric’s 2010 and 2012 Testimony.
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promissory notes, and Exhibit H assigns the minimum value of $4,830,226.50 to the Russell Road
promissory notes. As discussed in the Factual Statement, the Court should accept one of these two values
(although Lynita submits that the $7,095,000.00is more fair and equitable under the circumstances). Inboth
proposed property divisions, Eric has been awarded the promissory notes associated with Russell Road, and
he can sort out his actual interest in same with his brother Cal as he pleases. In addition, in both proposed
property divisions Eric has also been awarded the promissory notes for the Banone Nevada properties he
“sold” to Rochelle McGowan’s parents and Keith Little this year in violation of the JPI, and the face value
of same have been deducted from the total value of the Banone Nevada properties, the remainder of which,
should be awarded to Lynita. It is also proposed in both scenarios that Eric be awarded Bella Kathryn at
cost, in accordance with this Court’s prior Order. Finally, in each division it respectfully requested that the
parties remain 50% joint owners in the Wyoming Downs property since no value could be assigned to same
dﬁe to Eric’s actions. Lynita respectfully requests thatthe Court enter judgment in accordance with Exhibit
G, but offers Exhibit H as a reasonable alternative should the Court disagree with her position concerning
Russell Road.

In addition, the divisions of property proposed in Exhibit G and Exhibit H are equal, and do not
compensate Lynita for her one-half (42) of the $1,329,065.25 Eric has given to related individuals during the
pendency of this case and failed to document were anything other than gifts and unauthorized dissipations
of community funds, the hundreds of thousands of dollars Lynita was forced to expend on Eric’s
unreasonable change in positions in this matter concerning the character and ownership of the parties’
community property, or the hundreds of thousands of dollars in community funds Eric wasted on such
frivolous arguments, which will be discussed in the sections that follow. The property divisions also do not
account for a lump sum award of alimony to Lynita, which the Court has indicated it is inclined to award,
also discussed below. Accordingly, afterthe Courtmakes a decisionregarding its equal division of property
amongst the parties, the Court should then shift some property awarded to Eric to Lynita to account for these
remaining issues.

Finally, there are no verified debts to be adjudicated by the Court save and except the encumbrance
on the Wyoming Downs property. As set forth in the Factual Statement, such encumbrance should be

awarded 100% to Eric since he has already received the benefit of same, with Lynita still enjoying an equal

12
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50% interest in Wyoming Downs. Although there are no documented and verifiable debts owed by the
parties, Eric has attempted to fabricate anumber of debts owed to his family members (as though he has not
given them enough ofthe parties’ property already). He has undoubtedly done this in an attempt to convince
this Court that there is less community property to award to Lynita, and to gain an unfair advantage in this
litigation. He has also done this to begin forming a basis for his family members to sue Lynita in the future
over such debts if Eric so directs — certainly Eric is not above such an underthanded strategy. Since Fric has
found it appropriate to give away such a large amount of the parties’ property to his family members, it
would also be appropriate for him to be awarded any debts owed to such family members, and to defend,
indemnify and hold Lynita harmless ﬁom same. ’fhis is the only way to protect Lynita from future,
continued harassment and oppression by Eric.

B. Eric’s Child Support Obligation

Pursuant to the parties’ Stipulated Parenting Agreement eﬁtered into by the parties on October 15,
2008, and entered as an Order of this Court on February 8, 2010, Lynita has primary physical custody of the
parties’ two (2) remaining minor children, Garett Nelson and Carli Nelson. Eric should be required to pay
Lynita monthly child support in an amount not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of his average gross
monthly income from all sources, including any passive income and/or business income, prior to the
deduction of Eric’s purported “business expenses.” At a minimum, Fric must be required to pay Lynita
$1,040.00 per month, per child, in accordance with the highest statutory presumptive maximum. Lynita is
also entitled to an award of constructive arrears from the time of the parties’ separation in Febmarsr, 2008,
to present date. See NRS 125B.030.

Furthermore, in light of Eric’s significant income and earning capacity, Eric should be required to
bear certain additional expenses on behalf of the parties’ children, including private education expenses for
Carli, who is attending Faith Lutheran, medical insurance for both of the paities’ minor children, and the
children’s extracurricular expenses. Lynita and Ericshould equally share the costs of any medical, surgical,

dental, orthodontic, psychological, and optical expenses of the minor children which are not paid by any

medical insurance covering the children, All such costs and expenses should be ordered paid pursuant to |

the Court’s standard “30/30" Rule.

13
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Lump Sum Alimony

NRS 125.510 provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

1. In granting a divorce, the court:

(@  May award such alimony to the wife or to the husband, in a specified principal sum

or as specified periodic payments, as appears just and equitable.

In Sprenger v. Sprenger, 110 Nev. 855, 859, 878 P.2d 284, 287 (1994), the Nevada Supreme Court

enumerated seven factors to be considered in determining the appropriate alimony award:

(1) the wife's career prior to marriage; (2) the length of the marriage; (3) the husband's
education during the marriage; (4) the wife's marketability; (5) the wife's ability to support
herself; (6) whether the wife stayed home with the children; and (7) the wife's award, besides
child support and alimony.*

The Court has indicated throughout these proceedings that it is inclined to award Lynita lump sum

alimony. Certainly the standards and guidelines established by the Nevada Supreme Court and Nevada
Legislature support such an award. The parties have been married for nearly thirty (30) years. During their

marriage, Eric has been the sole “breadwinmer,” while Lynita remained at home to care for the parties’ five

% Such factors also are codified in NRS 125,510, which provides as follows:

In addition to any other factors the court considers relevant in determining whether to award alimony and the
amount of such an award, the court shall consider:

(a8) The financial condition of each spouse;

®) The nature and value of the respective property of each spouse;

© The contribution of each spouse to any property held [jointly by the patties];
(d The duration of the marriage; .

(e) The income, earning capacity, age and health of each spouse;

® The standard of living during the marriage;

(® The career before the marriage of the spouse who would receive the alimony;

) The existence of specialized education or training or the level of marketable skills attained
by each spouse during the marriage;

o The contribution of either spouse as homemaker;

6)] The award of property granted by the court in the divorce, other than child support and
alimony, to the spouse who would receive the alimony; and

&) The physical and mental condition of each party as it relates to the financial condition, health
and ability to work of that spouse.

14
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(5) children, Asaresult of Eric’s earning potential, Lynita and the parties’ two (2) remaining minor children
havebecome accustomed to a certain standard of living that cannot be maintained without support from Eric.

Lynita leaves this marriage at the age of fifty-one (51). She does nothave a college degree, her last college

class (horticulture) having been completed prior to her 1983 marriage to Eric. Lynitahas not worked outside

the home since 1986, and presently has no educational training or skills with which to obtain gainful
employment. Her employment history is limited to being a sales clerk at a department store, receptionist
at a mortgage company, and runner at a law firm. Undoubtedly, Lynita would have a Vel;y difficult time
establishing a career at this stage in life. In fact, Eric has even suggested that Lynita is “mentally
challenged,” which obviously may render her unemployable.

Although Lynita should receive property of substantial value at the conclusion of this divorce, absent
an award of alimony, in all likelihood she will have to liquidate such property throughout the remainder of
her life in order to provide for herself and her minor children. Regardless of what assets the Court
determines should be awarded to Eric in light of the issues addressed above, Eric has proven that he has the
ability to earn a substantial income; in fact, Eric has openly bragged in his testimony about his business
acumen. Lynita does not have the experience, expertise, business connections, and savvy to earn an income
that is even closely comparable to Eric’s proven earning ability. Further, even if Lynita were to liquidate
her property, it is doubtful that such property alone will be sufficient to allow Lynita to live the rest of her
life in the standard that the parties were accustomed to during marriage. Eric’s ability to earn a substantial
living, which ability was established during the course of the parties’ marriage, will remain with him for the
rest of his life. In essence, Eric is walking away from this marriage with the “career asset” that led to the
accumulation of the parties’ community wealth. Lynita respectfully requests the Court award her Jump sum
alimony of not less than $1,000,000. Such an award is less than 7% of what Eric made during the course
of this litigation alone, and only 1.39 times the amount Eric determined the parties required from the ELN

and LSN Trusts on an annual basis to support their lifestyle.?

2 The Court will recall that the evidence presented at trial, and particularly the purported “Minutes” of the ELN and LSN
Trusts, demonstrates that Eric determined the parties’ needed $60,000.00 a month, or $720,000.00 per year, from the trusts to
support their lifestyle. : )
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D. Attorneys’ Fees: Why Eric Must Be Required To Pay For His Actions

Lynita should be awarded the substantial attorneys’ fees and costs she has incurred in this matter,
including the fees pﬁd to Melissa Attanasio, CFP, CDFA,* and Joseph Leaunae, CPA.® Not only would
an award of such fees and costs be appropriate under Sargeant v. Sargeant, 88 Nev. 223,227, 496 P.2d 618,
621 (1972), but such fees and costs should unquestionably be awarded pursuant to NRS 18.010(2)(5):

In addition to the cases where an allowance is authorized by specific statute, the court may
make an allowance of attorney’s fees to a prevailing party:

(b)  Without regard to the recovery sought, when the court finds that the claim,
counterclaim, cross-claim or third-party complaint or defense of the opposing party was
brought or maintained without reasonable ground or to harass the prevailing party. The court
shall liberally construe the provisions of this paragraph in favor of awarding attorney’s fees
in all appropriate sitnations. It is the intent of the Legislature that the court award attorney’s
fees pursuant to this paragraph . . . to punish for and deter frivolous or vexatious claims and
defenses because such claims and defenses overburden limited judicial resources, hinder the
timely resolution of meritorious claims and increase the costs of engaging in business and
providing professional services to the public.

(Emphasisadded): Eric’s harassing and groundless positionshave been well documented in this action. Eric
initiated this action and for nearly two (2) years, up until and including the first six (6) days oftrial, took the

position that all property held by the ELN and LSN Trusts was community property. Despite being the

Investment Trustee for the ELN Trust, and the only person authorized to institute legal action on its behalf,

|l he did nothing to join the ELN Trust to this action, leading all parties and the Court to believe that it would

be unnecessary to join the ELN Trust because Eric could simply transfer property from the trust if the Court
entered an order dividing the parties’ marital property. It was not until Eric sensed that the Court would not
grant the relief he requested that he first asserted that the ELN Trust was a necessary party.

Eric then allegedly delegated his authority to take legal action on behalf of the ELN Trust to its
Distribution Trustee, Lana Martin, alleging that there was a conflict of interest that prevented him from

exercising such powers in this action. Interestingly, Eric never perceived a conflict of interest between

28 Ms. Attanasio is a Certified Financial Planner and Certified Divorce Financial Analyst.

» pursuant to NRS 18.003, allowable costs include “reasonable fees of not more than five expert witnesses,” and “any
other reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in connection with the action,” As confirmed by Lynita during her testimony
on August 20, 2012, it would not have been possible for Lynita, her attorneys, Mr. Bertsch, or this Court to ever fully understand
the extent of the parties’ assets given the continuous, convoluted financial finagling devised by Eric to prevent anyone from every
fully understanding the parties’ financial affairs. Accordingly, 100% of the fees Lynita has been forced to incur to employ the
professional services of Ms. Attanasio and Mx. Leaunae should be reimbursed to her. Such fees will be presented in the form of
an appropriate affidavit and Memorandum of Fees and Costs at the conclusion of briefing as mstiicted by the Cotdt,
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himself and the ELN Trust during the first two (2) years of litigation when the parties appeared before this
Court on numerous occasions concerning wasteful dissipation and transfers of assets made by Eric from the
ELN Trust, without notice, and in violation of the Court’s JPL

On August 19,2012, the ELN Trust filed its pleading requesting declaratory relief from the Court.
Despite submitting to the jurisdiction of the Court, and requesting affirmative relief from this Court, the
ELN Trust moved to dismiss counterclaims subsequently brought by Lynita alleging that this Court lacked
jurisdiction over such claims, The ELN Trust then filed a motion requesting approximately $200,000.00
from funds held by the Court for payment of its attorneys’ fees and costs. The Court denied the request,
finding that the ELN Trust had sufficient funds available to pay its fees and costs. The ELN Trust later tried
to rewrite history, arguing that its request was granted because it needed this Court’s permission to pay its
fees and costs, even though it had never sought permission during the first two (2) years of litigation to pay |
all of Eric’s fees and costs, and despite the fact that it did not seek permissioﬁ to purchase the Wyoming
Downs property for $440,000.00 in January 2012, after the Court had already denied a request for release
of blocked funds to make such purchase.

Most alarmingly, and as the Court is well aware, it was Eric’s complete and unreasonable change
in positions with respect to the property held in the ELN and LSN Trusts which has caused this matter to
continue for two (2) years after the beginning of trial. It is impossible to think of a more vexatious and

frivolous claim than a claim which is taken to defeat one’s own position in the very same litisation. The

aforementioned actions have caused Lynita to incur hundreds of thousand of dollars in attorneys’ fees and
costs which she should nothave beenmadeto incur. Suchactions have also unnecessarily consumed a large
amount of judicial resources. The gamesmanship and legal maneuvering in this action by Eric and the ELN
Trust is exactly the type of litigation abuses the Legislature sought to prevent in enacting NRS 18.010.
Accordingly, Lynita should be awarded the attorneys’ fees and costs she has incurred in this matter as a
result of Eric’s and the ELN Trust’s vexatious and frivolouslegal games, in addition to one~half (4%) the fees
and costs Eric paid from community funds for such games.

Pursuant to Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 349, 455 P.2d 31, 33 (1969), in
awarding reasonable fees and costs to Lynita this Court will need to make specific findings regarding “(1)

the qualities of the advocate: his ability, his training, education, experience, professional standing and skill;
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(2) the character of the work to be done: its difficulty, its intricacy, its importance, time and skill required,
the responsibility imposed and the prominence and character of the parties where they affect the importance
of the litigation; (3) the work actually performed by the lawyer: the skill, time and attention given to the
work; (4) the result: whether the attorney was successful and what benefits were derived.” As the Court has
instructed, at the conclusion of post-trial briefing, Lynita’s counsel will submit an appropriate affidavit and
Memorandum of Fees and Costs detailing the fees and disbursements incurred by Lynita in this action, and
offer suggested findings pursuant to Brunzell.
IV. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, the Court should enter an Order denying the relief sought by Eric and

the ELN Trust, and awarding Lynita her share of the parties’ community property, alimony, child support,

and attorneys’ fees and costs.
[ ey of Augi
DATED this :J) day of August, 2012.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945

JOSEF M. KARACSONYT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 0010634
KATHERINE L. PROVOST
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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EXHIBIT A



Note 1 - 7065 Palmyra ‘

This is the current resxdence of Lymta Nelson. It has been alleged that mprovements
have been made to the property in the last two years. The parties do not agree on the value of the
Property.

Smce there is no agreement on the value of the property, it is recommended an apnraisal be.

~ made on the prop erty directed by an independent third Earg

-

 Note2-2911 ‘Bella Kathryn
This is the current residence of Eric Nelson which includes an adjacent vacant lot for

which Eric is conducting improvements. Exic has valued the property as $900,000 for the -

residence and $175,000 for the adjoining lot. Lynita does not agree and her issue is statéd below.

. According to the detailed tecords of Bno Nelson, a total amount of $1,362,612.57 has
been spent towards the property which contains ‘the house. The house was initially purchased for
$381,984.00 on 12/28/2009 and improvements have been made to the property as of 06/1 1/2011
amounting to $980,628.57. ' :

In reviewing the details of fhie house improvements on the gcneral ledger kept by Enc
Nelson, there was only one payment recorded to a relative, Paul Nelson, in the amount of .
$25,000 anddesignated as contract labor in building the Residence, There were other payments
recorded to relatives for reimbursement of materials and supplies used on the building of the
residence. None of the reimbursed amount appeared material or not related to the residence.
Those reimbursed payments were made to Paul Nelson, Cal Nelson, and to B1g Flsh, LIC, a
company owned by Cal Nelson. -

The adjoining lot was purchased on 08/1 1/2010 for a cost of $175,000. As of 06/11/2011,
improvements have been made towards the lot in the amount of $64,558.68. In tfotal, the
purchase price and addmonal Jmprovements towards this property amount to $239,558 68.

Therefore the aggrcgate cos’cs of the res1dence and adjoining lot af 06/ 11/2011amounts to
$1,602,171.25. . .

Since there is mo agreement on the value it is recomniended an appraisal be made of the
property directed by au independent third partv or a de dec1s1on that fands expended for the
property be the criteria of value.

At issue - Lynita clainms Eric has used community funds to build this residence and Jeels

- :egardless' of an appraisal, she should receive 50% on the costs to buy and build the property.
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 EXHIBILB



2009 through 2012 Consohdated Totals

ol : 20092012 Toml | 009Tofsl | 2010 Total | 2011 Tomyg P V2 Mansof]
Source & Apphcai:lon of R chtal/[ntcrcst Incomc . : 2012
| Sonrces. . '
e _[Rental & Interest Tncome | e
% " | " |Banone Houses 1 394 ,207.57 1. 392,456 43 494,626.47 |- 382,208.40. 12491627
: " |Lindell '341,971.35 115,096.00 91,527.35 110,148.00 25,200,00
: |Note Interest Income 259,633.80 142,126,498 63,529.03"]  44.183.35 9,794.93
Arnold Rent N . 14,235.19 4,594.70 2,662.88 5,254.46 1,723.15
RV Park - 42,793.08, 38,158.09 - T 4,635.00 .
Total Rental & Interést Income 2,052,841.00] . 692'.4»31.71 652,345.73 54642921 | 16163435,
Applications . ]
{Rental Expenses ' . LY . oo . :
: Rental Expenses - ©.499,578.90 | 329.361.92 78,484.23 | 69.265.81 22,466.89
] | Taxes - . -379.870.15.| - 14249718 | 130,794.78.]  €4.369.54 42.208.35
Lindell Expenses 71,204.27 | 3354567 | 24.014.40 275823 4.885.95
HOA: Fees © 3402877] . 14,755.49 14,526.08 3,815.20 532.00 |
Insurance : 4333638 | - 2474537 17,02335 | . T 1.367.66 | - e
Total:Rental Experises 1, 023 01847 54490563 | 26524289 | -147.77686 | 70.033.09
Income/Loss,.fo'r Rental/Interest 1, 024 822 331 HA7.52608 | 387,102.84 | 393650.35 |  L341%c.
Source & Apphcatmn of Other Income &Expenscs
Sources il ' - . g N
Related Ind1v1duals . 419,598.83 267,092:56 24,169.27 | 116,670.00 11,667.00°
Sale of Real Estate _ 6,250,616.46.1. 3,702,030.75 2,086,354.10 | . 352,231.61 110,000.00
Silvér Slipper & Hideaway [ncomc ) . 456,349.27 - 163,305,29 155952.85 | | 97.044.01 39547.12
-|Redemption of CD 2,504,535.34 | 2504,535.34 - . C. . -
Eric Nelson - 1,060,095.59 998,800.00 60,795.59 300,00 200,00
Other Incame 3,188,929.11 | 2,800,408.87 | . 180,422,24 12,214,65 | * 195,886.25
"Total Sources of Income » 13,880,124.60 1 10,436,669.91 | 2.507,654.05 1 . .578,460.27 |. 357300371 .
' } pplications * . . '
-7, [Investments - . 9,104,348.77 |  8,846.467.56 | 257.881.21 - |- Z
Professionals 809,107.32 72.569.44 303,058.66 423,475.22 10,000.00
Casis Baptist Church (Russcll Road,) (Asset) . 380,813:99 L - Lt - 330,813.99 -
Eric Nelson Draws and Expenses ) *.697,476.29 200,884.69 256,218.51 | .193,953.55 | . -46,419.54
| |Children Expenses . 407392131 10090235 1453566.83 | " 139363.35 21,559.80
Related Individuals . 3,900,115.09 | 1,336,784.65 | 2.382,495.36 |. 117.938.04 62,347.20
Company Operating Bxpenses -~ ~» . .594,500.72 305,645.18 136,299.39 1  128,352.91 24,203.24,
Bella Kathryn, Improvcments & E)q:enses (Encs'RcSIdcnce) N 1,839,454.79 402,000.00 | 1,257.047.67 99.866.64 . 80,580.48
. |Credit Cards. 37,325.59 15,373.37 |. - - 11,000.00 |. 10.956.22
Wyoming Downs (Asset) 80,800.00 | . - C - 76,000.00 4:300.00 |
. [Othér Individuals . 502,173.52 | 298,793.02'|  105,160.27 64,907.11 33,313.12 | .
Soris Enterprises & Larsen Company 443,672.85 |- - 199,600.00 179,558.72 63,719.13 © 79500 |
Health/Life Ingurance 75,189.41 11,552.01 . *14,899.85 40,850.45 . T.487.10
. |Lynita Nelson 89,517.12 65,505.94. 13,003.58 10,763.60 C 24400 |
Vehicles _26,321.26 10,290.42 5,503.,00 8.479.48 - 1,648.386
* [Toler Marine, Inc - 3,000.00 - - | .3 000 00 -
Other Experises 28,723.94 |  23,195.99 3,027.95 2,500.00
Totat Applications 19,019,976.99 | 11,889,964.66 | 5,060:121:00 1, 762 537 27 307,354.06
- Incomé/(Less) for Other Income & Expenses (5,135,852.39)[ (1,453,294.75) (2,552,426.95) (1,184,077.00) . 4994631
Investment Account & Line of Credit . . s .
Deposits from Line of Credit & Mellon Account 7,918,202.04 | 3,640,000.00 | 2,897.368.17 |- 1,032,000.00 | . .248,833.37
Payments towards Line of Credxt & Mcllon Acwm.mt 6,250,000.00 | 4,950,000.00 1,050,000.00 250,000.00 |- , -
Net Deposits/(Payments) ' 1,668,202.04 | ¢1,310,000,00)] 1,947.368.17 782,000.00 248.833.87 .
Net Ca[sh .S_Iurplus/(Deﬁbit) for All Sources - (2,446,827.82)| (2,615,768.67) (217,955.54) (3,424.65)| 390.321.44
L
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Note 3 - Russell Roéd Property

H.lstory

:

Propcrty consisting of 3.3 acres at 5220 B. Russell Road was purchased on November 11,

1999 for $855,945 by the Lynita Nelson Trust and the down payment from Cil Nelson

amounting to $20,000. Lynita: then became a 50% partner with Cal Nelson in a partnership

named CJE&L, LLC Whloh was formed for the purpose of rentmg the property to Cal's Blue
Water Manne

Shortly thereafter, CIE&L, LLC obtained a loan from Business Baﬂk of Nevada in the
amount of $3,100,000. The purpose of this loan was to build a building for the operations of
Cal's Blue Water Marine, Inc. The loan was to be guaranteed by Clarence and Jeanette,
: mdmdually as well as their Trust dated May 31, 2001 and also Cal's Blue Water Marine, Inc.’

. Sometime in 2004, Lymta S1gned a guatantee on the flooring contract for. the inventory of
* Cal's Blue Water Marine, Tnc. On 01/01/2005, Lynita withdrew her- gnarantee of the flooring
contract and in retum, Lynita s1gned an assignment or forfeit of her interest in the partnership to
' remove her from the property records. (The Examiner has not seen the flooring ‘agreement that
was signed by Lynita, although requested - Each of the parties claims the other has the contract).
According to the records, the forfeiture of partnership interest was tansferred to the capital -
account of Cal Nelson there bcmg no cash attached to the transax;tlon

The boat busmess failed n 2008.: At that time, the Bank demanded 2 $300 000 pay down
to keep the loan in performmg status. Bric paid the $300 000 which was secured by property
~ owned by Cal Nelson and located in Utah, .

Eric’s purchase of the’ mterest in prop erty

On or about 02/1 0/2010, Eric Nelson decided to purchase a 65% interest in the property
Eric's 65% interest is said to bave cost $4,000,000; which is comprised of the following amounts:

1) In 2009, Bric pnxchased an FDIC note on & property in Phoenix commonly
Jenown as "Sugar Daddy's" for approximately. $520,000. The source of these funds
came from the Line of Credlt The property was sold with proceeds amounting to -
$1,520,597.88. Since this was des1gned as a 1031 exchange, the proceeds were
nsed in 2010 to purchase Eric's interest in the Russell Ro ad Property.

2) As mdmated above, Bric had previously paid $300,000 to pay down theé Bank
Toan which was secured by property in Utah. In addition, Eric paid off the -
mortgage on-Cal's house amounting to $400,000. Both amounts were paid from
Eric’s Line of Credit, These two amounts aggregating $700,000 were then used as
a credit towards the purchase price for Eric's interest, :
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3) Eric gave a credit amounting to $522,138.47 which represented future
agreements with Cal and the tesmination of any present vérbal partnership
agreements, This also included money on rental payments given to Cal. ’

4) The remaining amount to fulfifl the obligation of the purchase price was o
borrow $1,257,263.67 from the Line of Credit in 2010. '

T fzerefore-the purchase of Eric's interest is comprised of the following:

v

. Paydown of Bank Loan $ 300,000.00

Pay off of personal residence of Cal Nelson. 400,000.00
Credit to Cdl Nelson for prior payments - 522,138.45
‘Amount to pay Bank Note from Sugar Daddy's 1,520,597.88
Amount to pay Bank Loan from Line of Credit’ 1,257,263.67

$ 4,000,000.00

Therefore the amount of cash contributed directly to fhe interest in the property by Eric in

2010, amounts to $2,777,861.55 (1,520,597.88 + 1,257,263.67). 'The cash reportedly paid off the -

original loan held by Business Bank-of Nevada.

According to CJE&L”’s tax returos and representations made by Cal Nelson, Cal Nelson’s
capital account includes $855,000; which represents the purchase price -of the land originally
purchesed on November 11, 1999 by the Lynita Nelson Trust as well as $501,529 in leasehold

_improvements made by Cal’s Blue Water Marine. The summary document supporting the
leaschold improvements -contribution was believed to be at cost and not the net depreciated

" yalue. As prior indicated Cal’s Blue Water Marine eventually failed in 2008, Since the Business

failure in 2008, Cal Nelson has taken distributions from CTR&L of $11,096 in 2009 and $73,978
in 2010, aggrégating to $85,074. : .

The current ownership of the 5220 E. Russell Road property is 50% by Eric Nelson

Auctioneering (an asset of the Eric Nelson Trust), 15% by the Eric Nelson Trust and 35% by’

CTB&L, LLC. (See below).

Note 3a-50% in Russell Road owned by Eric Nelson Auctioneering

In the purchase of the Russell Road Property,. the ownership of 65% o_f" the property
purchase from CJE & L, LL.C was described aboveto be $4,000,000. Eric Nelson says that 50%
of the interest was designated to be owned by Eric Nelson Auctioneering and the other 15% by

the E;ic Nelson Trust.
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Note 3b - 15% sale back to Cal Nelson for 15% interést by Exic Trust

The 15% interest is evidenced by a note in the amount of $2,000,000 the principal
amount is’ due in seven years from 2/3/2010 from Cal Nelson to Eric Nelson Trmst. The note is
secured by 15% of the real property owned by CIE & L, LLC and 15% of all rents’ collected
from the property will be recognized as interest.on the note.

Note 3¢ - Receivable from CJE & L. LLC amounting to $742.368.

- According to the 2010 tax return of CJE&L, LLC (owned 99% by Nelson Nevada Trust
(Cal’s Trust) and 1% by Cal Nelson), the company reports a liability in the amount of $742,368
"is due to Bric Nelson Auctioneering (Reported under Eric Trust - Eric Nelson Aucﬁoneenng) '
We have not recelved information as to the nature of this note.

Because of the controversv on this property, it is recommended that an appraxsal of the '
propertv be made directed by an mdenendent thivd party. )

At issue, Lynita ‘believes that Cal Nelson -has not put any capital into the investment and
therqfore the amount of this asset is 100% owned. solely by Lynita and Eric Nelson.

‘Als‘a at issue is that Lynita bought the land for 3855,000 and was f‘oraed to forfezt her interest -
through an assignment to Cal Nelson, This. issue is over a guarantee .made by Lynita on a
flooring arrangement on boats fora campany owned by Cal Nelson, named Cal's BIue Water
Marine.

S ubseglient Trapsaction

The property was sold to, the Oasis Baptist Church on 05/27/2011, prior to’ ﬂns
transaction, the church held an option to purchase for $6,500,000. The payments on the note
were to begin on 09/01/2011 Until this date, the Qasis Baptist Church was to pay $17,500 cach
month for the months of June, July, and August. Then starting on-09/01/2011 the Oasis Baptist
Church will pay interest only at 6% on $6,000,000 for 5 years and ther will have a balloon
payment due of $6,500,000.

" This contract was amended on 06/15/2011 because the Church could not get' an
exemption from property taxes unless they own the property Therefore- the original financial
arrangement hasbeen amended.

The Oasis Baptist Church needs additional mprovements in order tor bnng their'school -
over to the Russell Road property. In order to do this, they need an additional $300,000 in funds
_ for improvements to the property. Curtently, they are paying $20,000 per month space rental for
them fo conduct their school.

As of 06/15/2011, Julie Brown loaried $300, 000 to the Oasis Baptist Church and has a 1st. ‘/ _
Note/Deed on the property
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A 2nd Nole/Deed is placed on the property to' recapture all-back rents and taxes in the '
amount of $295,000. The 2nd Note/Deed is shared 1/3xd to Erc Nelson Aunctioneering, 1/3rd to
the Erie Nelson Trust and 1/3rd to CJE&L, LLC. . f

Therefore the remaining amount of $6,500,000 through subordination has become a 3rd
.Note/Deed in the favor of shared 1/3rd to Eric Nelson Aucuoneermg, 1/3xd to the Eric Nelson
. Trust and 1/3rd to CJE&L, LLC.

The current terms are to pay $17,500 per month unti} 09/01/2011 and $30,000 thereafter.
. However they may ask that the paymen’cs be extended to 12/01/2011 before they begm 16 pay

‘' $30,000 per month for their purchasé of the property.

- . We understand there is 2 servicing agreément fo collect the mortgage payments. We do
- not know the-entity that the servicing arrangement is contracted.

The servicing agency is an issue with Lynita.
Note 4 - Brianhead, Utah

] The property located in Brianhead, Utah includes 2 cabin on 150 acres. In addltlon to the
- property and building, the ownership includes water nghts

Eric ongmally valued the asset at $3,000,000 bu’c now believes the property has a value |
of apprommately $2,000,000. Lynita states the property should ‘bring $2 000 000 at sale, which is
her preference .

.. It appears there is an agxeement on the value of this prupertv However. thexe is no
© agreement on the dlsgosmon of the asset. As a result, a tlurcl-partv apgra.lsal may be

required to determine the value either ]ggty should nax fo bux the other one ouf; .

- Note 5 3611 Lmdell -

This property is an office complex The complex has 13,040 square feet and is the
location .of Bric Nelson offices. Eric collects the monthly rents as well as pays for the monthly
majntenance. . )

Both income and expenses will be listed in the Sourcee of Income and Expenses report.

Smce there is a disasreement about the value of the office bmldmo it is recommended an

appralsal by made of the properg by an indep endent thu-d partv

Note§ - 5913 Pebble Beach :

This property is owned by the LSN Nevada Trust and is oceupied by Lymta's sister,
* Thelma. The mortgage of $69,000 has been paid off and the property is currently unencumbered.
Tt appears that neither party is interested in the property and may become a non—1ssue
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EXHIBIT D



Fric Nelson

Approximate Cash 1,159,769 jAs of 3/31/2011
’ Trust AZ-29 Gateway Lots 139,500 {Agreed Earlier
: Russell Road Property (65%) 4,000,000 |Court Accepted
Individually |Family Members 35,000 |Face Value
Nikki Cvintavich 200,000 |Face Value
Banone 2911 Bella Kathryn Circle (Resxdencc) 1,602,171 |Costs (Appraisal $925 000)
17 Nevada Rental Properties 1,184,236 [Costs
21 Arizona Rental Properties 629,221 [Costs
. Notes Receivable 720,761 |Face Value
Banone-AZ {8 Properties 284,122 |Costs
Dynasty Silver Slipper Casino 1,568,000 |Settlement
Mississippi Property (121.23 aores) 607,775 | Appraisal
. 12,130,555
* SEE ATTACHED DISCRIPTION OF LIABILITIES
Lynita Nelson .
:  Approximate Cash 1,071,035 |As of 3/31/2011
Trust 7065 Palmyra (Residence) . 725,000 |Preliminary Appraisal
’ AZ-31 Gateway Lots 139,500 |Agreed to Value Earlier -
5913 Pebble Beech (Sisters House) 75,000 jAgreed to Value Earlier
Wyoming ~ 200 acres 405,000 |Appraisal .
830 Amold Ave. Greenville, Misg 40,000 [Agreed to Value Ea:her
Mississippi Property - RV Park 559,042 |Appraisal .
Mississippi . 870,193 jAppraisal
Grotta 16.67% (25.37 acres) 21,204 |Appraisal ($127,226)
‘ . ) : 3,905,974
Eric and Lynita (Each Trust awns 50%) °
Trust .
Brianhead Cabin 985,000 {Appraisal
43611 Lindell (Office Complex) 1,145,000 |Appraisal
Mississippi Property (Emerald Bay) . 560,900 |Appraisal
’ ’ . 2,690,900 R

t:\Examinations\Nelson vs. Nelson\Reports\Trust Ownership --Distribution
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EXHIBIT E



Lj tah Cabin - Brisnhead Arca

Eric reports that there is a verbal agreement with Eric's sister, Nola Hatber, and her

husband, Paul Hatber, to not split up or sale property due to the pond and proximity to the
Harber's property. No Value of liability stated

Wyoming Property

Eric teports a hablh‘cy to Eric's brother and sister, Paul Nelson and Aleda Nclson
respectively, by proof of an operating apreement stating owncrshxp in Wyoming Equéstrian p

Estates, LLC. Agreement provided is not signed by either party. Property is curréntly titles
in the LSN Nevada Trust as 100% owned.

MS Bay (200+ acres in Mississippi)
' Eric reports 2 contingent lability due to wetland fssues. No Valueds given for Hability

Eric réports & contingent liability relating to the Maness lawsuit of $1,000,000 for slander
of title. Tetter from Bric's attotney Harold Duke indicates it is his belief the lawsuit i 1s not
of true merit, Maness' are currently seeking partial summary judgment.

Eric reports a contmgent liab'iiity relating to Frank Soris whereby approxintately 30 acres
are cutrently titles to Frank Soris Family Trust. Bric represcntcd to us that Frank Soris has

deeded this propcrty back to Dynasty but has not been recorded yet, Erank Soris' collateral _
has since been substituted by 20 homes in the Phoenix Arizona area.

Eric reports that DDJ has a $1,000,000 }is pendens on Dynasty owned property. “
‘Bob Martin loaned Dynasty $200,000 and is secured by the 120 acres of Dynasty land

Harold Duke, attorney for hnc Nelson. in Mlsslssxppx, has a claim f01 legal fees against
Dynasty's 120 acres. No amonnt of fecs has been determined

Cliff McCarlie has a 3% claim against 120 acres of Dyn,asty's land -

‘Dynasty

'l-larold Duke, attorney for Erie Nelson in Mississippi, has a $400,000 claim against
Dynasty' .
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’ Grotta, LLC has an option as peteentage of‘ ownership of 34% in Silver Slipper for an
investrnent of $500,000 2

Paul Nelson has an option as a perccntage of owncrship of 34% in 8i}

ver Slipper for cash
call of $81,000 plus interest in March 2007 '

Robert and Lana Martin has an option as a percentage of ownership of 34% in Silver

Slipper for an investment of $375,000

Mike Cure has an option 252 percentage of ownership of 34% in Silver Slipper

Cliff MeCarlie has an optionas a pcrccnt'agc of ownership of 34% in Silver Slipper

Banone, LY.C

Eric teports an ‘agreement with Cal Nelson for profits from sale of asqets/busmess
percentages, A copy of an unsigned agreement has been provided,

Banone-AZ, LLC

Brle reports an agreement with Paul Nelson for profits from sale of assets/buémess
percentapes. A copy of an unsigned agroerent has been provided,

Soris Transaetion

Transferred appmximatcy $737,000 worth of houses against debt of approximately

$1,360,000, Has a c,ontmgont Jiability of‘$623 000 if market valué of houses doeg net meet’
the $1,360,000. .

Hideaway

Eric reports a threat of a lawsult of $3,000,000 by Mr. Bieri. No evidence of lawsuit filing
‘as of 10/11/11

DEFOOIHE9H
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Exhibit G

- $6,500,000 Russell

Bertsch
Report
Asset Value

Bertsch Report Notes

Adjustment

Award to
Wife

Award to
Husband

Nates

Eric Nelson

Approximate Cash

1,159,768As 0f3/31/2011

{1,079,769)

80,000

As of 8/20/2012

Trust

AZ-29 Gateway Lots

139,500]Agreed Earlier

139,500

Russell Road Praperty (100%)

4,000,000|Ceurt Accepted

2,500,000

6,500,000

Back Rent/Taxes (10034}

295,000

295,000

School/Improvements (100%)

300,000

300,000

lndivldualiy

{Farily Members

35,000|Face Value

35,000

Nikki Cvintavich

200,000{Face Vajue

200,000

Banone

2911 Belia Kathryn Circle (Rasidence)

1,602,171 Costs (Appraisal $925,000)

237,324

1,839,485

As of 3/31/2012

17 Nevada Rental Properties (15 Actual)

1,184,236!Casts

911,841

4412 Baxter, Las Vegas

(121,239]

5314 Clover Blossom Court, N Las Vegas

1301 Heather Ridge, N Las Vegas

6213 Anaconda, Las Vegas

1608 Rusty Ridge Lane, Henderson

2209 Farmouth Circle, Nevada (sold)

88,166

3301 Terra Bella Drive, Nevada

4133 Campass Rase Way, Nevada

4601 Cancord Village Dr, Nevada

4612 Sawyer Ave, Nevada

4820 Marnell Or, Nevada

5113 Churchill Ave, Nevada

5704 Roseridge Ave, Nevada (sold)

63,000

6301 Cambrla Ave, Nevada

6304 Guadalupe Ave, Nevada

21 Arizona Rental Propertias (23 Actual)

629,221 Costs

" 750,450

Mesa Vista - Lot 67 {Deeded Back}

121,228

Mesa Vista (5 acres)

Mesa Vista - Lot 68 (Deeded Back)

1628 W Darral Road, Arlzana

1830 N 66th Drive, Arlzana

1837 N S9th Street, Arlzona

2220 W Tonto Street, Arizona

3215 W Roma Ave, Arlzona

3307 W Thomas Road, Arizana

2332 N 80th Lane, Arizana

3415 N 84th Lane, Arizona

3424 W Bloomfield Road, Arizona

3631 N 81st Ave, Arizona

4141 N 34th Ave, Arizona

4541 N 76th Ave, Arizona

4816 S 17th Street, Arizona

5014 W Cypress Street, Arizona

5518 N 34th Drive, Arizona

6172 W Flllmore Street, Arizona

6202 S 43rd Street, Arizona

6720 W Cambridge Ave, Arizona

6822 W Wilshire Drive, Arizona

6901 W Coalidge Street, Arizona

Notas Receivable

720,761(Face Value

625,761

R&D Customer Builders-DMV Lot 16-17 (secured)

Advantage Construction - MV Lot 37 {secured)

Gerald & Unda Fixsen-MV Lot 52{securad)

Gerald & Linda Fixsen-MV Lot 53(secured)

Joa Williams & Sherry Fixsen-MV LotS4(secured)

Bldeq, [nc-MV Lot 61{secured)

Cary & Troy Flxsen-MV Lot 98{securead)

Amada & Chrls Stromberg {secured by Condo In PA)

Michael & Lyndia Asquith-MV LatS0 {secured)

JB Ramoas Trust {securad by 436 Eurapa Way}

Katherine Stephens (secured by 1601 Knoll Heights)

Chad Ramos (secured 7933 Dovar Shares)

Alicia Harrisan (securad by 1025 Academy)

95,000

Eric T Nelson (sacurad by 8619 W Mohave AZ)

Bancne-AZ

284,122

4838 W Berkeley Rd, Arizona

8 Properties . 284,122 [Costs

8239 W Avalon Oy, Arizona

2014 N 50th Dy, Arizona

5901 Clarendon Ave, Arlzona

8135 W Sells Rd, Arizona

6311 W Monte Vista Rd, Arizona

"1323 W Apache St; Arizona

4105 N 109th Dr, Arizana

(1
(2)
€}

)

(s}

)

@

(6)
(6)

{4a)




Exhibit G - $6,500,000 Rusself

Bertsch
Report Award to Award ta
Asset Value Bertsch Report Notes | Adjustment Wife Husband Notes
Dynasty Silver Slipper Casing 1,568,000{Settlement 1,568,000 (7)
Misslsslppl Property (121,23 acras) 607,775]|Appralsal 607,775
Dynasty Dev Mgt LLC |Wyoming Downs Track - 50% - TBD (8)
12,130,555
*SEE ATTACHED DISCRIPTION OF LIABILITIES
Lynlita Nelson
Approximate Cash 1,071,035|As of 3/31/2011 (871,035) 200,000 As of 8/20/2012
Trust 7065 Palmyra (Rasidence) 725,000|Preliminary Appralsal 25,000 750,000 Per Appraisal
AZ-31 Gateway Lots 139,500} Agread ta Value Earlier 139,500
5913 Pebhle Beech (Sisters House) 75,000|Agreed to Value Earlier 75,000
Wyoming - 200 acres 405,000 Appraisal 405,000
830 Arnold Ave. Greenville, Miss 40,000{Agreed to Value Earlier 40,000
MissIssippi Property- RV Park 559,042 Appraisal 559,042
Mi 1pi 870,193 | Appraisal 870,193
Grotta 16.67% (25.37 acres) 21,204 Appralsal ($127,226) 21,204
Dynasty Dev Mgt LLC |Wyoming Downs Track - 50% - TBO (8)
3.905.9741
Eric and Lynita (Each Trust owns 50%)
Trust
Brianhead Cahin 985,000|Appraisal 585,000
3611 Lindel (Office Complex} 1,145,000 Appraisat 1,145,000 {9)
MissIssippl Property (Emerald Bay) 560,300|Appraisal 560,900
2.690.900
llsub Total Assets . 18,727,429 1406520 | 9,801,013 | 10,242,936
Equallzation 175,961 (175,961)
Total Assets after Equallzation 10,066,974 10,066,974
Attorney/Expert Fees - To Be Determined by Court
Back Spousal Suppart - To Be Determined by Court
Back Child Support 30,016 {30,016)
Waste Claim ~ $1,329,065 (divded by 2} 664,532 {664,532)
Sub Total Reimbursements 694,548 (694,548}
Total Assets/Reimbursements exclusive of attorney/expert fees & back spousal supoort | [ 1e761522] 937242 |

(1) tarry Bertsch number was caurt accepted prior to the sale of the praperty for $6,500,000, The sale accurred an 5/27/11 to Oasls Baptist Church through a prornissonf note.

{2) Per Nick Miller at Larry Bertsch's offica, $295,000 was a paper transaction anly for the back rent & taxes, Back taxes of $33,150 were possibly paid in the $80,000 closing casts

o Old Republlc Title on 5/27/11

(3) Per Erlc's testimony an 8/20/12, Eric L. Nelson NV Trust Joaned $300,000 ta Oasls Baptist Church.
(4) Property and Notes Receivahle listed under Larry L Bertsch Report dated 7/5/1% with bates stamp DEFO06477 to OEF006480.

(4a) At the time of Larry Bertch's repart, documentation on the notes were not obtained.

(S) Bath propertias have been sold. Need proceeds frorm the sates.
(8} Propertieswere moved from Nevada praperties listed under Banane as they are lacated In Arlzona, Adjustments have been made for the changes.

(7) Cash at Qave Stephens Trust Account

(8) Dynasty Oevalopment Managemant LLC s a new entity established by Erie during the divarce praceedings.
(9} Lindell manthly rents number aequired fram appraisal, assumes Eric pays $3,200 & manth.

bt i p e gttt
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Exhiblt H - 2/3 Russell

Asset

Bertsch
Report

Valua Bertsch Report Notes

Adjustiment

Award to
Wife

Award to
Husband

Notes .

Eric Nelsan

Approximate Cash

1,159,769 |As of 3/31/2011

(1,075,763}

80,000

As 0f8/20/2012

Trust

AZ-29 Gateway Lots

139,500|Agreed Earlier

133,500

Russell Road Property (66.67%)

4,000,000{Court Accepted

338,550

4,333,550

@

Back Rent/Taxas (66.67%)

196,677

196,677

(2)

School/Improveraents (100%)

300,000

300,000

)

Individually

Family Members

35,000|Face Value

35,000

Nikki Cvintavich.

200,000|Face Value 4

200,000

Banone

2911 Bella Kathryn Circle (Residence)

1,602,171|Costs (Appraisal $925,000}

237,324

1,838,495

As 0f3/31/2012

17 Nevada Rental Propertles (15 Actual)

1,184,236{Costs

(121,229}

S11.841

4412 Baxter, Las Vegas

4

5314 Clover Blossom Court, N Las Vegas

1301 Heather Ridge, N Las Vegas

6213 Anaconda, Las Vegas

1608 Rusty Ridge Lane, Headerson

2209 Farrnouth Circle, Nevada (sold}

88,166

)

3301 Terra Bella Drive, Nevada

4133 Compass Rose Way, Nevada

4601 Concard Village Dr, Nevada

4612 Sawyer Ave, Nevada

4820 Marnell Dr, Nevada

5113 Churchill Ave, Nevada

5704 Roseridge Ave, Nevada (sold)

63,000

{5}

6301, Cambria Ave, Nevada

6304 Guadalupe Ave, Nevada

21 Arizona Rentai Propertias {23 Actual}

628,221 |Casts

121,228

750,450

{4}

Mesa Vista - Lot 67 (Deeded Back)

Mesa Vista (5 acras)

{8)

Mesa Vista - Lot 68 (Deeded Back)

)

1628 W Dacrel Road, Arizana

1830 N 66th Drive, Arizona

1837 N 58th Street, Arizona

2220 W Tonto Street, Arlzana

3225 W Roma Ave, Arlzana

3307 W Thamas Road, Arfzona

3332 N 80th Lane, Arizona

3415 N B4th Lane, Arizona

3424 W Bloomfiald Road, Arizona

3631 N 81st Ave, Arlzona

4141-N 34th Ave, Arizona

4541 N 76th Ave, Arizona

4816 S 17th Street, Arizona

5014 W Cypress Street, Arlzona

5518 N 34th Drive, Arizona

6172 W Fillmore Street, Arizona

6202 § 43rd Street, Arizana

6720 W Cambridge Ave, Arlzona

6822 W Wilshire Drive, Arizona

6901 W Coalidge Street, Arizona

Notes Receivable (Awarded to Hushand)

720,761 |Face Value

431,141

{42}

R&D Customer Bullders-DMV Lot 16-17 {secured)

Advantage Canstruction - MV Lot 37 (secured)

Gerald & Linda Flxsen-MV Lot 52(secured)

Gerald & Linda Fixsen-MV Lot 53{securad)

Joe Willlams & Sherry Fixsen~-MV LatS4(secured)

Bidea, Inc-MV Lot 61(secured)

Cary & Troy Flxsen-MV Lot 98(secured)

Amada & Chris Stromberg [secured by Condo in PA}

Michael & Lyndia Asquith-MV Lot50 (secured)

Eric T Nelson (sacured by B619 W Mohave AZ)

Notes Recaivable {Awarded to Wife)

283,620

(4a)

1B Ramos Trust {securad by 438 Europa Way)

Katherine Stephens {securad by 1601 Knol| Helghts)

Chad Ramas (secured 7933 Dover Shares)

Alicia Harrison {secured by 1025 Academy)

fanane-AZ

8 Properties -

284,122|Costs

284,122,

4838 W Berkeley Rd, Arizona

8239 W Avalon Dr, Arfzana

2014 N 50th Dr, Arizona

5901 Clacendon Ave, Arizona

8135 W Sells Rd, Arizona

69 1T W Monte Vista R, Afizona

1323 W Apache $t, Arlzona




Exhibit H - 2/3 Russell

Bertsch
Report Award to Award to
Asset Value Bertsch Report Notes | Adjustment Wife Husghand Nates
4105 N 105th Or, Arizana ‘
Dynasty Sliver Slipper Casing 1,568,000]Settlement 1,568,000 (7)
Misclssipp! Property (121.23 acres) 607,775)Appraisal 607,775
Dynasty Dev Mgt LLC {Wyoming Downs Track ~ 50% - T8D ) (8)
12230, 55¢]
*SEE ATTACHED DISCRIPTION OF LIABILITIES
Lynita Nelson
Approximate Cash 1,071,035|As of 3/31/201L {871,035) 200,000 ) As of 8/20/2012
Trust 7065 Palmyra (Residence) 725,000| Preliminary Appralsal 25,000 750,000 Par Appraisal
AZ-31 Gateway Lots 138,500|Agreed to Value Earlier 139,500
5913 Pebble Beech (Sisters House) 75,000|Agreed to Value Earlier 75,000
Wyomning - 200 acres 405,000|Appraisat 405,000
830 Arnald Ave. Greenville, Miss . 40,000|Agreed to Value Earlier 40,000
Mississippi Property- RV Pack 559,042{Appraisal 559,042
Misstssippl 870,193 |Appraisal © -’ . 870,293 | .
Grotta 16.67% (25.37 acres) 21,204{Appraisal {$127,226) 21,204
Dynasty Dev Mgt LLC |Wyoming Dawns Track - 50% « TED X . (8)
. 3,905,974
Eric and Lynlta (Each Trust owns 509}
Trust
head Cabin 985,000 Appraisal 985,000
3611 Lindel( (Office Complex) 1,145,000| Appralsal . 1,145,000 i (9)
Misslesippi Property (Emerald Bay) 560,900|Appraisal 560,900
2,690,900
Sub Total Assets ) 18727,428| (858,253) 9,300,372 8,568,804
Equallzation i (365,784) 365,784
Total Assets after Equailzation i ) 8,934,588 8,934,588
Attorney/Expert Fees - Ta Be Determined by Court
Back Spousal Support - To Be Determined by Court
Back Child Support 30,016 (30,016)
Waste Claim - §1,329,065 {divided by 2) K 664,532 {664,532)
Suh Total Reimbursements - . . 694,548 {624,548)
Totai Assets/Reimbursements exclusive of attorney/expert fees & back spousal support [ | 9,629,136 | 8,240,048 |

(1) Lacry Bertsch number was caurtaccepted prior to the sale of the property for 6,500,000, The sale oceurred on $/27/11. tn Gesis Baptist Church through a promissory note.

{2} Per Nick Miller at Larry Bertsch's office, $795,000 was 2 paper transaction only for the back rent & taxes, Back taxes of $33,150 were possibly paid-in the $80 000 closing costs
ta Old Repuhfic Title on 5/27/11

(3 Par Erlc's testimony on 8/20/12, Eric L Nelsoa NV Trust foaned $300,000 to Qasis Baptists Church.

{4) Property and Notes Recelvable listed under Larry L Sertsch Report dated 7/5/11 with bates stamp DEFO06477 ta DEFGO6480,

{4a) At the time of Larry Bertch's report, documentation on the notes were not chtalned,

(5) Both properties have been sold, Need proceeds from the sales,

{6) Propertias were movVed from Nevada properties listed tnder Banune as they are [ocated In Arlzona. Adjustments have been made for the changes,

{7) Cash at Dave Stephens Trust Account ‘
(8) Dynasty Development MansgementLLC is a new entity established by Erle durlng the divorce promeed[ngS.

{9] Lindell monthly rents number acqulred from appralsal, assumes Erlc pays $3,200 a month.
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2009 through 2012 Consolidated Totals

‘ 3 1/2 Months of|
Aééiicel& Alpphcatlon of Rental/Interest Income 2009 - 2012 Total| 2009 Total 2010 Total 2011 Total 2012 '
_____ Sources
Rental & Interest Income
Banone Houses 1,394,207.57 392,456.43 494,626.47 382,208.40 124,916.27
Lindell 341,971.35 115,096.00 91,527.35 110,148.00 25,200.00
Note Interest Income 259,633.80 142,126.49 63,529.03 44,183.35 9,794.93
Arnold Rent 14,235.19 4,594.70 2,662.88 5,254.46 1,723.15
RV Park -42,793.09 38,158.09 - 1 4,635.00 -
__ | __ | Total Rental & Interest Income 2,052,841.00 | . 692,431.71 652,345.73 546,429.21 161,634.35
Applications
Rental Expenses ‘
Rental Expenses ~499,578.90 1329,361.92 78,484.28 69,265.81 22,466.89
Taxes ~379,870.15 142,497.18 130,794.78 64,369.94 42,208.25
Lindell Expenses 71,204.27 33,545.67 24,014.40 8,758.25 4,885.95
B HOA Fees 34,028.77 14,755.49 14,926.08 3,815.20 532.00
Insurance 43,336.38 24,745.37 17,023.35 | . 1,567.66 -
Total Rental Expenses 1,028,018.47 544,905.63 265,242.89 -147,776.86 70,093.09
| - , |
Income/Loss, for Rental/Interest 1,024,822.53 147,526.08 387,102.84 398,652.35 91,541.26
Source & Application of Other Income & Expenses
Sources
Related Individuals 419,598.83 267,092.56 24,169.27 116,670.00 11,667.00
Sale of Real Estate 6,250,616.46 | 3,702,030.75 | 2,086,354.10 352,231.61 110,000.00
Silver Slipper & Hideaway Income . 456,349.27 163,805.29 155,952.85 97,044.01 39,547.12
Redemption of CD 2,504,535.34 | 2,504,535.34 - . -
Eric Nelson 1,060,095.59 998,800.00 60,795.59 300.00 200.00
Other Income 3,188,929.11 | 2,800,405.97 | .180,422.24 12,214.65 195,886.25
Total Sources of Income - 13,880,124.60 | 10,436,669.91 | 2.507,694.05 578,460.27 357,300.37
Applications
] Investments 9,104,348.77 | 8,846,467.56 257,881.21 - -
i Professionals '  809,107.32 72,569.44 303,058.66 423,479.22 10,000.00
Oasis Baptist Church (Russell Road) (Asset) 380,813.99 - C- 380,813.99 -
Eric Nelson Draws and Expenses 697,476.29 200,884.69 256,218.51 193,953.55 46,419.54
u Children Expenses 407,392.13 100,902.35 145,566.83 139,363.15 21,559.80
| [Related Individuals 3,900,115.29 | 1,336,784.69 | 2,382,495.36 117,988.04 62,847.20
Company Operating Expenses 594,500.72 305,645.18 136,299.39 128,352.91 24,203.24
Bella Kathryn Improvements & Expenses (Eric's Residence) 1,839,494.79 402,000.00 | 1,257,047.67 99,866.64 80,580.48
Credit Cards 37,329.59 15,373.37 - 11,000.00 10,956.22
Wyoming Downs (Asset) 80,800.00 | . - - 76,000.00 4,800.00 |
Other Individuals 502,173.52 298,793.02 105,160.27 64,907.11 33,313.12
Soris Enterprises & Larsen Company 443,672.85 199,600.00 179,558.72 63,719.13 795.00
Health/Life Insurance 75,189.41 11,952.01 14,899.85 40,850.45 . 7,487.10
Lynita Nelson 89,517.12 65,505.94 13,003.58 10,763.60 244,00
Vehicles 26,321.26 10,290.42 5,903.00 8.479.48 1,648.36
Toler Marine, Inc 3,000.00 - - - 3,000.00 -
Other Expenses 28,723.94 23,195.99 3,027.95 - 2,500.00
Total Applications 19 019,976.99 | 11,889,964.66 | 5,060,121.00 | 1,762,537.27 307,354.06
|
" |Tncome/(Loss) for Other Income & Expenses (5.139,852.39)| (1,433,294.75)| (2,552,426.95)] (1,184,077.00)]  49.94631
l )
'— ‘fﬂ;Lstment Account & Line of Credit
Deposits from Line of Credit & Mellon Account 7,918,202.04 | 3,640,000.00 | 2,997,368.17 | 1,032,000.00 | . 248,833.87
Payments towards Line of Credit & Mellon Account 6,250,000.00 | 4,950,000.00 | 1,050,000.00 250,000.00 .
Net Deposits/(Payments) 1,668,202.04 | (1,310,000.00)] 1,947,368.17 782,000.00 248,833.87
Net Cash Surplus/(Deficit) for All Sources (2.446,827.82)| (2,615,768.67)] (217,955.94) (3,424.65)]  390,321.44
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CLERK OF THE COURT

ORDR .

. THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP :
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ. '
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No, 008414
17435 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210
Email: info@dickersonlawgroup.com

Attorneys for Defendant/Counterclaimant
LYNITA SUE NELSON :

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

s
_ CASE NO. D-09-411 ¢37-D
Plaintiff/ Counterdefendant,

DEPT NO. “Q"[

V.
LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

)

. ORDER

This matter coming on for heanng on this 2™ day of March 2011, before the
Honorable Judge Frark P. Sullivan, upon DEFENDANT’s MOTION FOR
TEMPORARY SUPPORT, FOR RELEASE OF INFORMATION, FOR AN AWARD
OF ATTORNEYS FEES AND RELATED RELIEF; PLAINTIFF's OPPOSITION TO
DEFENDANT’s MOTION and COUNTERMOTION TO REQUIRE DEFENDANT
TO SHARE IN COMMUNITY LIABILITIES, FOR SCHEDULING OF TEN (10)
TRAIL DATES CERTAIN IN SEPTEMBER/OCTOBER 2011, FOR CERTAIN

RELIEF REGARDING THE “MISSISSIPPI” INVESTMENT, FOR SANCTIONS :

_ S
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AND' ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS; and simultaneously for hearing on-

DEFENDANT’S EXTENSION OF TPO IN CASE T-11-131443 and PLAINTIFF'S
MOTION TO DISSOLVE TFPO, and ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ., and
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ., of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, appearing
on behalf of Defendant, LYNITA NELSON, and Defendant being present; DAVID A,
STEPHENS, ESQ., of STEPHENS, GOURLEY & BYWATER, P.C., and JAMES J.
JIMMERSON, ESQ., of JIMMERSON HANSEN, P.C., appearing on behalf of
Plaintiff, ERIC NELSON, and Plaintiff being present; and the Court having reviewed
the pleadings and papers on file herein, and having heard the arguments of counsel and
the partiés, and good cause appearing, issues the following orders:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED ADJUDGED and DECREED, that the TPO is
extended for six (6) months, until September 2, 2011;

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff may pick up the minor child, Carli
Nelson, from Las Vegas Day School and may‘pick up the minor children, Carli and
Garett Nelson, from church located at Monte Cristo and Oakey. The honk and
seatbelt rule shall be utilized and enforced.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff may attend the minor children’s
sporting events at various locations. However, Plaintiff is not to approach, harass, or
confront the Defendant. While attending sporting events Plaintiff is to sit on the
opposite side of where Defendant is seated.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff may contact the children directlyvia |

their cell phones or text concerning changes to the children’s schedules.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that all prior orders contained in the TPO,
including all ordexs as to the 100 yards distance to be maintained, stand.

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that the hearing on Defendant’s Motion for Order
to Show Cause set for March Zi, 201 1‘stands. |
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ITS IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Court will appoint a forensic accountant
to review the financial records at issue in this litigation, Counsel will be notified once
the Court has appointed its forensic accountant.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant is entitled to all information |-
concerning the “Mississippi” assets, including information relating to the parties’
interest in the Silver Slipper casino operations. Defendant may contact and speak with
Paul Alanis and any other individual with knowledge of and information pertaining to
the “Mississippi” assets. |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the issues of spousal support and attorneys
fe‘es are continued pending the issuance of a report by the Court’s appointed forensic
accountant. .

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a Return Hearing on the appointment of the
Court’s forensic accountant is set for hearing on March 21, 2011 at 1:30 p.m.

DATED this QN _dayof Q0. 2011

3

Approved as to Form and Content: Submitted by:,
STEPHENS GOURLEY & BYWATER THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

By Nued 5T 5

DAV]I) A. STEPHENS , ESQ.
' Nevada Bar No. 000902
3636 N. Rancho Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89130
Attorneys for Plaintiff

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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M DICKERSON LAW GROUP )
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ, e S
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar No. 008414
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600

Facsimile: (702) 388-0210
Email: info@dickersonlawgroup.com

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

e’ e’

Plaintiff, CASE NO. D-09- 41 1537-D

- DEPT. O,
V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON, 02/22/2011

10:30 AM
Defendant.

NOTICE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE TO THIS MOTION WITH
THE CLERK OF THE COURT AND TO PROVIDE THE UNDERSIGNED WITH A COPY OF
YOUR RESPONSE WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION. FAILURE
TO FILE A WRITTEN RESPONSE WITH THE CLERK OF THE COURT WITHIN TEN (10)
DAYS OF YOUR RECEIPT OF THIS MOTION MAY RESULT IN THE REQUESTED RELIEF
BEING GRANTED BY THE COURT WITHOUT HEARING PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED
HEARING DATE.

MOTION FOR TEMPORARY SUPPORT, FOR RELEASE OF INFORMATION,
FOR AN ORDER ENJOINING ERIC FROM TAKING CERTAIN ACTIONS,
FOR MONITORING BY THIS COURT OR APPOINTMENT OF A RECEIVER,
AND FOR AN AWARD OF ATTORNEYS FEES

 COMES NOW Defendant, LYNITA SUE NELSON, by and through her
attorneys, ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ,, and KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ,, of

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP and respectfully moves this Honorable Court for the

following relief:
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1.) An order requiring Plaintiff, ERIC L. NELSON (“Eric”) to equally divide all income
received from the parties’ commercial building (“Lindell”), rental properties (“BanOne”), notes
receivable (“Notes™) and commercial lease (“Russell Road™) with Defendant, LYNITA S.NELSON
(“Lynita”) during the pendency of this action as and for temporary spousal support;

2.) An order requiring Eric to sign a written authorization allowing Paul Alanais to-
release all information relating to the Silver Slipper to Lynita, orif Eric will not do so, a Court Order
authorizing such release; |

3) An order enforcing the Joint Preliminary Injunction and enjoining Eric from further
encumbering any of the parties’ assets or negotiating any additional “deals™ which have a negative
impact on the income to be received during the pendency of this action;

4.) An order requiring Eric to pay to The Dickerson Law Group attorneys fees in the
amount of $50,000 for the cost of bringing this motion and the cost of future trial proceedings; and

5) Any other ofders that this Court deems necessary and appropriate.

. This Motion is made and based upon the records, files and pleadings On.ﬁle herein, the Points
and Authorities submitted herewith, the Affidavits submitted in support of this moﬁon, and such
other and further evidence as may be adduced at the heanng of this matter. |

DATED this M day of January, 2011.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada §9134
Attorneys for Defendant




NOTICE OF MOTION
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the under signed will bring the foregoing MOTION FOR
TEMPORARY SUPPORT, FORRELEASE OF INFORMATION, FOR AN ORDER ENJOINING
ERIC FROM TAKING CERTAIN ACTIONS, FOR MONITORING BY THIS COURT OR
APPOINTMENT OF A RECEIVER, AND FOR AN AWARD OF ATTORNEYS FEES on for

hearing before the above-entitled Court, on the 22nd- dayof F e bruar y2o1 1, at the

hourof 10 : 30 a.m./pw., or aé‘ soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.
DATED this ’ % __day of January, 2011.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

By ‘/ '

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L Pertinent Facts

Plaintiff, Eric L. Nelson (“Eric)and Defendant, Lynita Sue Nelson (“Lynita”) were married
on September 17, 1983. They have been rﬁarried for more than 27 years. During this lengthy
marriage the parties have been blessed with five children. Three of the parties’ children arevnow
adults. Custody of the remaining two (2) minor children was resolved by the parties” Stipulated
Parenting Agreement, signed October.15, 2008 and entered as an Order of this Court February 8,
2010. Pursuant to their Parenting Agreement, Lynita has primary physical custody of the minor
children, subject to Eric’s right of visitation as specified in the Parenting Agreement.

Asthis Courtis Well'versed in the extent 6f the parties’ assets after eight (8) days of trial, and
the difficulties counsel has had in attempting to reach an amicable séttlement to date, Lynita will
refrain from once again reciting such information. Suffice it to say, even after months of discovery,
multiple days of mediation with Robert Gaston, multiple days of trial, and two (2) separate efforts
by this Court to facilitate s‘ettlement, this case remains far from conclusion.

As was the case for the duration of the parties marriage, Eric remains in sole control of all
but one of the parties’ income producing assets. "The sole asset which Lynita has any control over
and may draw upon being the Charles Schwab/Capstone Cai)ital account which is titled solely in her
name. Since the inception ofthis case Eric alone has had the benefit of accessing and utilizing the
income received from the parties’ assets. Specifically, Eric has:been (or sﬁould have beenf

receiving monthly income from the parties’ commercial building (“Lindell”)?, numerous rental

‘properties in Nevada and Arizona (“BanOne”y’, Notes receivable (“Notes”), and commercial lease

1 Asthis Court is well aware, Eric frequently cuts deals with family members and business partners if such deals benefit
him personally. Such deals include allowing family and friends to occupy real property owned by the parties for
significant periods of time without requiring the payment of rent.

2 Eric’s testimony and exhibits indicate that the total rents received monthly from the Lindell commercial building are
$7,374. However, Eric continues to occupy 3,600 square feet of space in the Lindell commercial building without paying
rent. This Court should atiribute a reasonable rent to Eric of $1,000 pe month and include this figure in the total rents
to be equally divided between Eric and Lynita during the pendency of this action.

3Lynita believes the total rents received monthly from the BanOne rental properties are approximately $27,650. Eric

should be required to equally divide all rents received from the BanOne rental properties with Lynita and should provide .
Lynita with a detailed monthly accounting of all such rents received.

4
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(“Russell Road”)*. Eric has testified at trial that he has used some of this income to purchase and
improve his residence at 2911 Bella Kathryn Circle from the $382,000 value at time of purchase in
December 2009 to the approximately $1.3 million plus® home it is today. While Eric has utilized
community funds to improve his situation, the end result of his actions is to reduce the cash available
to the community at the conclusion of this divorce. Further, while Eric has had the benefit of living
from income generated by the community, Lynita’s sole source of support during these proceedings
has been the Charles Schwab/Capstone Capital account which is titled solely in her name. Lynita
has received minimal financial support from Eric® since the start of this divorce. Rather, Eric has
required her to live ﬁém the moniés in the Charles Schwab/Capstone Capital accdunt, once again
reducing the cash available to the comnﬁunity at the conclusion of this divorce.

During the November 16, 2010 trial setting, the Court heard testimony from Paul Alanais,
managing partner of the Silver Slipper Casino (“Silver Slipper”), in which the parties maintain an
interest. Prior to this court appearance Mr., Alanais had appeared for his deposition and willingly
provided Lyhita and her counsel with information pertaining to the operatii'on of the Silver Slipper
and its finances. Howéver, within days of his trial appearance, Mr. Alanais was instructed by Eric
ﬁot to share any information with Lynita. Mr. Alanais has informed Lynita that while he is “more
than happy to share all current information with [her]” he cannot do so because Eric hag “chastized
[him] regarding giving information to [her] or [her] attorney, asserting that [she is] not-a partner.”
Mr. Alanais recognizes Lynita and her counsel have a right to know what is going on with the Silver
Slipper but feels his hands are tied and he has “been given no alternative at this point by Eric.” See
Exhibit A. |

Further, in December 2010, Eric, on behalf of D&nast;f Development Group, LLC (a

community asset) notified Mr. Alanais that he was rejecting the 2011 Annual Plan for the Silver

4As of January 1, 2011 the total rents received which should have been received monthly under this lease are $30,000.
5 As of the filing of this motion it is unknown how much of the parties’ community funds Eric has placed into improving
the Bella Kathryn property. The 1.3 million figure included in this motion is as of the last known estimate provided by
Eric.

6All financial support from Eric stopped in 2009,
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Sipper casino. As a result of this rejection, Eric received a Buy/Sell Notice from Mr. Alanais on
behalf of the Silver Slipper. See Exhibit B attached. The effect of this Buy/Sell Notice is
detrimental to the community as it will lilcely result in the community’s interest in the Silver Slipper
casino either being purchased for far below its true value or being lost all to gether. Additionally, as
evidenced by Eric’s text to Lynita sent January 12, 2011, Eric is now alleging he will be liening
assets subject to distribution in this divorce action, up to $10,000,000 to “take on Paul SS.” See
Exhibit C attached.

This Court has seen firsthand Eric’s numerous attempts to control every aspect of this divorce
and to control Lynita throughout this divorce, just as he controlled her during their marriage. Eric’s
directive to Mr. Alanais and his continued decision to encumber the parties® assets all in the name
of his “normal course of business” is now, in Eric’s own words, anticipated to have a “profound
effect” on the assets available for division upon coﬁclusion of this divorce action and will further
bind Lynita and this Court as attempts to resolve this action continue. This Court’s immediate
intervention is necessary so asto alléw Lynita and her counsel access to vital information regardiﬁg
community assets, to protect the parties’ assets from further dissipation by Eric, and to provide
Lynita with a source of income from which she can continue to support herself and the parties’
children for the duration of this action as it is clear that this divorce will not soon be over.

I Lynita is Entitled to Temporary Spousal Support

Lynita is financially depéndent upon Eric and the community’s assets for her support. She
is without professibnal skills with which to support herself and is ﬁnanciaily unable to support
herself or the parties’ minor children without access to community assets. Eric hasenjoyed sole use -
of all rental income received from the Lindell commercial building, Bandne rental properties, Notés
and Russell Road commercial lease for the duration of these proceedings. Rather than share any of
the income he receives with Lynita, Eric utilizes these funds as he alone desires. Lynita has been
supporting herself and the parties’ minor children by drawing upon the Charles Scﬁwab/Capstone
Capital account held in her sole name. As shown on the Financial Disclosure Form submitted by
Lynita in support of this motion, Lynita’s monthly need to support her lifestyle is arguably

$42,962.11 (inclusive of the attorneys fees she is now being forced to expend due to Eric’s inability

6
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to settle this case in a fair and equitable manner) or at least $30,462 (if monthly attorneys fees are
taken out of the equation). See Exhibit D, final row. This lifestyle is akin to the lifestyle which Eric
and Lynita lived and shared at the time of their separation in 2007 and in years prior to their
separation. See Exhibit D, next to last row.

Attached as Exhibit E is a spreadsheet prepared by Melissa Attanasio identifying the
monthly income the parties’ sh'ould bereceiving from their assets (exclusive of expenses). Attached
as Exhibit F is aspreadsheet provided by Eric purportedly detailing the Note payments/Rents hehas
received as of January 12,2011. A quick corﬁparison of these two documents confirms that Eric has
failed to list numerous income producing assets on his spreadsheet, most likely because he does not
feel it necessary to either apprise Lynita of this income or to share it with her. While Ms. Attanasio
has célculéted that Eric has been, or should be receiving monthly income (exclusive of expenses)
of $70,063, Eric’s spreadsheet alleges he is only receiving $1,5 10 per month.”

Interestingly, Eric’s spreadsl}eet alsoindicates thét one ofthe parties’ assets, anotereceivable
to Keith Little, secured by a piece of real property located at 7817 Leavorite was paid off in
September 2010, Eric did not mention this at any time to Lynita, her counsel, or Ms. Attanasio, and
apparently felt it appropriate t'o keep the entire $127,900.90 which he received from Mr. Little for
himself. Additionally, while Eric claims to be living off his savings and réceiving only $1,510 per
month in iﬁcome, he has informed Lynita that he is taking the parties’ children on a 21 day trip to
Europe this summer. |

Lynita should not be forced to diminish the Charles Schwab/Capstone Capital account any
further és it remains one of the few sources of cash which will remain available for the Court to
award to Lynita upon conclusion of this divorce. Rather, Eric should be equally dividing the rental

income received from the Lindell commercial building, BanOne rental properties, and Russell Road

7 As of December 31, 2010.
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commercial lease with Lynita so as to provide her with a temporary source from which to support
herself and the parties’ children.®

N.R.S. section 125.040(1), expressly provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

1. In any suit for divorce the court may, in its discretion, upon
application by either party and notice to the other party, require either party to pay
moneys necessary to assist the other party in accomplishing one or more of the
following:

@ To provide temporary maintenance for the other party;

2. The court may make any order affecting property of the parties, or
either of them, which it may deem necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes
of this section. Such orders shall be made by the court only after taking into
consideration the financial situation of each of the parties.

In light of this statutory authority providing for the payment of "temporary maintenance"
during the pendency ofa divorce action, the Nevada Supreme Court has given the trial courts a guide
to determine a wife's entitlement to an appropriate order awarding her such support. In Engebregson
v. Engebregson, 75 Nev. 237, 338 P.2d 75 (Nev. 1959), our Supreme Court, in upholding the trial
court's award of temporary support, stated and held as follows:

In our opinion, the statute [N.R.S. 125.040] does not limit awards of
temporary alimony to those cases where the wife is destitute or practically so. It
contemplates such awards when the facts, circumstances, and situation of the parties
are such that in fairness to the wife she should be given financial assistance for her
support during the pendency of the action.

Engebregson, 75 Nev. at 240. In Heim v. Heim, 104 Nev. 605, 763 P.2d 678 (1988), the Nevada
Supreme Court further enunciated principles that are helpful in determining the nature of an award
of alimony. For example, the Court stated that an award of spousal support "must be fairly related
to the 'respective merits' of the parties and to the 'condition in which they will be left by the divorce.™
Heim, 104 Nev. at 608 (emphasis added).

Following conclusion of this divorce, whenever that may be, there will be limited cash

available to award Lynita. Lynita does not have the business acumen developed by Eric over many

8 Lynitarecognizes that there are certain fixed expenses tied to these assets. Deduction of true fixed expenses prior to
equal division of rents is acceptable to Lynita provided she is afforded a detailed monthly accounting of all such
expenses. This Court is requested to remain involved and provide oversight for this issue should a dispute later exist
concerning the legitimacy of any expense deduction.
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years and will likely need to support herself post-divorce with incomé produced by the assets
awarded to her upon completion of this divorce. Lynita should be equally sharing in a known
income source for her support during the pendency of this case, not diminishing one of the few
remaining cash accounts which are left. For this reason Lynita seeks an Order from this Court
requiring Eric to equally divide the income received from the Lindell commercial building, BanOne
rental properties, and Russell Road commercial lease with her during the pendency of this éction as
and for temporary spousal support. |

[II.  Eric Should be Admonished Against Further Interference and Must Be Req uired to Sign All
Necessary Authorizations to Allow Lynita Access to Information

Whether Eric likes it or not, all of the parties’ assets, including their interest in the Silver
Slipper Casino® are community in nature. To ensure Lynita and her counsel are aware of what is
happening with this valuable asset, which Eric himself has indicated is complex in nature and ever
evolving, Eric must be required to authorize Paul Alanais to share all information pertaining to the
Silver Slipper Wlth Lynita and her counsel. As Eric has unilaterally placed a moratorium on the prior
sharing of information by Mr. Alanais and Lynita, Lynita now seeks ﬁis Court’s intervention and
assistance. Lynita respectfully requests that Eric be admonished for interfering with the sharing of
information regﬁding the Silver Slipper and seeks an Order requiring Eric to sign a written
authorization allowing Paul Alanais to release all information relating to the Silver Slipper to Lynita,
or if Eric will not do so, a Court Order authorizing such release.

V. The Joint Preliminary Injunction Should Be Enforced and Eric Should Be Prohibited From
Further Encumbering Any of the Parties” Assets or Negotiating any Additional “Deals”

Which Have a Negative Impact on the Income to be Received During the Pendency of this
Action .

Despite prior admonishment from this Court, Eric continues to do as he pleases with respect
to the parties’ assets. His justification for his acﬁons, that he is acting “in the normal course of

business.” In making such decisions as to make deals to once again reduce the rental income

9 The parties’ interest in the Silver Slipper is held through Dynasty Development Group. Eric has recently asserted that
he alone has an interest in the Silver Slipper as this asset was his pursuant to his separate property trust. This Court has
previously indicated its belief that all assets of the parties are community and not separate.

9




wv s LN

N Y

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

received from Russell Road (tenant was obligated to pay $30,000 per month rent as to January 2011
but Eric has agreed to reduce the rent to $17,500) and encumber assets to obtaina $10,000,000 loan
to “take on Paul SS” Eric relies upon the language of the JPT which states as follows:

YOU ARE HEREBY PROHIBITED AND RESTRAINED FROM:

1. Transferring, encumbering, concealing, selling or otherwise disposing of any (;f
your joint, common or community property of the parties, or any property which is the subject
of a claim of community interest, except in the usual course of business or for the necessities of
life, without the written consent of the parties or the permission of the court.

While Lynita respects Eric as\a successful busineéssman, Eric continues to make decisions
which are detrimental to Lynita and the community all in the name of what he states is the “usual
course of business.” Lynitd can see no justification for once again deiaying payment ofrents due on
the Russell Road property nor for encumbering assets which are subject to division by this Court at
the time of divorce so Eric can engage in what can only be classified as a battle of machismo against

Mr. Alanais and the other partners of the Silver Slipper casino venture.

NRS 125.040 provides, in peitinent part, as follows:

1. In any suit for divorce the court may, in its discretion, upon
application by either party and notice to the other party, require either party to pay
moneys necessary to assist the other party in accomplishing one or more of the

following:
(@)  To provide temporary maintenance for the other party;
(b)  To provide temporary support for children of the parties; or
() To enable the other party to carry on or defend such suit.
2. The court may make any order affectmg property of the parties, or

either of them, which it may deem necessary. or desirable to accomplish the
purposes of this section. Such orders shall be made by the court only after taking
into consideration the financial situation of each of the parties.

(Emphasis added).
NRS 33.010 adds, in pertinent part, as follows:

An injunction may be granted in the following cases:

% % %
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2. When it shall appear by the complaint or affidavit that the
commission or continuance of some act, during the litigation, would produce
great or irreparable injury to the plaintiff.

3 When it shall appear, during the litigation, that the defendant
is doing or threatens, oris about to do, or is procuring or suffering to be done,

some act in violation of the plamtlff’ s rights respecting the subject of the
action, and tending to render the judgment ineffectual.

Finally, NRS 125.050 provides as follows:

If, after the filing of the complaint, it is made to appear probable to the court

that either party is about to do any act that would defeat or render less effectual any

order which the court might ultimately make concerning the property or pecuniary

interests, the court shall make such restraining order or other order as appears

necessary to prevent the act or conduct and preserve the status quo pending final
determination of the case.
(Emphasis added); .

Lynita requests that this Court enforce the Joint Preliminary Injunction which is already in
place and enjoin Eric from further encumbering any of the parties’ assets or negotiating any
additional “deals” which have anegative impact on the income to be received during the pendency
of this action. Such action is immediately necessary as Eric has breached his fiduciary duties to
Lynita and is acting against the best interests of the community. Eric has taken actions which cut
off Lynita’s access to information regarding the Silver Slipper, has cut (or soon will cut) a “deal” that
again reduces community income from Russell Road, and will encumber assets which are subject

to equal division at the time the parties’ divorce is finalized.

IV.  The Court Should Personally Monitor Eric’s Business Activities of Appoint a Receiver to
Act in this Capacity

Without action by this Court, Lynita’s interest in community assets may be irreparably
injured. While Lynita and her counsel have made significant attempts to settle this action during
the past thirty (30) days, and had in fact hoped same was settled just prior to the new year, settlement
no longer appears possible. Eric’s actions during this case, and especially during the months of
December 2010 and January 2011, are not in the best interest of the community, and continue to
place Lynita’s fifty percent (50%) interest in all community assets at risk. Eric has shown by his

behavior that he can no longer be entrusted with managing the parties’ assets without oversight and

11
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it is necessary for this court to become involved and prbvide the oversight necessary to protect
Lynita’s interest in marital assets, or if the Court will not personally do so, for this Court to appoint
areceiver to take control of the community assets presently under Eric’s control so as to (1) provide
an accurate accounting of all income and expenses to the parties, (2) ensure future management of
the assets is conducted in such a manner so as to preserve the assets for equal division b y this court,
(3) ensure both parties have equal access to information regarding the community assets. Such a

remedy is essential to preserve the interests of all parties.

1. Standard of Review to Appoint a Receiver

Should this Court determine it does not have the time, desire, or resources to personally
devote to monitoring Eric’s business dealings, the court should appoint a receiver in this case to act
in this capacity. The facts of this action indicate that such aremedy is necessary to preserve Lynita’s
interest in community assets. A receiver may be appointed in ‘ actions between partners jointly
owning an interest in property which is in danger of being lost, removed, or materially injured. NRSl
32.010(1)." The Nevada Supreme Court also turns to NRS 32.01 0(6)"! where other equitable
remedies mﬁy not be sufficient because, without a receiver, the judgment of the court may become
meaningless. Bowler v. Leonard, 70 Nev. 370, 269 P.2d 833 (1954).

In Bowler, the parties had conflicts regarding theirinterests in cattle. Id. Tﬁe court appointed
areceiver to safeguard and manage the herd pending the outcome of the case. Id. The present case

is similar to Bowler because Lynita and Eric have conflicts regarding the management of and their

10NRS 32.010 provides:

Cases in which receiver may be appointed. A receiver maybe appointed by the court in which an action is
pending, or by the judge thereof:

1. In an action . . . between partners or others jointly owning or interested in any property or fund, on

application of the plaintiff, or of any party whose right to or interest in the property or fund, or the proceeds thereof, is
probable, and where it is shown that the property or fund is in danger of being lost, removed or materially injured.

6. Inall other cases where receivers have heretofore been appointed by the usages of the courts of equity.

11See footnote 4, which includes NRS 32.010(6). This statutory provision allows this Court, as a court of equity, to
appoint a receiver to protect Lynita from Eric’s continued dissipation of the community assets.

12
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respective interests in certain community assets. Also, as in Bowler, a receiver is needed to
safeguard assets pending the outcome of the case. Without a receiver, the community cannot be
safeguarded from Eric’s continued efforts to eﬁdanger community assets without Lynita’s knowledge
or approval.

The courts have taken a very liberal approach towards the appointment of a receiver where
one party engages in oppressive action against another party. Sugarman C. v. Morse Brothers, 50
Nev. 191, 200-01,255P. 1010 (1927). In the present case, Eric’s conduct of affirmatively blocking
Lynita’s access to information about community assets, providing incomplete information with
respect to the parties’ monthly income, taking actions adverse to the community with respect to the
éommunity’s interest in the Silver Slipper, and threatening to further encumber assets so asto allow
Eric fo participate in a battle of machismo against Mr. Alanais and the other partners of the Silver
Slipper casino venture constitutes oppressive action. Furthermore, this oppressive action is
materially injuring Lynita’s fifty percent (50%) interest in the communify. It cannot be in the best
interest of Lynita or the community for Eric to continue to be permitted to act as he has during the
past sixty days. Eﬂc’s behavior is inexcusable and oppressive.

Lynita’s interest in the community are best preserved by the active participation of this Court
or appointment of a receiver in this case. Without action, Eric will continue to do as he sees fit, to
the detriment of Lynita and the community until the time these parties are ultimately divorce, and
Lynita may very well have ﬁo remedy at that time.

2. . A Receivership is Appropriate Because Eric’s Conduct is Oppressive and Absent
Immediate Judicial Intervention, Lynita Has No Adequate Remedy At Law

After a complaint is filed, a petition containing sufficient facts to justify the appointment
mﬁst be ﬁled.‘ State ex re. Nenzel v. Second Judicial District Court, 49 Nev. 145, 157, 241 P. 317
(1925). In the petition, the applicant must identify the relationship of the applicant to the proposed
feceivership estate and give the courta factual explanation why a receiver should be appointed. 1d.

Here, Lynita has identified the relationship between herself and Eric. Eric and Lynita have
been married in excess of 27 years. Lynita is an equail, fifty percent (50%) owner of all community

property which has been acquired during the parties® lengthy marriage.
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Absent this Court’s decision to intervene and personally monitor Eri;:’s business practices,
a receiver should be appointed because Eric has systematically acted in a manner so as to restrict
Lynita’s access to information concerning community assets (specifically prohibiting the sharing of
information concerning the Silver Slipper casino), has failed to provide Lynita with full and
complete information regarding income generated from the parties’ assets, and intends to encumber
assets subject to division by this Court at the time these parties are ultimately divorced. This conduct

materially injures Lynita’s interest in the community and absent a receiver, Lynita will have no

“adequate remedy to recover her share of existing community assets by the time these parties are

ultimately divorced.

The appointment of a receiver is discretionary, to be govemed by all the circumstances in the
case. Bowler at 383. The applicant must satisfy the same criteria for obtaining injunctive relief,
including the demonstration of reasonable probability of success on the merits. Nines v. Plante, 99
Nev. 259, 262, 661 P.2d 880 (1983). The applicant must show that legal remedies are inadequate.
State ex, rel. Nenzel v. Second Judicial District Court, 49 Nev. 145, 160, 241 P. 317 (1925). The
applicant should show that the receivership is necessary to preserve assets or preserve the status quo.

In the present case, the pé.rties have,lduring their lengthy marriage, accumulated quite a

substantial estate. They have done so for the benefit of each of them personally and for the benefit

of their five children. Nevertheless, because of his anger at Lynita and her counsel over these
divorce proceedings, Eric is no longer acting rationally and with the best interest of the community
in mind. While Lynita retains a fifty percent (50%) interest in all community assets, Eric has
eﬁgaged in a course of conduct which materially injures tﬁat interest. Eric’s conduct is offensive,
if not oppressive. He presently retains total control over the majority of the community assets and
has shown he will no longer act in the best interest of the community.

Without a receiver, Eric.will continue to act however he desires and there may be no other
relief available to Lynita to compensate her for Eric’s actions. Eric’s éctions are not in the bestl
interest of Lynita or the community. Absent this Court s inclination to personally monitor Eric’s
business dealings, a temporary receiver needs to be appointed immediately. Without a temporary

receiver, Eric will continue to act outside of the best interest of the community, and this Court’s
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hands will be tied when trying to divide the remaining asset at the time these parties are ultimately

divorced.

IV..  Lynita Should Be Awarded Attorneys Fees

Lynita is.entitled to and should be granted an award of attorney’s fees 10 compensate her for
having to bring this- motion. It is well settled under Nevada law that "[t]he wife must be afforded
her day in court without destroying her financial position. This would imply that she should be able
to meet her adversary in the courtroom on an equal basis." Sargeant v. Sargeant, 88 Nev. 223,227,
495 P.2d 618 (1972). Lynita must be placed in parity with Eric in order to provide a Ievel playing \
field 'on which to litigate the issues of this divorce. Eric is capable of paying a lump sum as and for
Lynita’s attorneys fees incurred by this Motion as well as to allow Lynita to continue to present her
case at trial. |

" Eric caused this motion to become necessary by his failure to provide Lynita with any spousal
support during the péndency of this action, by his directive to Mr. Alanais to stop sharing
information concerning the Silver Slipper with Lynita and her cbunsel, and by taking actions ';Vhich
are adverse to the best interest of the community. Lynita respectfully requests an award of not less
than $50,000 in attorneys fees to be paid by Eric to The Dickerson Law Group within ten (10) days,
with such award being reduced to judgment, colléctible by all lawful means should Eric fail to pay
same in the allotted ten (10) days. Eric hasthe ability to satisfy such an Ordér from the Mellon bank
account or Mellon line of credit, both of which remain solely under his control.

Dated this _L%ﬁiﬁday of January, 2011.

Respectfully Submiﬁed by:
THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

o [zt —

ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attorneys for Defendant
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DISTRICT COURT

FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
ERIC L. NELSON, )
A ' ) 4

Plaintiff/Petitioner ) CASE NO. D-09-411537-D

-vs- )
) DEPT. O

LYNITA SUE NELSON )

Defendant/Respondent ) FAMILY COURT MOTION/OPPOSITION

' ) FEE INFORMATION SHEET (NRS 19.0312)
Party Filing Motion/Opposition: O Plaintiff/Petitioner ﬁDefendant/Respondent :

Motion for Temporary Support, for Release of Information, for an Order Enjoining Eric from Taking Certain
Actions, for Monitoring by This Court or Appointment of a Receiver, and for an Award of Attorneys Fees

EXCLUDED MOTIONS/OPPOSITIONS
. . to
MOtfons and Oppositions Motions filed before final Divorce/Custody Decree entered
Motions filed after entry of final (Divorce/Custody Decree NOT final)
Decree or Judgment are subject
;‘;;h; ORI‘:;(;IG?: filing fee of | Child Support Modification ONLY
- 2
specifically excluded. . . ‘ . ( . )
(NRS 19.0312 Motion/Opposition for Reconsideration (Within 10 days of Decree
S19 ) I:I Date of Last Order
Request for New Trial (Within 10 days of Decree)
] A
Date of Last Order
D Other Excluded Motion
" (Must be prepared to defend exclusion to Judge)
| NOTE: Ifno boxes are checked, filing fee MUST be paid.
O Motion/Opp IS subject to $25.00 filing fee Motion/Opp IS NOT subject to filing fee

Date: January 21,2011

Priscilia Baker

B Pt

Printed Name of Préparer :

Signature of Preparer
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From: Eric Nelson [eric@enivcorp.com]

Sent: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 9:31 AM

To: palanis@silverslippergaming.com

Cc: Bob Dickerson; 'Attanasio, Melissa G'; Lynita Nelson; ‘Joe Leauanae'
Subject: RE: Fw: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

Paul,

Lynita and her counsel and any other professionals have been invited to my office only so | can see their intent on or off

the phone. For them to participate is totally against the MS gaming commission rules an regulations as | understand
without my consent and the hoards.

Any negotiations from any party w/out my full knowledge and written consent | will seek all legal recourse and the MS
gaming commission will be hereby notified of what | believe to be fraudulant activity. | remind all parties that Lynita
Nelson is a non-licensed, never heen licensed, never been investigated by any gaming commission let alone MS. Her
involvement prior to this had only been to satisfy information of the Silver Slipper. Again, any negotiations w/ her or
communication w/ her or her professionals w/out a court order are strictly adverse to my request.

Again, | have invited Lynita and her professionals to my office so | can tape record and monitor her involvement in this
call.

Thank you.

Eric Nelson

e A A T et 4, PR AS t peey Sm

From: palanis@silverslippergaming.com [mailto: palanis@silverslippergaming.com]
" Sent: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 9:07 AM

To: L. Nelson

Cc: eric@enivcorp.com

Subject: RE: Fw: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

Lynita I am somewhat confused because yesterday I received an email from Eric instructing me not to
talk to you or your legal counsel or share any financial information with you. Now I see that he has
invited you to participate in the call this morning. Candidly, I don't know what Eric wants, so I will ask
him first thing on the call this morning to clarify his position and ask the other members of the Board if
they have any objection to your participating in this call. If Eric agrees and there is no other objection I
will ask Eric to email or text you the call-in number, otherwise I assume that you will not be able to
participate in the call directly. Paul ‘

-------- Original Message -------~

Subject: Fw: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

From: "L. Nelson" <tiggywinkle@cox.net>

Date: Wed, November 24, 2010 2:37 am

To: <palanis@silverslippergaming.com>

Cc: "Bob Dickerson" <bob@dickersonlawgroup.com>, "priscilla baker"
<priscilla@dickersonlawgroup.com> .

Paul,

Below is an invitation from Eric to include me in the telephonic meeting on Wednesday, November

24th, 10a.m. Due to the holiday | am unable to be present at Eric's office for the meeting. However, |

1



‘From: Eric Nelson ~ "+

appreciate the opportunity to listen to the discussion of items being heard.

| appreciation your consideration and ask if your office would facilitate this by ringing me in to the meeting or

provide me with the 'call-in' number.

Should you disagree, | ask if you will then please provide me with the notes/minutes of the meeting.

Respectfully,

Lynita Nelson

-—-- Original Message ---- '

To: Lynita Nelson ; bob@dickersonlawaroup.com ; 'Joe Leauanae ; 'Attanasio, Melissa G'
Sent: Tuesday, November 23,2010 10:21 AM
Subject: FW: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

Eric invites you to be here at this office for this call. This is a critical conversation. You should be at Eric s
office at 10 am if you want to listen in.

From: palanis@silverslippergaming.com [mailto:palanis@silverslippergaming.com]

Sent: Tuesday, November 23, 2010 9:07 AM -

To: Jess Ravich; eric@enlvcorp.com; mecarlie@cableone.net; Jostrow@silverslippergaming.com
Cc: rmegowan@enlvcorp.com

Subject: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

I am proposing to have a Board of Managers telephonic meeting on Wednesday, November 24th
at 10a.m. Pacific Time. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss and submit for approval the
Annual Plan for 2011 (as it must be sent to our lender's before the end of the month) and to
discuss and submit for approval the attached Memorandum of Understanding, which creates a
forbearance from foreclosure, under certain circumstances and conditions, until 12/31/11.

Please respond today by email to let me know that you will be available for such call. The call-in
number remains the same:

Thank you,

Paul



From: L. Nelson [tiggywinkle@cox.net]

Sent: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 10:07 AM
To: Paul Alanis

Cc: Bob Dickerson; priscilia baker

Subject: Fw: Fw: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10
Hello Paul,

[ am very sorry for the confusion. Myself and my counsel received repeated phone calls, emails and texts through the
early afternoon to make themselves available for the '‘Board of Manager's Call’ this morning.

As of a few moments ago, | have been forwarded the email Eric sent you regarding my/our involvement in the meeting. It
has been our understanding that we were to be there to 'listen’ only as | hope | was clear in my email correspondence with
you.

| am unaware at this time of the gaming guidelines of Mississippi at this time as to how they relate to me or my counsel
being able to listen in at the meeting. As Eric made it very clear repeatedly that he wanted all of us to be present we
of course we were relying on his knowledge of what those guidelines were. '

This is the type of behavior | have grown accustomed o, This may be more than what | should state openly, however
please be aware that | am very much interested in being able to listen in only on the meeting.

The discussions and information discussed are important for me to be aware of.

| have rec'd an text moments ago, inviting me to a meeting at his office at 10:30. Is that @ meeting you would be present
with him on the phone ?

Sincerely,
Lynita Nelson

————— Original Message -----

From: pélanis@silversliphergaring:co
To: L. Nelson

Cc: eric@enlvcorp.com

Sent: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 9:06 AM
Subject: RE: Fw: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

Lynita I am somewhat confused because yesterday I received an email from Eric instructing me not to
talk to you or your legal counsel or share any financial information with you. Now I see that he has
invited you to participate in the call this morning. Candidly, I don't know what Eric wants, so I will ask
him first thing on the call this morning to clarify his position and ask the other members of the Board if
they have any objection to your participating in this call. If Eric agrees and there is no other objection 1
will ask Eric to email or text you the call-in number, otherwise I assume that you will not be able to
participate in the call directly. Paul

-------- Original Message --------

Subject: Fw: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

From: "L. Nelson" <tiggywinkle@cox.net>

Date: Wed, November 24, 2010 2:37 am

To: <palanis@silverslippergaming.com>

Cc: "Bob Dickerson" <bob@dickersonlawgroup.com>, "priscilla baker"

<priscilla@dickersoniawgroup.com>
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From: Eric:Nélson ™~ '

office at 10 am If you want to list

Paul,
Below is an invitation from Eric to include me in the telephonic meeting on'Wednesday, November
24th, 10a.m. Dueto the holiday | am unable to be present at Eric's office for the meeting. However, |

appreciate the opportunity to listen to the discussion of items being heard.

| appreciation your consideration and ask if your office would facilitate this by ringing me in to the meeting or -

provide me with the "call-in’ number.

Should you disagree, | ask if you will then please provide me with the notes/minutes of the meeting.

Respectfully,

Lynita Nelson

-—-- Original Message ----

To: Lynita Neison ; bob@diékve‘r.s‘onlawd"r.aﬂvb‘fébm ‘;"Jo:éﬁ‘i"_éauéf{ua‘é‘ , ‘Attanasio, l\/lehssaG' o
Sent: Tuesday, November 23, 2010 10:21 AM

Subject: FW: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

Eric invites you to be here at this office for this call. This is a critical conversation. You should be at Eric s
in. ‘

From: palanjs@sitverslippergaming.com [mailto:palanis@silverslippergaming.com]

Sent: Tuesday, November 23, 2010 9:07 AM _

To: Jess Ravich; eric@enlvcorp.com; mecarlie@cableone.net; Jostrow@silverslippergaming.com

Cc: rmcgowan@enlveorp.com

Subject: Board Of Manager's Call 11/24/10

I am proposing to have a Board of Managers telephonic meeting on Wednesday, November 24th
at 10a.m. Pacific Time. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss and submit for approval the
Annual Plan for 2011 (as it must be sent to our lender's before the end of the month) and to
discuss and submit for approval the attached Memorandum of Understanding, which creates a
forbearance from foreclosure, under certain circumstances and conditions, until 12/31/11.

Please respond today by email to let me know that you will be available for such call. The call-in

number remains the same:!
Thank you, ‘
Paul



Fron: tiggywinkle@cox.net

Sent: Thursday, December 09, 2010 12:49 AM
To: <palanis@silverslippergaming.com>
Subject: Re: Board of Manager's Meeting Minutes
Paul,

Pleasant news your wife's improving and will soon be able to do those things she enjoys.

Thank you for your reply and willingness to work through this process. I will discuss your request with Bob.

Fric and I have a meeting together this Friday with our couneil.

I am hopeful we will be able to secure the necessary authorization that will allow us to communicate and work

together more freely in the future.
1 will update you on the outcome in regards to the out come of the approval.

Sincerely,
Lynita

From iPhone

On Dec 8, 2010, at 5:48 PM, <pa1anis@silverslippergaming.com> wrote:

Lynita First of all, thank you for the flowers for my wife. They were incredibly beautiful
and greatly appreciated. My wife is making an excellent recovery and feeling better every
day. A few more weeks and she will be totally back to her normal routine. Thanks for

asking.

As to Silver Slipper, I am more than happy to share all current information with

you. I feel, however, thatI amina difficult position between you and Eric. He has

chastised me regarding giving information to you or your attorney, asserting that you are
not a partner. Can you get Eric to agree and to provide me with written authorization to
provide you with the information you request? If I receive that, I will immediately provide
you whatever you request. I'm sorry that I cannot be more accommodating right now but I

have been given no alternative at this point by Eric. Please let me Know. Paul

———————— Original Message --------
Subject: Board of Manager's Meeting Minutes
From: "L. Nelson" <tiggywinkle@cox.net>

1



Date: Wed, December 08, 2010 1:43 am
To: "Paul Alanis" <palanis@silverslippergaming.com>

Helio Paul,

| hope this finds you well and your wife feeling better, especially as we go into the holiday
season.

[ am writing to request a copy of the minutes from the 'Board of Managers Meeting' held last
month.

Also, to make you aware Eric forwarded your email to Gene McCarlie and himself in reference
to your disappointment of their disapproval of the 2011 Annual Budget including a possible
meeting between the "owners of the Silver Slipper” and Jeff Jacobs.

In light of receiving this information will you also provide information that is related to the
referenced matters in your email including any other matters which refate to the Silver Slipper
that may not be mentioned that have occurred since the ‘Board of Managers Meeting' ?

{ am interested in all matters relating to the Silver Slipper.

Respectfully,

Lynita Nelson
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DYNASTY DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC

December 1, 2010

Paul Alanis

Silver Slipper Casino Venture, LLC
150 S. Los Robles Ave #665
Pasadena, Ca 91101

RE: Vote to Approve or Disapprove Silver Slipper 2011 Budget

Dear Paul;

My vote is to reject the budget until many concerns are cleared up, I’ll address those concerns in
the near future.

Please consider this a no vote for Mr, Gene McCarlie also,

/
K—:.-‘")

Eric Nelson, Managing Member
Dynasty Development Group LLC

C: Harold Duke, Esq
Gene McCatlie

EN

Corporate Offices
3611 S, Lindell, Suite 201, Las Vegas, NV 89103 o 702.352.3030 - Fax 702.227-0075




From: Paul Alanis [mailto:palanis@silverslippergaming.com]
Sent: Wednesday, December 01, 2010 2:09 PM

From: Eric Nelson [eric@enlvcorp.com}

Sent: Thursday, December 02, 2010 12:13 PM
To: Lynita Nelson; 'Attanasio, Melissa G'; Bob Dickerson
Subject: FW: Annual Budget/Meeting

To: Eric Nelson; Gene McCarlie
Subject: Annual Budget/Meeting

Eric— | am extremely disappointed that you have failed to approve the 2011 Annual Budget. |see no reason why you
would not do so. | have nevertheless sent it on the lenders, as required under our Loan Agreement, for their approval
and have indicated to them that Dynasty has disapproved the budget.

On another note, we have heard that there may be a meeting occurring tomorrow between the “owners of Silver
Slipper” and Jeff Jacobs. | would hope that neither you, nor Gene McCarlie, is planning to have such a meeting and |
want you to confirm to me in writing today that no such meeting is planned or will occur. Jeff Jacobs has proven to be
our adversary and any meeting that occurred with him without the knowledge and participation of all of the owners of
Silver Slipper could be extremely damaging to us. We will hold any of the partners who holds such a meeting
responsible for any and all damage occurring as a result of such meeting.

Paul



Via Federal Bxpress

December 14, 2010 .

Dynasty Development Group, LLC
3611 S, Lindell.Road; Suite 201
Las Vegas, NV 89103

Attn: Erie Nelson

Re:  SilverSlipper Casino Venture, LLC (the “Company™)

Dear Mr, Nelson:

Enclosed is a Notice of Impasse relating to (i) the rejection of the Compan;
Annual Plan By yourself and Mr. McCarlie, as members of the ‘Board.of
the Company, and (1) Dynasty Development Group, LLE’s “Dynasty?)
the 2011 Annual.Plan, as a Voting Member-of the Company. As aresult eh
rejection and the Impasse caused by it, the undersigned, as.the-voting.gé 1ees of
the remaining Voting Members, all of whom have approved}fthe'fzoif{l. Annual Plan,

have executed the'enclosed notice, which shall also serve as the Buy/Sell Notice as
defined in Section 7.1 of the Third Amended and Restate

amended (the “Operating Agreement"), of the Company.

Pursuantto Article 7 of the O
thirty (30) days, deliver a w
Value (as defined in the Op

berating Agreement, Dynasty must, within thenext
ritten notice to the undersigned, setting forth a Stated
erating Agreement”) for all of the assets of the. Company.

Thank you,

Ve_xy truly yours, -

R i ,
[ 5 :

e Vet :

J (—A—J.(-_lg" “'I\'k,»‘_;"r,': s’ « e,

PaulR.Alanfs
Voting Members Designee

Jess M. Ravich
Voting Members Designee

. Los Robles Avenuie, Sulte 665 - Pasadena, CA 9110 ;

d Operating Agreeménit; as

+ 626:356-1188 Telephone - 626-356-1164 Facsimile




Very truly yours,

December 14, 2010

To: Ali Voting Meibers of Silver Slipper Casino Venture, LEC
:The Board of Managers of Silver Slipper Casino Venture, LLC

Dear Board Members and ‘._Toting Members:

Please be advised that on. Wednesday, November 24, 2010; the Board of Managers of
Silver Slipper Casino Venture, LLC (the “Company”} approved the 2011 Annual Plan
of the Company. On December 6,2010, the Board submitted the Annual Plan to all
of the Voting Members of the Company {through the voting designeés) pursuant to
the Third Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, as amended {the “Operating
Agreement”) of the Company,

Please be-advised that all of the Voting Members approved the Annual -Plan, with the
exception of Dynasty Development Group, LLC, which specifically rejected the:
proposed Anmual Plan. Since Dynasty Development Group, LLG, either-through its
representatives on the Board of Managers or as a Voting-Member, did not provide
any basis for-its ebjection to the Annual Plan, there appears to be no basis to find
common ground to a revision of the Annual Plan. Accordingly, the undersigned are
delivering this correspondence as written notice of an Impasse (as.defined in the

Operating Agreement) and as the Buy/Sell Notice {as defined in the Operating
Agreement),

kY # ,--""‘ﬁ F o )"

e e Ll S

PaulR.Alanis - Jesk M. Ravich
Voting Members Designee Voting Merhbers Designee
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From: ] tiggywinkle@cox.net

Sent: Waednesday, January 12, 2011 3:30 PM

To: Bob Dickerson; Katherine Provost; priscilla baker

Subject: For the file ; ) Email and text from Eric

Attachments: ms_multijurisdictional_gaming_form.pdf; ATT01367.htm; mississippi_gaming_addendum.pdf;

ATT01368.htm

Hi lynita. FYIL. No one will call David back. I'm heading to Ms. I working on a up to $10,000,000 guarette of

loan to take on Paul SS. This will have a profound effect on liening of MY assets. Will not be able to give u
anything close to what i offer that is free and clear

This is a RED ALERT. Thanks. Letter on office stuff gomg out soon along with rent roll. This is my normal

course of business working close with David. FYI I'm very calm since 12/31 is over and coming clean with

partners. Be nice to talk if only to tell what this means. Better talk to bob or melisa. But it's your life. I'm

good. Thanks

Fwd: Mississippi Gaming Applications attached

From 1Phone

Begin forwarded message:

From: <eric@enlveorp.com>

Date: January 12,2011 10:51:57 AM PST

To: "Lynita Nelson" <tiggywinkle@cox.net>

Ce: "Rochelle McGowan' <rmcgowan@enlvcorp.com>, <eric@enlvcorp.com>
Subject: Mississippi Gaming Applications attached

Lynita,

Eric requested I forward these applications to you.

Joan
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Exhibit A
E.u::..nn_ Lifestyle Analysis
hered from A for Lynila Nelson listed on last page
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Exhibit A
Historical Lifestyle Analysis
Information gathered from Acconnts for Lynita Nelson listed on last page

Lynita Nelson
Year 2007

T panated 20
Dec 12 DMonth Aversge Expestses

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aungust Sep Oet Nov

q.EE: es
Trayel

$11,432.78 .

Illll.Illllll
Total Personal Expenses  $6,720.80  810,948.27 $17,107.52 _ $5,940.70  59.476.69  $10,864.41 $11,265.83 $14,320.73 S11,534.13_ $13,409.97 $10,307.67

Sub Total Lifestyle Expenses $21,223.47 $20,/32.84 523,152.20_$16,220.54 $19,698.51 $14,941.09 $18,119.13 $22,680.10 $18,261.47 $23,829.39 $15,385,88 $13,981.19 $19,909.44 $21,596.81

Children - Activities / Lessons $2,029.12 270140 5000 478431

RN R e
n___as:-us_u_. 0 ) 5 3
) . o ’ ‘ 5 ; 2 7SS : ; e 53 4 m_‘sw%@ :
520851 50 m_a o1
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50
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Total Lifestyle Fxpenses $70,510.47 526,851.14 $29,350.46 $21.161.98 §29,011.76 $23,683,08 §21,048,30 $34,111.15 §23,969.02 §$32,079,56 $24,061.83 922,642.92 $26,648.34 530,452.11

..?unr Ec::EE i

d9<n-

wnwu:m and ZE:B===8
Telepfiane™ Catf

§7,250.82 S$585.14 5$2,393.80 SYASMHT

Total 2nd Home Expenses $519.55 $882.57  $2,657.14 $458.52 §$405.12 $226.80  56,212.14  37494.19 $910.88 $536.19

2
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. Exhibit A
Historical Lifestyle Analysis
Information gathered from Accounts for Lynita Nelson listed on last page

Lynita Nelson
Year 2007
g Upidared 2014
dan Teb Mar Apr May Jun July Angust Sep Qct Nov Dec 12 Month Averge Lapen

Attomey Fees. $0.00  $0.00  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total Lifestyle Expenses with One time Expenses $29,212.47 $26,851.14 $20,358.46 $21,181.98 $29,011.76 $23,683.08 $21,048.30 $34,111.15 $23,969.02 $32,079.56

Footnotessiiy:

Cable /Internet:
msswiamwx Hoiiselio

Garbage:

s\m_o.x En&.im? annlm 3- mgﬂ mmhum on SESE_E: Em_innm w< gmi a.::mum im.mw _i approx 700 menihiy.

Cfient annusl re istration expense of ummu \ ﬂm monihs

e aw: o1 5818, 50, foF i n%. e Estimale. ﬁ.?&%& 13350 7
g1 On sgsw basis Halr = 3250, Nails = $200, and faciols miswn $275 plus lips

nazuamQ\ oz.nu m.iE:..m. t«mm:% u:m:h.m §n=== iy mxﬁm:um _.mann

ar .ytm

7
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Exhibit A
m_m::..ni Lifestyle Analysis

heced from A ts for Lynita Nelson listed on last page
Lynita Zn_mc__ v 5007
ear 00
E T paaced 2010
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July August Sep Qct Nov Dec 12 Menth Averuge Expenses

Estimale Childran's hnio: 1o be $466.50 per manth

4nu!= m< ense. Wnnk-n»nh z

muiamn menw Enoim not available - nQ our gmi 39.55\ expanse is estimated at uim nE.SgS

)

M=E~?S5m=~ mxnmamw ..:n:imw uu 060 th. h.:ouo m.mm‘ u._ 600 show :n

.im@.mﬁim&.x&t.mmmmﬂn‘wmnrﬁﬁﬁ fneliides ds

d.Edn _\. mﬁnﬁm includes 3 sﬂﬁ per month @ 317 a E: sg

SE_S? nxﬁgum S_"Euom hore =m=6 angm far 2 a.in;: m~ $210 per wk x 52 wits = « 1 o.cmnx 1 msgzﬁ $910.00 S.:Es\ Chilcren ‘Horse Ading clothas one tima par _\mﬂ $1, nna for2 n?ES: 712

&3] n:ami: ‘Activities & Lessons -

¥i30:Tannis la3sons o

190 Lenpla 18330013 Lo
Qi..bw: . >iu iu:_.manm - hEE insurance for Son with u%ma

= 848838

. 2009 :.E: w March u._ NE Emwﬁm

(0 mownwm. 2 ala naﬁ of 86,000, Putin a new saplic tank al a cast of $6.000, repairs are app fy $3,000
(61) Attorney Fees - Average monthly fes based on total billing since 11/2008 divided by 28 per Wife's Attorney

Financial information gathered from:

Bank of America Checking x2730

Bank of America Checking x0812

Business Bank/ City Nasional Bank Checking x5152

Sitver State Credi1 Union Checking x3736

Bank of America Credit Card %0883

Gap Credit Card x6015

Sams Club Credit Card XB449

Sams Club Credit Card x7352

Southwest Credit Card x4209 .
Wells Facgo Credit Card x0780

Our repart is subject o Wie following asswuptions and liniting conditions:
The Attanasio Divoree Strutegies Gruvg has nelied en inforaation (hat has been provided without addi yensian vnlualions, expected peasion incates, assots und Tabilities, ete.).
Thie furncial projections and scenarios that ane includvd in (his fepurt must be regarded bs axasples b A lypothetica dota oy, They are uol intorproted s a specific ponmt of what will happen in the fawre
Tlus snalysis is ol ulended to provide my or legal advice, You shoukd consuft with your aws tax und Tegnl 13 fessiouals befors you Buliate any action that waold have inzonie 1y ec Tegal consequences.
Jysic are Gelieved to be true, No matters ufocting the conelusions huve Do fy been withheld or emitted.

N

All thets and duta set tocth in s

4
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1/18/2011

EXHIBIT C
.Nelson vs Nelson
Monthly Income
(Exclusive of Expenses)

Wife Husband

Real Property
7065 Palmyra Ave
) 2721 Harbor Hills, Lane  included 1 2,000
2911 Bella Kathryn Circle

2910 Bella Kathryn Circle included 1
@| 3611 8. Lindell 7,374

@)] Russell Road Building 11,375
Brianhead Utah Cabin - (see last page after
equalization)

Arizona Property
28 acre lots
1 two-acre Jots included t
2 lots (10 acres) included
10 lots (LSN 25%) included 1

2 one acre lots thru forclosure  included 1
8 lots Joan Ramos
29 one-acre lot (ELN Trust)
Wyoming (200 acres)
MS Real Property/Silver Slipper/Hideway
830 Arnold Ave (Clay House) ) 450
5913 Pebble Beach :

Other Investments

Banone, NV
4412 Baxter . 350
5317 Clover Blossom Ct 1,000
1301 Heather Ridge Rd 1,200
6213 Anaconda Street 1,100

1608 Rusy Ridge Lane
Mesa Vista (5 acres)

Mesa Vista (lot 68)

2209 Farmouth Circle 800
3301 Terra Bella Drive ' 1,200
4133 Compass Rose Way 1,000
4601 Concord Village Drive 950
4612 Sawyer Ave ' 1,000
4820 Marnell Drive 800
5113 Churchiil Ave 900
5704 Roseridge Ave 650
6301 Cambria Ave 1,000
6304 Guadalupe Ave 800

Page 1of5
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EXHIBIT C
Nelson vs Nelson
Monthly Income
(Exclusive of Expenses)

Wife Husband

AZ but titled in NV
1628 W. Darrel Road 14,900
1830 N. 66th Drive :
1837 N, 59th Ave
2220 W. Tonto Street
3225 W. Roma Ave
3307 W. Thomas Road
3332 N. 80th Lane
3415 N. 84th Lane
3424 W. Bloomfield Road

"3631N. 8lst Ave
4141 N, 34th Ave
4341 N, 76th Ave
4816 S. 17th Street
5014 W. Cypress Street
5518 N. 34th Drive
6172 W. Fillmore Street
6202 S. 431d Street
6520 W. Palm Lane
6720 W. Cambridge Ave
6822 W. Wilshire Drive
6901 W. Coolidge Street
Mesa Vista (lot 67)

Banone Nevada Real Notes
R & D Custorner Builders 774
Advaniage Construction Inc
Gerald & Linda Fixsen Lot 52
Gerald & Linda Fixsen Lot 53
Joe Williams & Sherry Fixsen
Bidoco Inc
Cary & Troy Fixsen
Michael & Lyndia Asquith
Amanda & Chris Stromberg 630
JB Ramos Trust 520
Katherine Stephens 420
Chad Ramos 400
Alicia Harrison 460
Keith Little
Eric T. Nelson 697

el ===l

o = | = |
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1/18/2011

4

EXHIBIT C

Nelson vs Nelson
Monthly Income
(Exclusive of Expenses)

Wife

Husband

Banone AZ

4338 W. Berkeley Rd

Dynasty Development LLC (included above)

4,313

The Grotta Entities (16.67%) Grotta Financial
Partnership & Grotta Group LLC

Grotta Financial Partnership -Note payable to Eric
L Nelson NV TR (Lynita gets 100% Approx
value: $3,025,000)

Other Investments

Emerald Bay MS LLC

Emerald Bay MS LLC Note

Nicki Note

2,000

Riverwalk Entertainment LLC &
Hideaway Casino LLC

Eric Nelson Auctioneering

Soris Notes Rental Payments

6,000

Bank & Investment Accts

Bank of Americax1310

Bank of Americax4118

Bank of Ameica x2798

Bank of America x4354

Bank of America x5227

Wells Fargo x6521

Wells Fargo x6005

Mellon Bank x1700

5,000

Mellon Bank x1780

Bank of America x5829

Bank of America x2754

Bank of America x7064

Bank of America x6958

Citi National Bank x1539

Citi National Bank x5152

Credit Union 1x7214-0 bal

Credit Union 1 x7214-0 bal

Credit Union 1 x6692-22 bal

Silver State x3736-01 bal

Silver State x3736-80 bal

®

Charles Schwab x2834 bal as of 12/31/10

Tax Returns

3,960

2006 Tax Refund

2006 Tax Refund

2008 Tax Refund

Federal Tax Carry Forward / Silver Slipper
Approx. (-$16 million) awarded to husband

Page3 of 5
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1/18/2011

EXHIBIT C

Nelson vs Nelson
Monthly Income
(Exclusive of Expenses)

Wife

Husband

Autos / Vehicles

2011 Audi / 2010 Expedition (Leased) - Wife

2009 Escalade EXT SUV

2007 Mercedes SL 550

2000 Mercedes CLK 350-Eric gave to R Nelson

Seven 4-wheel ATVs (1/2 to Lynita, 1/2 to Eric)

4-6 Snowmobiles (1/2 to Lynita, 1/2 to Eric)

Eric's Family Loan Receivables
Chad Ramos :

Jesse Harber

Brock Nelson

Miscellaneous Assets

Eric's Accrued Mgt Fees

Eric's Future Mgt Fees per month

Cash / Checks with Lynita

Money Eric removed from safe

Children's Property

Garett's Investment Monies

Calico Springs Trust (Amanda) $2,530

Blush Trust (Aubrey) $2,530

Angel Face Trust (Erica) $2,530

Stryre Trust (Garett) $2,530

Monkey Business TR (Carli) $2,530

Household Furniture/Furnishings

2911 Bella Katheryn Circle

7065 Palmyra Ave

Harbor Hills property

Brianhead property

Jewelry, Clothing, Personal Items

Eric's

Lynita's

Eric's Community Waste

Russell Road rental income

Page 4 of 5
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1/18/2011

EXHIBIT C

Nelson vs Nelson
Monthly Income
(Exclusive of Expenses)

Credit Cards

Wife Husband

@| Eric's credit cards

| Lynita's credit cards

Miscellaneous Debt

| Mellon Line of credit

6| Manise Lawsuit Mississippi

6)| Contingent Tax Liability 2005

)} Contingent Grizzly Investment

6)] Contingent Soris Liability

)| Contingent liability Hideaway/Bieri

Footnotes

(1) Property is currently not being rented. Anticipated rental income based on current market condition.

(2) Per Husband total rent of $7,374 does not include any rental income from the 3600 square foot space

the husband occupies

(3) Rental payment of $30,000 per month was renegotiated starting January 2011 to $17,500 a month. |
Due to parties ownership of 65% the total monthly rental payment is $11,375.

@) RV Park Rents of $4,313.95. Monthly office expernse needs to be deducted - unknown not provided since Oct 2009.

() YTD income from 12/31/2010 Charles Schwab statement was $47,474.84/12=$3,956.24

6) Monthly expense unknown

Page 5 of 5
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NOTE / RENTAL PAYMENTS
. as of 1/12/2011 .

2 Gte st IuE Natat|atgar L  BagDate s  End DAt s  PHRE mal s e FHAGEL0T D10 2 :
1 1n Defauli, - ISsnone-tiv 5/11/1008] T L . ¥ | N o . _ .
2{MVv-Lot37 Open danone-IV 4/27/2008] 10/27/201D! 20,081.24 117,314 117,14 Znded through Ocl< dite Hov - rénitesls waals snother § months sxtt .
3|MV-Lot §2 Ogen Bancne-NV sfija008]  4/1/2012 12,837.50 133.22 133.22 <132 133.22 13322 13322 133.22 :
4jmv-Lot 53 Cpan danone-tiV 4/7/2008 41542012, 22.827.32 133.32 133,22 133.16 133.16 133.16] 133.16 133,16 |
SIMV-Lot 54 Open Banone-Hv S/1/2008]  3/31/2012 22,832.50 129.22 12922 133.2j- 133.22 133.20] 133.2 133.30
6{MV-Lot 51 Open Banone-NY s/s/2008}  a/7/2032 21,262.50 124.03 124.03) 124,03 124.03 124.03 124,03 124.03
7iMV-Lot 98 Open Banona-HY 4/7/2008] _ a/2/2012 22,837.50 133.22 133.22 4 133.2 uww‘.ﬂ 133.22
12}Mv-tot 5O in Default®. {Baneae:NY sfifz0a8]  4/1/2010 23,625.00 137.81}; o S |

Gatevsay 172 - LSH th-defablt[LSH 35,000,00

|Gatevay 173 s 0 DEfaint JLSH | 35,000.00

Ramos Trust - due 2012 {8 (ots) ‘ R EP R ]

T METYALY TEE1s S Mesd VIStENoLeY FESEYIRISH CAERIS 77307 Ay I 1365683

DEstiption HotEHolder ey EPymntBNEE Ry SEA07 :
15|Amanda Hote {1} Open Banone-tiV $630,00 .
. /RS J8RaMOs Trust: ]
18436 Evropu Woy open Banone-NV 1201 12/13/2004 78,000.00 352000 .
N/R; Stephens, Kathetine 3pfaoin|  3f1/2002 63,000.00|  $420.00
19{1502 Knoll Heights Open Banone NV )
N/Re Chad Ramos .
20[7333 Dover Sioses open Sanone-HY $hju) /3201 £0.000.00 $400.00 VAL D UAL
N/R: Alicia Hardison
3, 19 ,620,00 5?7
21(1025 Acodemy . Cpen Banone-KNV 3/1/20i0 /1/2032 68,520.0 1825
N/R: Keith tittle
7
2217817 Legvorite Cpen Banana-HY 20| 13/31/20u 322.800.90
N/R; Erle T Nelson !
23]8518 \W Muahove, AZ Bznone-tiv 3yon| 300 95,000.00)  $697.08
Micky Cvitanovich tote Eric Nalson 12/18/2007 200,000.00]  $31,500.00
Russeli Road® - Eclc Nefson 10/15/2010] Payment bi a1 2/157201055
| Iy T6 als FOMETNBtas L TR s e e A IS EIest 92562465 ST e

* Russel Road §17,500 {or 6 manths/ $30,000 NNM .

~,

lossid  [loups 14700 Taw™ Doy

.:.
5 w&»& 2

- Jr

R

. 3]
To et

N )

AT A F

Fun  Hbt

v
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NOTE / RENTAL PAYMENTS

as of 1/12/2011

L .wc,.wyuo B

]

s

|as] St Sy :
1 Rented 0anone LLC $700 700
2 [6301 Combria Ave, Las Vegas B910]Rented Banang LLC 1000 980
3 [6213 Anaconds, Las Vegas B9108 _[Rented Sanone LLC 3/31/2001 1150 1150 1150 1150
| 4 1301 Heather Ridge, Las Vegss BSURented Banane L1C 12/1/2010] 11/30/2011|pays on L5th- $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 1200; 1200 120D; 1200 $1,200
5 |4612 Sawyer, Las Vegss 89103 Reated Banene LIC $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 1000 1000 1009 1000 1000
6 13301 Terra Bella, Los Vagas 99108 jRentad Banone LIC $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $4,200° 1200 1100 1200 1200} $1,200
7 {4601 Concord Villags, Las Vegas 8dRented Banone LLC 6/31/2010 July $1,100 $3,100 51100 $1,100 950 950 950 ~ 950 $950
84133 Corpass Rose, Las Vagas 89JRented Oanone LLC 900 900 $900 - yatapti | vacant. . 1000] 1000] 1000 - - 3900
9. 14820 Marnéll Dr, Las Vegas 89121 {Repted Banonc LLC '9/30/2011 500 %600~ 5800 $800 300 80O 5800
10 6304 Guadalupe, Las Vegs 89108 [Rented Banone LLC 4800 43216 €001 $S00
1115317 Clover Blossom, Las Vegas d Banons LLC * Bfaaz0L0) - vagail 1000 1000
1212209 Fammguth, Las Vepas, Nv Ranted Banone LLC 800 80O 800
13/5704 Roseridze Ave, Las Vegas, W |Reated Banone LLC 6/1/2010 650 B50| 850
152721 Harbor Hills, Las Vegas 89117 Jyicant - ~~ {Bavone LiC ey s i e o
o~ |MonthIY Totals < CHR Repals: +789%850:00 F230.00) S S1%,150.00)

IMERUNY Tola L

idef) Raatalss:|

% hhE
Mot olEs

. Nov10 Déc10 ",
no tent dye-
in figw of car
B damage from
101 _|0r Stock Rented Banone LIC . $2,130.00 $2,150.00 $2,12000 $2,130.80 $2,130.00 $2,130.00 $2,130.0D{parkinglot S 2,130.00 2,130.00 2,13000 2,130.00 2130.00
Trintigeereem | Timbenalrer
102 {I4S Business Consulting Rented Banona LLC 5/1/20%1 360-ilt doall Tt $800.00! ) 0 [ D| (5] 0 [ L] [ 8OO} stant S0t SABCSIVEN2
103 {Smart Assat Rented Banone LLC 0] £00| | 0] D Q. [} GO0 £00)] E00] £00] 600! 500!
104- pay-on st &
105 _[Frashveater Holdings Ranted Hanone LLC 15th1/2&2/2 |5 193400 | $2,000.00 $0.00° 2000, ] 51.000.00 $2,138.40 1,544.00] 1,944.00] § 1284400 2,138.40 1,948.00 1,944.00
106 |Odor Busters Rented Banene LLC $800.00 $8CR.ED $200.00 $800.80 $800.00 $500.00 350000} §__ 800.00 300] 800 00| £00.00 800]
New Life Church Rented Banone LLC 10/1/2030 1000]  $2,000.00 $1,600.00 31,600.00 $1,600.00 | 5160000 51,600.00 $1,600. vacapt vacant Tty Geu élrent 1,000.00 1000
Hew Life Church Rented Bsngne LLC 5/1/2010 $2,500.00 [} $2,500.00 $2,500. 2500 2500 2590
Hislson & Assoclates ofiice Bznone LLC 8 0 kd
: = - = 166:40|77:57,494.00 37,9740,

o duldo

Sep-10

$450.00 7 epais oved rapairs owad  {repalrs owved 1-469.12 owed |-19.12 gwved
: to |eating cepairs owedio |loleasing o lzasing to leasing 16 Jeasing
830 Arnold, Greenville, F5 Rented E Agenty]  3/20f2008 450 $432.00 $450.00 2pant teasing agant agent agent azanl agent 430 450 450
arrears-perSs
dal. aonrount pd 2/1/2030 od 4/7/2010 pd 5/6/2010 {pd 7/6/2030 [pd 9/7/2010 PO 12/1/2010
Siivar Slipper Gamng, MS Active Dynasty Dev Group (-$145,063.00) | 3({i05900.80)[5 126152015 12489.80 S 12,55L40 11.856.11 $£1,923.39 | §  13,264.52
RY Park, M5 Dynasty Dev Group varias 3,146.36 | § 5925 | § 5,325 4627.291 § 392000
Seasie Broy, Evanston WY gravel pit lease varies 0 L] 0 (1] a
| Maniy Totals Sothera T o T S2,000,00 | L8108:430:80) TeT7 BT | oL, 2RE 30| SarS 17 B0 1B (153,07 0000 528450100
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SupREME COURT
OF
Nevapa

(0) 19474 @0

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

NOLA HARBER, AS DISTRIBUTION No. 63545
TRUSTEE OF THE ERIC L. NELSON :

NEVADA TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001, F E L E "
Petitioner, A
vs.

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT o 30 213
COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, . CLEERAC}W
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF

DEPUTY CLERK

CLARK; AND THE HONORABLE
FRANK P. SULLIVAN, DISTRICT
JUDGE,

Respondents,

and

ERIC L. NELSON AND LYNITA S.
NELSON, INDIVIDUALLY; AND LSN
NEVADA TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001,
Real Parties in Interest.

ORDER GRANTING TEMPORARY STAY

This is an original petition for a writ of prohibition challenging
provisions of a district court divorce decree that directs the transfer of
certain assets from the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust to the LSN Nevada
Trust. Petitioner filed an emergency motion for a stay of those provisions
of the divorce decree, which this court deferred ruling on pending a
supplement and answer to the petition. On July 29, 2013, petitioner filed
a request for a ruling on the motion for a stay, indicating that the district
court held a hearing on July 22, 2013, and ordered Eric L. Nelson to
execute deeds tranSferi'ing those assets by July 31, 2013,

Having considered ‘petitiorier’s renewed motion for a stay, we
have determined that a temporary stay is warranted at this time.

Accordingly, we temporarily stay the portions of the divorce decree

13-24458




SuPREME COURT
OF
Nevaba

(©) 19474 <8

directing the transfer of the following assets from the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust to the LSN Nevada Trust: the Lindell Property; the rental
properties owned by Banone, LLC; the JB Ramos Trust Note Receivable;
and a percentage interest in the Russell Road Property. The temporary
stay shall remain in effect pending further order of this court.!
Additionally, petitioner shall have 11 days from the date of this order to
file any reply to the answer to the petition.
It is so ORDERED.

i
/Q/\’C(A pée,«fﬁl{ d.

Hardesty

Parraguirre

cc:  Hon. Frank P. Sullivan, District Judge
Solomon Dwiggins & Freer
Radford J. Smith, Chtd.
Dickerson Law Group
Eighth District Court Clerk

1As for the July 22, 2013, oral ruling concerning execution of the
deeds by July 31, 2013, petitioner has not provided this court with a
written order, and we cannot determine whether one has been entered.
See Rust v. Clark Cty. Sch. Dist., 103 Nev. 686, 747 P.2d 1380 (1987)
(providing that an oral pronouncement of a judgment is ineffective for any
purpose).
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SUPREME COURT
OF
NEvaDA

(0) 19474 <=

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

NOLA HARBER, AS DISTRIBUTION No. 63545
TRUSTEE OF THE ERIC L. NELSON o
NEVADA TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001, il &=
Petitioner, ? g am E @
vs. JUL 10 2013
THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, CL;RACWM
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF By T e

CLARK; AND THE HONORABLE
FRANK P. SULLIVAN, DISTRICT
JUDGE,

Respondents,

and

ERIC L. NELSON AND LYNITA S.
NELSON, INDIVIDUALLY; AND LSN
NEVADA TRUST DATED MAY 30, 2001,
Real Parties in Interest

ORDER DIRECTIN G SUPPLEMENT TO PETITION
AND DIRECTING ANSWER

This is an original petition for a writ of prohibitioﬂ challenging
provisions of a district coﬁrt divorce decree that direct the transfer of
certain assets from the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust. Petitioner has also
filed an emergency motion for a stay of those provisions of the divorce
decree.

It i1s petitioner's burden to demonstrate that this court’s
extraordinary intervention i1s warranted. Pan v. Eighth Judicial Dist.
Court, 120 Nev. 222, 228, 88 P.3d 840, 844 (2004). Writ relief is generally
not available when the petitioner has a plain, speedy, and adequate

remedy at law. See NRS 34.330; Int’l Game Tech., Inc. v. Second Judicial

| Dist. Court, 124 Nev. 193, 197, 179 P.3d 556, 558 (2008). The right to

vy e : e Ry v i
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appeal is generally considered an adequate legal remedy that precludes
extraordinary relief. Intl Game Tech., 124 Nev. at 197, 179 P.3d at 558.
A divorce decree is appealable as a final judgment when it finally resolves
all issues pertaining to the dissolution of the parties’ marriage, including
the division of property. See Lee v. GNLV Corp., 116 Nev. 424, 426, 996
P.2d 416, 417 (2000) (recognizing that a final judgment is one that
disposes of all issues presented and leaves nothing for the court’s future
consideration, except for certain post-judgment issues).

. Petitioner conteﬁds that extraordinary relief is appropriate
because an adequately legal remedy is not available. Specifically,
petitioner asserts that an appeal cannot immediately be taken from the
divorce decree because of a pending motion in the district court to alter or
amend fhe judgment under NRCP 59. Further, petitioner acknowledges
that the divorce decree is not a final judgment because the district court
has not disposed of all of the assets, including the disposition of the
Wyoming Downs property, which also appears to be the subject of the
NRCP 59 motion. Nevertheless, petitioner has not established why an
appeal from the final divorce decree, once it is entered, is not an adequate
remedy in the ordinary course of the law. It seems that petitioner is
essentially seeking to prevent enforcement of what appears to be an
interlocutory order. See Gojack v. Second Judicial Dist. Court, 95 Nev.
443, 596 P.2d 237 (1979) (holding that the trial court lacked authority to
enter a final divorce decree without contemporaneously disposing of the
parties’ community property); but see Smith v. Smith, 100 Nev. 610, 691
P.2d 428 (1984) (recognizing an exception to the rule prohibiting

bifurcated divorce proceedings where the parties so stipulate). This court

SUPREME COURT
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discourages such piecemeal review. See Valley Bank of Nev. v. Ginsburg,
110 Nev. 440, 444, 874 P.2d 729, 733 (1994).

Accordingly, petitioner shall have until Monday, July 15,
2013, at 4 p.m. to file and serve a supplement to the petition
demonstrating why extraordinary relief is warranted at this time, given
that the issues can ultimately be raised on appeal from a final judgment.
The real parties in interest shall have 11 days after the supplement is
served to file and serve an answer to the petition, as supplemented. We
defer ruling on petitioner’s motion for a stay at this time.

All documents submitted in response to this order shall be
filed and served personally, electronically, or by facsimile transmission
with the clerk of this court in Carson City. See NRAP 2; NRAP
25(a)(2)(B)(@); NRAP 25(a)(4). For purposes of this petition, we suspend
application of NRAP 25(a)(2)(B)(ii)-(iv) and NRAP 26(b)(1)(B).

It is so ORDERED.

Cheary, |
7

Cherry

cc: Hon. Frank P. Sullivan, District Judge
Solomon Dwiggins & Freer
Radford J. Smith, Chtd.
Dickerson Law Group
Eighth District Court Clerk
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THE DICKERSON LAW GROU
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
ICATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414

JOSEF M. KARACSONY]I, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 10634

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Telephone: (702) 388-8600
Facsimile: (702) 388-0210

Email: info@dickersonlawgroup.com

Attorneys for LYNITA SUE NELSON

FILED IN OPEN COuRT

s (9, 20/3
STEVEN D, GRIERSON
CLERK OF THE COURT

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,
2

'LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Defendant/Counterclaimant.

ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Parties (joined in this
action pursuant to Stipulation and
Order entered on August 9, 2011)

e e e N N N N N s S N S S e S N S S S

CASE NO. D-09-411537-D
DEPT NO. “O”
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LANA MARTIN, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001,

Necessary Party (joined in this action
pursuant to Stipulation and Order
entered on August 9, 2011)/ Purported
Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant,

LYNITA SUE NELSON and ERIC
NELSON,

Purported Cross-Defendant and
Counterdefendant,

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Counterclaimant, Cross-Claimant,
and/or Third Party Plaintiff,

V.

ERIC L. NELSON, individually and as the
Investment Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001; the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001; LANA MARTIN, individually,
and as the current and/or former Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001, and as the
former Distribution Trustee of the LSN
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001);
NOLA HARBER, individually, and as the
current and/or former Distribution Trustee
of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST
dated May 30, 2001, and as the current
and/or former Distribution Trustee of the
LSN NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001;
ROCHELLE McGOWAN, individually;

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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JOAN B. RAMOS, individually; and DOES I
through X,

)
)
)
Counterdefendant, and/or )
Cross-Defendants, and/or )
Third Party Defendants. )

)

)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF FUNDS PURSUANT TO JUNE 3, 2013
DECREE OF DIVORCE ,

THE COURT, having considered the Motion for Payment of Funds Belonging
to Defendant Pursuant to Court’s Decree to Ensure Receipt of Same, and for
Immediate Payment of Court Appointed Expert (the “Motion”) submitted by
Defendant, LYNITA NELSON (“Lynita”), by and through her attorneys, ROBERT P.
DICKERSON, ESQ., KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ., and JOSEF M.
KARACSONYI, ESQ., of THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP, the Opposition to
Motion submitted by the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Joinder to Opposition
submitted by Eric L. Nelson, and having reviewed and analyzed the pleadings and
papers on file herein, including the Decree of Divorce entered by the Court on June 3,
2013, aﬁd good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that David Stephens, Esq., shall immediately, upon
presentation of this Order, pay to Lynita or her attorneys the sum of $1,032,742.00
from the $1,568,000.00 held Mr. Stephens’ trust account pursuant to the Court’s p}ior

orders, and shall also pay from said funds the sum of $35,258.00 to Larry Bertsch.




O e NSy bl W N

S

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
2]
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that if said $1,568,000.00, or any portion thereof,
has already been transferred to Plaintiff, ERIC NELSON (“Eric”), and/or the ELN
Trust, the ELN Trust and Eric shall pay to Lynita or her attorneys the sum of

$1 ,032,;/'1%{2.00, and shall pay to Larry Bertsch the sum of $35,258.00, withiiy twepty-
€ Jr# j

fe%r (24) hdurs of presentation of this Order upon Eric’s and the ELN Trusml
of record in this matter.

DATED this / 17 day of June, 2013.

FRANKP SULLIVAN

Submitted by:
THE DICKERSQN LAW G P

By

v 7
ROBERT P. DICKERSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 000945
KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 008414
JOSEF M. KARACSONYI, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 010634
1745 Village Center Circle
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Attomeys for Defendant
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FRANK R SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 83101

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,
Plaintiff/Counterdefendant,

vs.

LYNITA SUE NELSON, LANA MARTIN, as

Distribution Trustee of the ERIC L, NELSON

NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Defendant/Counterclaimants.

LANA MARTIN, Distribution Trustee of the
ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated
May 30, 2001,

Crossclaimant,
vs.
LYNITA SUE NELSON,
Crossdefendant.

L—/vvvvvvvvvvvvL.a\.uu\./\./vx./vuuuv

CASE NO.: D-09-411537-D

DEPT. NO.: E[I-'?actro‘nically Filed
06/03/2013 01:35:50 PM

%t}gﬁ»«w—»

CLERK OF THE COURT

DECREE OF DIVORCE

This matter having come before this Honorable Court for a Non-Jury Trial in October

2010, November 2010, July 2012 and August 2012, with Plaintiff, Eric Nelson, appearing and

being represented by Rhonda Forsberg, Esq., Defendant, Lynita Nelson, appearing and being

represented by Robert Dickérson, Esq., Katherine Provost, Esq., and Josef Karacsonyi, Esq.,

and Counter-defendant, Cross-defendant, Third Party Defendant Lana Martin, Distribution-
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FRANK B SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 83101

Trustee of the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust, being represented by Mark Solomon, Esq., and
Jeffrey Luszeck, Esq., good cause being shown:

THE COURT HEREBY FINDS that it has jurisdiction in the premises, both as to the
subject matter thereof and as the parties thereto, pursuant to NRS 125.010 et seq.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS the Eric Nelson, Plaintiff, has been, and is now, an
actual and bona fide resident of the County of Clark, State of Nevada, and has been actually
domiciled thetein for more than six (6) weeks immediately preceding to the commencement of
this action.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the parties were married September 17, 1983.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that 5 children were born the issue of this marriage;
two of which are minors, namely, Garrett Nelson born on September 13, 1994, and Carli
Nelson born on October 17, 1997; and to the best of her knowledge, Lynita Nelson, is not now
pregnant,

" THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Plaintiff filed for divorce on May 6, 2009.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the parties entered into a Stipulated Parenting
Agreement as to the care and custody of said minor children on October 15, 2008, which was
affirmed, ratified and made an Order of this Court on February 8, 2010.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on August 9, 2011, both parties stipulated and
agreed that the Eric L. Nelson Nevada (ELN) Trust should be joined as a necessary party to this
matter.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Eric Nelson is entitled to an absolute Decfee of

Divorce on the grounds of incompatibility.




N S B S T T

P S S S S N S e T - e
REHREREN RS O A w R RS

28

FRANK R SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DiVISION, DEFT. C
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the couple’s nearly thirty (30) years of
marriage, the parties have amassed a suBstantial amount of wealth.
 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the parties entered into a Separate Property
Agreement on July 13, 1993, with Mr. Nelson being advised and counseled with respect to the
legal effects of the Agreement by attorney Jeffrey L. Burr and Mrs. Nelson being advised and
counseled as its legal effects by attorney Richard Koch.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, pursuant to NRS 123.080 and NRS 123.220(1),

.the Separate Property Agreement entered into by the parties onJ uly 13, 1993, was a valid

Agreement,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Schedule A of the Separate Property Agreement
contetﬁporaneously established the Eric L. Nelson Separate Property Trust and named Mr,
Nelson as trustor. The trust included interest in: |

A First Interstate Bank account;

A Bank of America account;

4021 Eat Portland Street, Phoenix, Arizona;

304 Ramsey Street, Las Vegas, Nevada;

Twelve (12) acres located on Cheyenne Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada;

Ten (10) acres located on Cheyenne Avenue, Las Vegas,; Nevada;

1098 Evergreen Street, Phoenix, Arizona; '

Forty nine (49) lots, notes and vacant land in Queens Creek, Arizona;

Forty one (41) lots, notes and vacant land in Sunland Park, New Mexico;

Sport of Kings located at 365 Convention Center Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada;

A 1988 Mercedes;

Forty percent (40%) interest in Eric Nelson Auctioneering, 42835 South Polaris Avenue,
" Las Vegas, Nevada;

One hundred percent (100%) interest in Casino Gaming International, LTD., 4285

South Polaris Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada; and

Twenty five percent (25%) interest in Polk Landing.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Schedule B of the Separate Property Agreement
contemporaneously established the Lynita S, Nelson Separate Property Trust and named Mrs.

Nelson as trustor. The trust included interest in;
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A Continental National Bank account;
Six (6) Silver State Schools Federal Credit Union accounts;
. An American Bank of Commerce account;
7065 Palmyra Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada;
8558 East Indian School Road, Number J, Scottsdale, Arizona;
Ten (10) acres on West Flamingo Road, Las Vegas, Nevada;
1167 Pine Ridge Drive, Panguitch, Utah;
749 West Main Street, Mesa, Arizona;
1618 East Bell Road, Phoenijx, Arizona,
727 Hartford Avenue, Number 178, Phoenix, Arizona;
4285 Polaris Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada;
Metropolitan Mortgage & Security Co., Inc., West 929 Sprague Avenue Spokane,
Washington;
Apirade Bumpus, 5215 South 39th Street, Phoenix, Arizona;
Pool Hall Sycamore, 749 West Main Street, Mesa, Arizona,
A Beneficial Life Insurance policy; and
A 1992 van

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on May 30, 2001, the Eric L. Nelson Nevada
Trust (hereinafter “ELN Trpst”) was created under the advice and counsel of Jeffrey L. Burr,
Esq., who prepared the trust documents.

| THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the ELN Trust was established as a self-settled

spendthrift trust in accordance with NRS 166.020. '

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that all of the assets and interest held by the Eric L,
Nelson Separate Property Trust were transferred or assigned to the ELN Trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on May 30, 2001, the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada
Trust (hereinafter ;‘LSN Trust”) was created under the adVicc and counsel of Jeffrey L. Burr,
Esq., who prepared the trust documents.

"THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the LSN Trust was established as a self-settled

spendthrift trust in accordance with NRS 166.020.

T'NRS 166.020 defines a Spendthrift trust as “at trust in which by the terms thereof a valid restraint on the
voluntary and involuntary transfer of the interest of the beneficiary is imposed. See, NRS 166,020,
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that all of the assets and interest held by the Lynita S,
Nelson Separate Property Trust Were transferred or assigned to the LSN Trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the parties may differ as to the reason why
the trusts were created, the effect of a spendthrift trust is to prevent creditors from reaching the
prihciple or corpus of the trust unless said creditor is kpown at the time in which an asset is
transferred to the trust and the creditor brings an action no more than two years after the
transfer occurs or no more than 6 months after the creditor discovers or reasonably should have
discovered the transfer, whichever occurs latest.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while spendthrift trusts have been utilized for
dccadés; Nevada is one of the few states that recognize self-settled spendthrift trusts, The
legislature approved the ¢reation of spendthrift trusts in 1999 and it is certainly not the purpose
of this Court to challenge the merits of spendthrift trusts.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the testimony of the parties cleatly established
that the intent of creating the spendthrift trusts was to provide maximum protection from
creditors and was not intended to be a property settlement in the event that the parties divorced.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that throughout the history of the Trusts, there were
signiﬁcant transfers of property and loans primérily from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust. Such
evidence corroborates Mrs. Nelson’s testimony that the purpose of the two Trusts was to allow
for the ELN Trust to invest in gaming and other risky ventures, while the LSN Trust would
maintain the unencumbered assets free and clear from the reach of creditors in order to provide

the family with stable and reliable support should the risky ventures fail.

* 2NRS 166.170(1)
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, due to Mrs. Nelson’s complete faith in and total
support of her husband, Mr. Nelson had unfettered access to the LSN Trust to regularly transfer
assets from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust to infuse cash and other assets to fund its gaming
and other risky investment ventures.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on numerous occasions during these proceedings,
Mr. Nelson indicated that the ELN Trust and LSN Trust both held assets that were indeed
considered by the parties to be community property.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the first phase of trial held in August
2010, Mr. Nelson was questioned ad nauseam by both his former attorney, Mr. James
Jimmerson, and by Mrs, Nelson’s attorney, Mr. Dickerson, about his role as the primary wage
earner for the family.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on direct examination, when asked what he had
done to earn a living following obtaining his real estate license in 1990, Mr, Nelson’s lengthy
response included:

“$0 that’s my primary focus is managing all my assets and Lynita’s assets so we
manage our community assets, and that’s where our primary revenue is driven
{emphasis added).” - _ '

. THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that upon further direct examination, when asked why
the ELN and LSN Trusts were created, Mr. Nelson rcSponded: '

“In the event thaf something happened to me, I didn’t have to carry life insurance. [
would put safe assets into her property in her assets for her and the kids. My assets
were much more volatile, much more -- [ would say daring; casino properties, zoning
properties, partners properties, so we maintained this and these all these trusts
were designed and set up by Jeff Burr. Jeff Burr is an excellent attorney and so I felt
comfortable. This protected Lynita and her children and it gave me the flexibility
because I do a lot of tax scenatios, to protect her and the kids and me and we could

level off yearly by putting assets in her trust or my trust depending on the
transaction and protect - the basic boitom line is to protect her (emphasis added).”

e et o
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that upon further examination by Attorney Jimmerson
inquiring about the status of a rental property located on Lindell Road, Mr, Nelson’s response
was:

“Well, we don’t pay rent because we’re managing all the assets, so I don’t pay
myself to pay Lynita because we — it’s all community (emphasis added).”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during cross-examination on October 19, 2010,

Mr. Nelson was questioned as to why he closed his auctioning company and his response was:
“1 wﬁs under watef these businesses. And fof business purposes and to -~ to set -- {0

save as much in our community estate, 1 was forced to lay people off, generate  cash flow so

Lynita would have the cash flow from these properties in the future (emphasis added).”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that throughout Mr. Nelsor’s aforementioned
testimony, he either expressly stated that his actions were intended to benefit his and Mrs,
Nelson’s community estate or made reference to the community.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that it heard testimony from Mr. Nelson over several
days during the months of August 2010, Septembei‘ 2010 and October 2010, in which Mr.
Nelson’s testimony clearly categorized the ELN Trust and LSN Trust’s property as community
property.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s sworn testimony cotroborates Mrs.
Nelson’s claim that Mr, Nelson informed her throughout the marriage that the assets
accurnulated in both the ELN Trust and LSN Trust were for the betterment of their family unit,
and, thus, the cpmmunity.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS Attorney Burr’s testimony corroborated the fact that
the purpose of creatiﬁg the spendthrift trusts was to “supercharge” the protection afforded

against creditors and was not intended to be a property settlement.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Attomney Burr testified that he discussed and
suggested that the Nelsons periodically transfer properties between the two trusts to ensure that
their respective vaiues remained equal.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Attorney Burr further testified that the values of
the respective trust could be equalized through gifting and even created a gifting form for the
parties to uée to make gifts between the trusts.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Minutes from a Trust Meeting, dated
November 20, 2004, reflected that alt Mississippi property and Las Vegas property owned by
the ELN Trust was transferred to the LSN trust as final payment on the 2002 loans from the
LSN to the ELN Trust and to “level off the trusts” (emphasis added).

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the evidence adduced at trial clearly established
the parties iniended to maintain an equitable allocation of the assets between the ELN Trust and
the LSN Trust.

Fiduciary Duty

THE COURT FURTHER' FINDS that the Nevada Supreme Court has articulated that a
fiduciary relationship cxisis between husbands and wives, and that includes a duty to “disclose
pertinent aésefs and factors relating to those assets.” Williams v. Waldman, 108 Nev. 466, 472
(1992). -

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson owed a duty to his spouse, Mrs.
Nelson, to disclose all pertinent factors relatiﬂg to the numerous transfers of the assets from the

1SN Trust to the ELN Trust.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson credibly testified that on numerous
occasions, Mr. Nelson requested that she sign documentation relating to the fransfer of LSN
Trust assets to the ELN Trust. Mrs. Nelson further stated that she rarely questioned Mr. Nelson
regarding these matters for {wo reasons: (1) Mr. Nelson would become upsef if she asked
guestions due to his controlling nature concerning business and property transactions; and (2)
she trusted him as her husband and adviser. A

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr., Nelsort’s behavior during the course of these
extended proccedings, as discusse&l in dgtail hereinafter, corroborates Mrs. Nelson’s assertions
that Mr. Nelson exercises inquestioned authority over property and other businesé venfures and
loses control of his emotions when someone questions his authority.

THE COURT FURTHER FIN_DS that the evidence clearly established that Mr. Nelson
did not regularly discuss the factors relating to the numerous transfers of the assets from the
LSﬁ Trust to the ELN Trust with Mrs, Nelson, and, therefore, violated his fiduciary duty to his
spouse. | '

" THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 163.554 defines a fiduciary as a trustee...or

-any other person, including an investment trust adviser, which is acting in a fiduciary capacity

for any person, trust or estate. See, NRS 163.554 (emphasis added),

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 163.5557 defines an investment trust
adviser as a person, appointed by an instrument, to act in regafd to investment decisions, NRS
163.5557 further states:

2. An investment trust adviser may exercise the powers provided

to the investment trust adviser in the instrument in the best interests of the
trust. The powers exercised by an investment trust adviser are at the

sole diseretion of the investment trust adviser and are binding on all other
persous. The powers granted to an investment trust adviser may include,
without limitation, the power to:




o 0 3 &St R W N

NNNNNNNNH#HQ:—\HHHHH
O - N R S T - B - R R O O R T T e

28

FRANK B SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DERT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 89101

(a) Direct the trustee with respect to the retention, purchase,
sale or encumbrance of trust property and the investment and
reinvestment of principal and income of the trust.
(b) Vote proxies for securities held in ¢rust.
(c) Select one or more investment advisers, managers or counselors,

" including the trustee, and delegate to such persons any of the powers
of the investment trust adviser.

See, NRS 163.5557 (emphasis added).

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson continuously testified as to his role

as the investment trustee for both trusts, specifically testifying during cross examination on

September 1, 2010, as follows:

Q. Now you’re the one that put title to those parcels

that we’ve talked about in the name of Dynasty, Bal Harbor,
Emerald Bay, Bay Harbor Beach Resorts and (indiscernible)
Financial Partnerships. Is that correct?

A, Tbelieve so, yes.

Q. And you’re the one that also put title in the name

of -- all the remaining lots in the nhame of LSN Nevada Trust.
Is that true? '

A.Yes, sir.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during his September 1* cross-examination, Mr.

Nelson also testified as to the assets located in Mississippi as follows:

Q. The height of the market was 18 months ago according
to your testimony?

A. No, no, But I’'m just saying we could have -- the

this lawsuit’s been pending for a while, sir. We did these
deeds mistake -- if you can -~ if you reference back to it, it
shows -- shows Dynas -- it’s my -

Q. Exhibit -- the Exhibit for the --
A. -- company, It shows Eric Nelson. That’s my

company. We put them into Lynita’s for community protection,
and she would not cooperate.

10
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Q. You put them --

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -- into Lynita’s?

A. Yes, sir --

Q. All right. Sir -

A. - for co -- unity wealth (emphasis added). |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the LSN Trust documents expressly named
Mrs, Nelson as investment trust adviser, the evidence clearly established that Mr. Nelson
exercised a pattern of continuous, unchallenged investment and property-transfer decisions for
both the ELN and the LSN‘ Trusts, thereby illusfrating that Mr. Nelson acted as the investment
trust adviser of the LSN Trust from its inception.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the testimony of both parties clearly shows that,
pursuant to NRS 163.5557(2)(c), Mrs. Nelson delegated the duties of investment trustee to her
husband, Mr, Nelson.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS ﬂ1at as the delegated investment trustee for the LSN
Trust, Mr. Nelson acted in a fiduciary capacity for Mrs. Nelson.? Therefore, Mr. Nelson had a
duty to “ﬂisclose pertinent asééts and factors relating to those assets”.d;

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, despite serving as the delegated iﬂvestrﬁent
trustee for the LSN Trust, Mr. Nelson did not regularly discuss the pertinent factors relating to
the transfer of the assets from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust, and, as such, violated the
fiduciary duty he owed to Mrs. Nelson and to the LSN Trust as the delegated investment trustee

to the LSN Trust.

T NRS 163.554.
* Williams v. Waldman, 108 Nev. 466, 472 (1992).




L~ B - I B - S Y T B S

NONONON N D e e e s e jed ek e ek e
ﬁgm.hmmuc‘ooeqa\mamuhc

28

FRANK R SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEFT, O
LAS VEGAS NV 89101

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson, in his dual role as a spouse and as
the delegated investment trustee for the LSN Trust, violated the fiduciary duties owed to Mis.
Nelson and the LSN Trust.

Constructive Trust

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s activities as the delegated
investment trustee for the LSN Trust in which he transferred numerous properties and assets
from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust, unjustly resulted in the ELN Trust obtaining title to
certain properties that the LSN Trust formerly held.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that a legal remedy available to rectify this unjust

Tresult is the Court’s imposition of a constructive trisst. The basic objective of a constructive

trust is to recognize and protect an innocent party’s ﬁmperty rights. Constructive trusts are
grounded in the concept of equity. Cummings v. Tinkle, 91 Nev. 548, 550 (1975).

- THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Nevada Supreme Court has held that a

' constructive trust is proper when “(1) a confidential relationship exists between the parties; (2)

retention of legal title by the holder thereof against another would be inequitable; and (3) the
existence of such a trust is essential to the effectuation of justice.” Locken v. Locken, 98 Nev.,
369, 372 (1982).

- THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in Locken, the Nevada Supreme Court found that
an oral agreement bound a son to convey land to his father, as the father was to make certain
improvements to the land. The Court found that even though the father completed an affidavit
claiming no interest in the land, this act did not preclude him from enforcing the oral

agreement. Id,, at 373.

12
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Locken court found that the imposition of a
constructive trust does not violate the statute of frauds as NRS 111.025 states:

1. No estate or interest in lands,..nor any trust or power over or

concerning lands, or in any manner relating thereto, shall be created,

granted, assigned, surrendered or declared after December 2, 1861,

unless by act or operation of law, or by deed or conveyance, in writing, subscribed by
- the party creating, granting, assigning, surrendering or

declanng the same, or by the party’s lawful agent thereunto authorized

in writing.

2. Subsection 1 shall not be construed to affect in any manner the power

of a testator in the disposition of the testator’s real property by a last will

and testament, nor to prevent any trust from arising or being extinguished
by implication or operation of law.

See, NRS 111.025 (Emphasis added).

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 111.025(2) creates an exception to the

statute of frauds that allows for the creation of a constructive trust to rernedy or prevent the

type of injustice that the statute seeks to pfcvent.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in this case, we clearly have a confidential
re]ationship as the two parties were married at the time of the transfers. In addition, Mr. Nelson
acted as the investment trustee for the LSN Trust, whlch effectively created another

confidential relationship between h1m and Mrs. Nelson as she is the beneficiary of the LSN

~ Trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Mr, Nelson argues that no confidential
relationship existed between Mrs. Nelson and the ELN Trust, a confidential relationship clearly
existed between Mrs. Nelson and Mr. Nelson, who, as the beneficiary of the ELN Trust,

benefits greatly from the ELN Trust’s acquisition and accumulation of properties.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the ELN Trust’s retention of title to properties
that the LSN Trust previously held would be inequitable and would result in an unjust
enﬁchment of the ELN Trust to the financial benefit of Mr. Nelson and to the financial
detriment of the LSN Trust and Mrs, Nelson. .

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson, as a faithful and supporting spouse

of thirty years, had no reason to question Mr. Nelson regarding the true nature of the assets that

he transferred from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson argués that the imposition of a
constructive trust is barred in this instance because Mrs. Nelson benefitted from the creation
and implementatioh of the trust and cites the Nevada Supreme Court vrul'mg in DeLee v.
Roggen, to support his argument. 111 Nev, 1453 (1995).

THE CQURT FURTHER FINDS that in DeLee, the party seeking the impésition of the
constructive trust made no immediate demands because he @ew that his debtors would lay
clai.;m to the property. The court found that a constructive trust was not warranted because the
creation ‘of the trust was not necessary to effectuate justice. /d., at 1457.

THE COURT _FURT HER FINDS that unlike Delee, Mrs. Nelson made no demand for
the property be;ause Mr, Nelson assured her that he managed the assets in the trusts for the
benefit of thé community. Consequently, Mrs. Nelson did nof have notice that the LSN Trust
should reclaim the property.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Mr. Nelson acted as the investment trustee
for both the ELN ‘and LSN Trust respectively, the properties never effectively left the
community. Consequently, Mrs. Nelson never thonght that she needed to recover the

properties on behalf of the LSN Trust. Mrs. Nelson was not advised that she was not entitled to
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the benefit of the assets transferred from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust under the direction of
Mr., Nelson until the ELN Trust joined the case as a necessary party.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that allowing the ELN Truﬁt to acquire property from
the LSN Trust under the guise that these property transfers benefitted the community,
effectively deprives Mrs. Nelson of the benefit of those assets as beneficiary under the LSN
Trust, and will ultimately result in Mr. Nelson, as beneficiary of the ELN Trust, being unjustly
enriched at the expense of Mrs. Nelson.

" THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, as addressed in detail below, the Court will
impose a constructive trust on the following assets: (1) 5220 East Russell Road Property; (2)
3611 Lindell Road.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the ‘Russell Road property, according‘fo the
report prepared by Larry Bertsch, the couft-appointcd forensic accountant, Mr. Nelson, as the

investment trustee for the LSN Trust, purchascd the property at 5220 E. Russell Road on

November 11, 1999, for $855,945. Mr. Nelson’s brother, Cal Nelson, made a down payment of

$20,000 and became a 50% owner of the Russell Road Property despite this paltry
contribution,” Cal Nelson and Mrs. Nelson later formed CJE&L, LLC, which rented this
property to Cal’s Blue Water Marine. Shortly thereafter, CJE&L, LLC obtained a $3,100,000
loén for the purpose of constructing a building for Cal’s Blue Water Marine.’

| THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in 2004, Mrs, Nelson signed a guarantee on the
flooring contract for Cal’s Blue Water Marine. She subsequently withdrew her guarantee and
the LSN Trust forfeited its interest in the property to Cal Nelson. While Mr. Nelson argues that

the release of Mrs. Nelson as g\iarantor could be consideration, the flooring contract was never

5 Mr. Nelson testified that Cal Nelson also assumed a $160,000 liability arising from a transaction by Mr. Nelson
involving a Las Vegas Casino.
® Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG
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produced at trial and no value was ever assigned as to Mrs. Nelson’s liability, Furthermore, the
Decla;ration of Value for Tax Purposes indicates that it was exempted from taxation due to
being a “transfer without consideration for being transferred to or from a trust.” As such, the
alleged consideration was never established and appears to be iliusory, and, accordingly, the
LSN Trust received no compensation from the Russell Road ;transaction.s

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in February 2010, Mr. Nelson purchased a 65%
interest in the Russell Road property, with Cal Nelson retaihing a 35% interest in the property.

: THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that oﬁ May 27,2011, the Russell Road property was

sold for $6,500,000, As part of the sale, Mr. Nelson testified that the ELN Trust made a
$300,000 loan to the purchaser for improvements to the property, however, a first note/deed
was placed in the name of Julie Brown in the amount $300,000 for such property improvement
loé.n. Dge to the ambiguity as to who is entitled to repayment of the $300,000 loan (ELN Trust
or Jﬁlié ‘Brown), the Court is not inclined at this time to include such loan into the calculation
as to the ELN Trust’s intereét in the property.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that a second note/deed was ‘place_d' on the Russell
Road property in the amount of $295,000 to recapture all back rents and taxes. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that through a series of notes/deeds, the ELN Trust is

currently entifled to 66.67% of the $6,500,000 purchase price and 66.67% of the $295,000

" note/deed for rents and taxeé. Therefore, the ELN Trust and Mr. Nelson are entitled to

proceeds in the amount of $4,530,227 ($4,333,550 + $196,677) from the Russell Road property

transaction.”

: Defendant’s Exhibit UUUU
1d.
9 Defendant's Exhibit GGGG.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that because the LSN Trust was not compensated for
transferring its interest in Russell Road, under the advice and direction of Mr. Nelson, it would
be inequitable to alléw the ELN Trust to retain its full 65.67% interest in the property to the
detriment of the LSN Trust. Therefore, the Court hereby imposes a constructive trust over half
of the ELN Trust 66.67% ownership interest in the Russell Road property on behalf of the LSN
Trust, As such, the LSN Trust is entitled to a 50% interest of the ELN Trust’s 66.67%
ownership interest, resulting in the LSN Trust effectively receiving an overall one-third interest
in the Russell Road property with a vélue of $2,265,113.50 ($4,333,550 + $196,677 x 1/2).

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the 3611 Lindell property, on August 22,

2001, the entire interest in the property was transferred to the LSN trust from Mrs, Nelson’s

. 1993 revocable trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on March 22, 2007, a 50% interest in the Lindell

Aprdperty was transferred to the ELN Trust at the direction of Mr. Nelson without any

compensation to the LSN Trust. Review of the Grant, Bargain, Sale Deed allegedly executed
by Mis. Nelson on said date clearly reflects a signature not consistent with Mxs. Nelson’s
signature when cdmpared to the numerous documents signed by Mrs. Nelson and submitted to
this Court. As such, the {Ialidity of the transfer of the 50% interest of the LSN Trust to the ELN
Trust is seriously questioned."® |

THE CQURT FURTHER FINDS that while Mr. Ge?ety testified that consideration for
the 50% interest being transferred to the ELN Trust was the transfer of the Mississippi property
to the LSN, the court did not find such testimony credible as it appears that the trénsfer of the
Mississippi property occurred in 2004, whereas, the Lindell transfer to the ELN Trust was in

2007. In addition, the testimony was not clear as to which Mississippi properties were involved

~ !° Defendant's Exhibit PPPP.
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in the alleged transfer and no credible testimony as to the value of the Missiséippi property was
presented. Accordingly, any alleged consideration for the transfer of the 50% interest in the
Lindell property from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust is illusory.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that because the LSN Trust was not compensated for
transferring a 50% interest in the Lindell property to the ELN Trust, under the advice and
direction of Mr. Nelson, it would inequitable to allow the ELN Trust to retain 50% interest in
the property.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Coﬁn imposes a constructive trust over the
ELN Trust’s 50% interest in the Lindell property; therefore, the LSN Trust is entitled to 100%
interest in the Lindell property, with an appraised value of $1,145 ,006.

Unjust Enrichment ‘ |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that to allow the ELN Trust to retain the benefits
from the sale of the High County Inn, which will be addressed hereinafier, to the detriment of
the LSN 'I"rust, would result in the unjust enrichment of the ELN Trust at the expense of the
LSNTwst.

| THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on January 11, 2000, the High Country Inn was
initially purchased by Mrs. Nelson’s Revocable 1993 Trust.!! While hmltiple transfer decds
were executed with related parties (e.g. Grotta Financial Partnership, Frank Soris) at the
direction of Mr. Nelson, the LSN Trust owned the High Country Inn. On January 18, 2007, Mr.
Nelson, as invesiment trustee for both the ELN \Trust and the LSN Trust, was the sole

orchestrator of the transfer of the High Country Inn from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust.

11 The Nelson Trust would Jater transfer its interest in the High Country Inn to the LSN Trust on 5/30/01.

18
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on .Tanuary 19, 2007, the ELN Trust sold the
High Country Inn for $1,240,000 to Wyoming Lodging, LLC, with the proceeds from the sale
being placed directly into the bank account of ELN Trust,”> without any compensation being
paid to the LSN Trust,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in a fashion similar to the Russell Road
transaction, the ELN Trust provided no consideration to the LSN Trugt. Further, it is quite
apparent that Mr. Nelson never intended to compensate the LSN Trust as evidenced by Mr.
Nelson’s 2007 Tax Return Form, which listed both the sale of “Wyoming Hotel” (High
Cﬁunﬁy Inn) and “Wyoming OTB” (Off Track Betting) on his Form 1040 Schedule D.”v

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that allowing the ELN Trust to retain the benefit of

 the proceeds from the sale of the High Country Inn would be unjust, and, accordingly, the LSN

Trust is entitled to just compensation, As éuch, an amount equal to the proceeds from the‘sale,
or in the alternative, propgrty with éomparable yalpe, should be transferred to the LSN Trust to
avoid the ELN Trust from being unjustly eﬁiched.

- THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr, NelsAon created Banone, LLC on November
15, 2007, the same year that he sold High Country Inn.'* The Operating Agreement lists the
ELN Trust as the Initial Sole Member of the company, meaning that Banone, LLC is an asset
of the ELN Trust and that all benefits received from the managing of this company are

conferred to Mr, Nelson, as benef'lciary of the ELN Trust.

2 On Sanuary 24, 2007, Uinta Title & Insurance wired proceeds in the total amount of $1,947,153.37 ($1,240,000
for High Country Inn and $760,000 for the Off Track Beiting Rights} to the ELN Trust’s bank account.

¥ Defendant’s Exhibit NNNN.

 Phaintiff's Exhibit 10K.




o 08 A O\ W B W N

R S T T T S S S — S N ~ S S S O

28

FRANK F. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT, O
LAS VEGAS NV 83101

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Banone, LLC, currently holds seventeen
Nevada properties worth $1,184,236."°

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that equity and justice demands that the LSN Trust
receive just compensation in the amount of $1,200,000 for the sale of the High Country Inn in
order to avoid the ELN Trust from being unjustly enriched, and, therefore, the LSN Trust
should be awarded the Banone, L1.C, properties held by ELN Trust, with a comparable value of
$1,184,236. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that there were additional transfers from the LSN

‘Trust to the ELN Trust, without just compensation, which financially benefitted the ELN Trust

to the detriment of the LSN Trust, specifically regarding the Tierra del Sol property,
Tropicana/Alberts‘on property and the Brianhead cabin.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the Tierra del Sol property, the entire
interest in the property WaS initially hetd in Mrs. Nelson’s Revocable Trust and was
subsequently transferred to the LSN Trust on or about October 18, 2(}0.1. '

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Tierra del Sol property was sold in August 5,
2003, for $4,800,000. Out of the proceeds from the first installment payment, Mr. Nelson had a
check issued from the LSN Trust account in the amount of $677,717.48 in payment of a line of
credit incurred by Mr, Nelson against the Palmyra r¢sidence, which was solely owned by the
LSN Trust. From the proceeds for the second installment payment, the ELN Trust received
proceeds in the amount of $1,460, 190.58. As such, the ELN Trust received proceeds from the

sale of the Tierra del Sol property despite having no ownership interest in the property. :

15 Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Mr. Gerety testified that the ELN Trust
paid federal taxes in the amount of $509,400 and Arizona taxes in the amount $139,240 for a
total of $648,640 on behalf of the LSN Trust from the proceeds received by the ELN Trust
from the sale of the Tierra del Sol property, that would still leave over $800,000 that the ELN
Trust received despite having no ownership interest in the Tieﬁ‘a del Sol property,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the Tropicana/Albertson’s property, the

. ELN Trust transferred a 50% interest in the property to the LSN Trust in November of 2004 in

consideration of an $850,000 loan to the ELN Trust from the LSN Trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Minutes dated November 20, 2004, reflected that

-~ all Mississippi property and Las Vegas property owned by the ELN Trust was transferred to the

LSN trust as final paymeﬁt on the 2002 loans from the LSN to the ELN Trust and to “level off
the trusts.” It must.be noted that in Novembver‘ of 2004 the only Las Vegas property owned by
ihe ELN Trust was the Tropicana/Albertson property. _

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in 2007, Mr. Nelson had the LSN Trust Heed
back the 'I_‘ropicana/AIber_téou property to the ELN Trust, without compensation, and then sold
the property the séme day; résulting in the ELN Trust receiving all the proceeds from the sale
of the property in the amount of $966,780.23. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the Brianhead cabin, the entire interest was
held by the LSN Trust.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that on May 22, 2007, a 50% interest in the
Brianhead cabin was transferred to the ELN Trust at the direction of Mr. Nelson without any

compensation to the LSN Trust.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDé that while Mr. Gerety testified that consideration for
the 50% interest in the Brianhead cabin being transferred to the ELN Trust was the transfer of
the Mississippi property to the LSN, the court did not find such testimony credible as it appears
that the transfer of the Mississippi propefty occurred in 2004, whereas, the Brianhead cabin
transfer to the ELN Trust was in 2007, In addition, the testimony was not clear as to which
Mississippi properties were involved in the alleged transfer and no credible testimony as to the
value of .the Mississippi property was presented. Accordingly, any alleged consideration for the
tlﬁnsfer of the 50% interest in the Brianhead cabin property from the LSN Trust to tﬁe ELN
Trust is illusory. | .

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the transférs from the LSN Trust to the EI;.N
Trust regarding the Tierra del Sol property, the Tropicana/Albertson pmperty and the
Brianhead cabin all financially benefitted the ELN Trust to the financial detriment of the LSN
Trust. \

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that throughout the history of the Trusts, there were
significant loans from the.LSN Trust to the ELN Trust, specifically: $172,293.80 loan in Ma);
of 2002; $700;000 lqan‘ in October of 2003; $250,000 loan in December of 2005 which resulted
in a total amount of $576,000 being borrowed by the ELN Trust from the LSN Trust in ZbOS.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while testimony was presented regarding
repayments of the numerous loans via cash and property transfers, the Court was troubled by
the fact that the loans were always going from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust and further
froubled by the fact that the evidence failed to satisfactorily establish that all of the loans were

in fact paid in full,

22
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THE.COURT FURTHER FINDS that the evidence clearly established that Mr. Nelson
exhibited a coufsc of conduct in which he had significant property transferred, including loané,
from the LSN Trust to the ELN Trust which benefited the ELN Trust to the detriment of the
LSN Trust, and, as such, justice and equity demands that the LSN Trust receive compensation
to avoid such unjust enrichment on the part of the ELN Trust.

Credibility

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the first six days of trial held in 2010, Mr.

Nelson repeatedly testified that the actions he took were on behalf of the community and that

the ELN Trust and LSN Trust were part of the community.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the last several weeks of frial in 2012, Mr. -

Nélson changed his testimony to reflect his new position that the ELN Trust and the LSN Trust

were not part of the commumty and were the separate property of the respectwe trusts, |
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. ‘Nelson failed to answer questions 1n a direct

and forthright manner throughout the course of the proceedings. ‘
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson argued in the Motion to Dissolve

Injunction requesting the release of $1,568,000, which the Court had ordered be placed in a

blocked trust account and enjoined from being released, that the ELN Trust “has an opportunity

to purchase Wyoming Racing LLC, a horse racing track and RV park, for $440,000.00;
however, the ELN will be unable to do so unless the Injunction is dissolved.”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that despite the Court’s denial of the requeét to
dissolve the injunction, the ELN Trust via Dynasty Development Group, LLC, completed the

transaction and reacquired Wyoming Downs at a purchase pﬁce of $440,000. The completion

23
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of the purchase, without the dissolution of the injunction, evinced that Mr. Nelson misstated the
ELN Trust’s financial position, ot at the very least was less than truthful with this Court.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that it should be noted that in an attempt to
circumvent this Court’s injunction regarding the §1,568,000, Mxr. Nelson had a Bankruptcy
Petition filed in the United States Bankruptcy Court, District of Nevada, on behalf of the
Dynasty Development Group, LLC, requestiﬁg that the $1,5 68,000 be deemed property of the
Debtor’s Eankruptcy estate; however, the bankruptcy court found that this Court had exclusive
jurisdiction over the $1,568,000 and could make whatever disposition of the funds without
regatd to the Debtor’s bankruptcy ﬁiing.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that based upon Mr. Nelson’s change of testimony
under oath, his repe‘éted failure to answer questions in a direct and forthright manner, his less
that candid testimony regarding the nécessity of dissol\‘ring the injunction in order to purchase

the Wyoming race track and RV park, and his attempt to circumvent the injunction issued by

this Court clearly reflect that Mr. Nelson lacks credibility.-

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that United States Bankruptcy Judge, Neil P. Olack,
of the Southern District of Mississippi, cited similar concerns as to Mr. Nelson’s credibility
during a bankruptcy proceeding held on June 24, 2011, regarding Dynasty Development
Group, LLC. Specifically, Jadge Olack noted that as a witness, Mr. Nelson simply lacked
credibility in that hé failed to provide direct answers to straight forward questions, which gave

the clear impression that he was being less than forthcoming in his responses.’®

1 Defendant’s Exhibit QQQQQ.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Bankruptcy Judge Olack found that the evidence
showed that Mr. Nelson depleted the assets of Dynasty on the eve of its bankruptcy filing in
three scparafe transfers, and, subsequently, dismissed the Bankruptcy Petition.!”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s behavior and conduct during the
course of thcse'pro'ceedings has been deplbrab]e. This Court has observed Mr. Nelson angtily
bursting from the courtroom following hearings. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson has rcpeatedly exhibited
inappropriate condﬁct towards opposing counsel, Mr. Dickerson, including, cursing at him,
leaving vulgar voice messages on his office phone and challenging him to a fight in the parking
lot of his office.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s deplorable behavior also included

an open and deliberate violation of the J oint Preliminary Injunction that has been in place since

‘May 18, 2009. On 12/28/2009, Mr. Nelson purchased the Bella Kathryn property and

subsequently p'urchaécd the adjoining lot on 8/ 11/2010. Currently, with improvements to the
properties factored in, a total of $1,839,495 has been spent on the Bella Kathryn property.
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson was living in the Harbor Hills
residence upon his separation from Mrs. Nelsbn and could have remained there indefinitely
pending the conclusion of these proceedings, however, he chose to purchase the Bella Kathryn
residence in violation of the JPT simply because he wanted a résidence comparable to the

marital residence located on Palmyra.

17 Defendant’s Exhibit QQQQQ.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that due to Mr. Nelson’s willful and deliberate
violation of the JPI, the Bella Kathryn property will be valued at its “costs” in the amount of
$1,839,495 and not at its appraised value of $925,000 as a sanction for Mz, Nelson’s |
contemptuous behaviof.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to Mr. Daniel Gerety, who testified as an
expért witness on behalf of the ELN Trust and Mr, Nelson, he based his report solely on
information and documentation provided to him by Mr. Nelsoﬁ. It appears that Mr. Gerety
made no effort to engage Mrs. Nelson or her counsel in the process. In the Understanding of
Fécts section of his réport, Mr. Gerety repeatedly used the phrases “I have been told” or “I am
advised”.'® Since Mr. Gerety considered statements from M. Nelson and others who were in
support of Mr. Nelson, an impartial protocol wou‘ld dictate théq; he obtain statements from Mrs.
Nélson and her cbunscl in order to have a full and complete framework to fairly address the
issues at hand.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Gerety has mﬁintained a financially
beneficial relationship with Mr. Nelson dating back to 1998. This relationship, which has netted
Mr, Gerety many thousands of dollars in the past and is likely to continue to do so in the future,
calls in question his impartiality.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Mr. Gerety submitted documentation
allegedly outlining every transaction made by the ELN Trust from its inception through
September 2011, and “tracing” the source of funds used to establish Banone, LLC, this Court
found that Mr. Gerety’s testimony was not reliable, and, as such, the Court found it to be of

little probative value.

8 Intervenor’s Exhibit 168.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to Rochelle McGowan, she has had an
employment relationship with Mr. Nelson dating back to 2001, and was the person primarily
responsible for regularly notarizing various documents executed by Mr. and Mrs. Nelson on
behalf of the ELN Trust and LSN Trust, respectively.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that it was the regular practice for Mr. Nelson to

- bring documents home for Mrs. Nelson’s execution and to return the documents the following

day to be notarized by Ms. McGowan.
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the testimony of Ms. McGowan indicating that

she would contact Mrs. Nelson prior to the notarization of her signature is not credible as the

© Court finds it difficult to believe that Ms. McGowan would actually contact Mrs. Nelson

directly every time prior to notarizing the documents.
Lack of Trust Formalities a

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the f@nnalitics outlined within the ELN Trust and
the LSN Trust were not sufficiently and consistently followed. Article eleven, section 11.3, of
both trusts provides that Attormney Buir, as Trusf Consultant, shall have the right to remove any
trustee, with the eiceptiqn of Mr. Nelson and Mrs. Nelson, provided that he gives the current
trustee ten days written notice of their removal.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Attorney Burr testified that on February 22,
2007, at Mr. Nelson’s request, ile removed Mr. Nelson’s employee, Lana Martin, as
Distribution Trustee of both the ELN Trust and the LSN Trust and appointed Mr. Nelson’s
sister, Nola Harber, as the new Distribution Trustee for both trusts. Attorney Burr further
testified that he did nat provide Ms. Martin with ten days notice as specified in the trusts

documents. In June 2011, at Mr. Nelson’s request, Attorney Burr once again replaced the
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Distribution Trustee for the ELN Trust, without providing ten days notice, by replacing Nola

Harber with Lana Martin,

THE COURT FURTHER'FINDS that the ELN Trust and LSN Trust documents require
that a meeting of the majority of the trustees be held prior to any distribution of truét income or
principal. During the meetings, the trustees must discuss the advisability of making ‘
distributions to the ELN Trust Trustor, Mr. Nelson, and the LSN Trust Trustor, Mrs, Nelson., At
that time, a vote must take place and the Distribution Trustee must provide an affirmative vote.

* THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the testimdny of Laﬁa Martin and Nola Harber
indicate that neithe;r one of therﬁ ever entered a negatii/e vote in regards to distributions to Mr.
Neléoﬁ or Mrs. Nelson. The testimony also reflected that neither one of them ever advised Mr.
Nelson or Mrs. Nelson on the feasibility of making such distributions.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Ms. Martin and Ms, Harber testified that

they had the authority to approve or deny the distributions to Mr. Nelson under the ELN Trust

and to Mrs Nelson under the LSN Trust, that de'spite literally hundreds of distributions
requests, they never denied even a singlé distribution r,eduest. Therefore, Ms, Martin and Ms.
Harber were no more than a ;‘rubﬁér stamp” for Mr. Nelson’s directions as to distributions to
Mr. Nelson and Mrs. Nelson.

. THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the ELN Trust produced multiple Minutes
of alleged meetings; this :Court seriously questions the authenticity of the submitted
documentation, Specifically, several of the Minutes were unsigned, the authenticity of the
signatures reflected on some of the Minutes were questionable, and several of the Minutes
reflected that the meetings were held at the office of Attorney Burr while the testimony clearly

established that no such meetings ever occurred at his law office.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Daniel Gerety testified that he had to make
numerous adjustments to correct bookkeeping and accounting errors regarding the two trusts by
utilizing the entries “Due To” and “Due From” to correctly reflect the assets in each trust.

THE COURT fURTHER FINDS that the numerous bookkeeping and accounting
errors, in conjunction with the corresponding need to correct the entries to accurately reflect the

assets in each trust, raises serious questions as to whether the assets of each trust were truly

“being separately maintained and managed.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the lack of formalities further emphasizes the

amount of control that Mr. Nelson exerted over both trusts and that he did indeed manage both

trust for the benefit of the community.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the Court could invalidate both Trusts
based upon the lack of Trust formalities, this Court is not inclined to do so since invalidation of
the Trusts cduld have serious implications for both parties in that it could expose the assets to
the claims of creditors, thereby,'déféating the intent of the parties to “supercharge” the
protection of the assets from creditors. -

Liabilities

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while Mr. Nelson argued that he and the ELN
Tﬁét were subject to numerous liabilities, this Court did not find any documented evidence to
suppott such claims except for the encumbrance attached to the newly reacquired Wyoming

Downs property.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Bertsch’s report addresses several
unsupported liabilities alleged by Mr. Nelson. Specifically, Mr. Nelson reported a contingent
liability attached to the property located in the Mississippi Bay, however, no value was given to
the liability."” - _

' HE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Bertsch report indicated that several of the
liabilities were actually options held by subsidiaries that Mr. Neison owns or options held by
telatives of Mr. Nelson, and, as such, were not true liabilities.?°

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that.while Mr. Nelson represented that a $3,000,000
lawsuit was threatened by a third-party in regards to a transaction invqlving the Hideaway
Casiﬁo, no evidence was submitted to the Court that any such lawsuit had in fact been filed.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the only verified liability is the loan attached to
Wyoming Downs. As mentioned a;bove, Mr. Nelson, via Dynasty Development Group, -
purchased eroming Downs in December 2011 for $440,000 and subsequently obtained a loan
against the property. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that outside of the encumbrance attached to the
Wyoming Downs property, the liabilities alleged by Mr. Nelson have not been established as
true,liabiiiti es and are based on mere speculations and thréats.

Community Waste -

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Nevada Supreme Court case of Lofgren v.
Lofgren addressed community waste and found that the husband wasted community funds by
making transfers/payments to family members, using the funds to improve the husband’s home

and using the funds to furnish his new home. Lofgren v. Lofgren, 112 Nev, 1282, 1284 (1996).

¥ Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG.
014,
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that evidence was adduced at trial that the transfers to
Mr. Neléon’s family members were to compensate them for various services rendered and for
joint-investment purposes, and while some of the family transfers were indeed questionable,
Mr. Bertsch, the forensic accountant, testified that 1099s were provided to document income
paid and loan repayments to Mr. Nelson’s family members.*!

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that transfers to Mr. Nelson’s family members appear
to have been part of Mr. Nelson’s regular business 'practices during the course of the marriage -
and that Mrs. Nelson has always been aware of this practice and never questione;l such
trénsfers prior to the initiation of these proceedings.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson failed to establish that the transfers
to Mr. Nelson’s family members constituted waste upon the community estate.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to Mr, Nelson’s purchase, improvement and
furnishing of the Bella Kathryn residence via the ELN Trust, the ELN Trust and Mr. Nelson are
being sanctioned by this Court by valuing such property at “costs” in the aniouﬁt of $1,839,495
’instcad of at its appraised value of $925,000; and, accordingly, it would be unjust for this Court
to further consider the Bella Kathryn property under a claim of community waste.

Child Support

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson is entitled té child support arrears

pursuant to NRS 12513.630 which provides for the physical custodian of the children to recover

child sui:port from the noncustodial'parent.

2l Mr. Bertsch did not confirm whether or nat the 1099s were filed with the IRS as that was not within the scops of
his assigned dutjes.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the parties separated in September of 2008 when
Mr. Nelson permanently left the marital residence, and, therefore, Mirs. Nelson is entitled to
child support payments commencing in October 2008.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s monthly earnings throughout the
course of these extended p;oceedings exceeded the statutory presumptiyé maximpm income
range of $14,816 and plaé"e_s I'li"s' mdhﬂi1§ c‘hii‘d s'uppart bﬁii'gafiéﬁ'é; the presumptwe maxunum
amount wh1ch has Variea fr’ém'yeéf to"‘y"éér.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s child support obligation
qommen'cing on October 1, 2008 through May 31, 2013, inclusive, is as follows:

October 1, 2008 - June 30, 2009 - [(2 children x $968) x 9 months] = $17,424
July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010 = [(2 children x §969) x 12 menths] = $23,256
July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011 = [(2 children x $995) x 12 months] = $23,880
July 1,2011 - June 30,2012 =[(2 children x $1010) x 12 months] = $24,240

July 1, 2012 - May 31, 2013 = [(2 children x $1040)x 11 months] = $22.880
: Total = $111,680

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr, Bertsch’s report indicates that Mr. Nelson
has spent monies totaling $71,716 on the minor children since 2009, to wit;

2009; Carli = $14,000; Garrett = $5,270;

2010: Carli= $9,850; Garrett = $29,539;

2011; Carli=_$8.630; Garrett = $4.427
Total = $71,716

e
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 125B.080(9) describes the factors that the
Court must consider when adjusting a child support obligation. The factors to consider are:

(a) The cost of health insurance;
(b) The cost of child care;
(¢) Any special educational needs of the child;
{d) The age of the child,;
(e) The legal responsibility of the parents for the support of others;
(f) The value of services contributed by either parent;
(g) Any public assistance paid to support the child; }
(h) Any expenses reasonably related to the mother’s pregnancy and confinement;
(i) The cost of transportation of the child to and from visitation if the custodial parent |
moved with the child from the jurisdiction of the court which ordered the support
and the noncustodial parent remained;
(i) The amount of time the child spends with each parent;
(k) Any other necessary expenses for the benefit of the child; and
(1) The relative income of both parents.

" THE ‘COURT FURTHER FINDS that, while the information provided to the Court does
not itemize the exact nature of the expenditures by Mr. Nelson on behalf of the children, NRS
125B.080(9)(k) does provide fora deviéﬁon for any other necessary expenses for the benefit of
the child. |

THE CQURT FURTHER FINDS that considering the fact that $71,716 is a relatively
large sum of money, it would appear that faimesg and equity demands that Mr, Nelson be given
some credit for the pa"ymcnts»he madé on behalf of the children. Thérefore, the Court is inclined
to give Mr. Nelson credit for 823,905 (one-third of the payments made on bebalf of the
children), resulting in child support arrears in the amount of $87,775.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, while Mr. Nelson did spend a rather significant
amount of monies on the children dating back to 2009, Mr. Nelson did not provide any monies
whatsoevér to Mrs, Nelson in support of the minor children, and, as such, crediting Mr. Nelson

with only one-third of such payments on behalf of the children seems quite fair and reasonable.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson is entitled to cutrent child support in
the amount of $1,040 a month ﬁer child commencing June 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013 fora
monthly total of $2,080. ‘

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that subject minor, Garrett, is 18‘ years old and will be
grgduating from high schoolnin June of 2013, and, as such, Mr. Nelson’s child support
obligation as to Garrett ends on June 30, 2013,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that beginning July 1, 2013, Mt Nelson’s child
support. obligation as to Carli will be $1,058 per ﬁloﬁth.

Spousal Support
THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 125.150 provides as follows:

1. In granting a divorce, the court: ' .
(a) May award such alimony to the wife or to the husband, in a specified principal sum or as
specified periodic payments, as appears just and equitable; and
(b) Shall, to the extent practicable, make an equal disposition of the community property of the
parties, except that the court may make an unequal disposition of the community property in
- such proportions as it deems just if the court finds a compelling reason to do so and sets forth in
writing the reasons for making the unequal disposition

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS.that the Nevada Supreme Court has outlined seven

factors to be considered by the court when awarding alimony such as: (1) the wife’s career prior

to marriage; (2) the length of the marriage;' (3) the husband's education during the marriage; (4)

the wife's marketability; (5) the wife's ability to suppert herself; (6) whether the wife stayed
home with the children; and (7) the wife's a\;vard, besides child support and alimony. Sprenger
v. Sprenger, 110 Ne\;’. 855, 859 (1974).

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that‘the Nelsons have been married for nearly thirty
years; that their earning capacities are drastically different in that Mr, Nelson has demonstrated
excellent business acumen as reflected by the large sums of monies gencrated through his

multiple business ventures and investments; that Mrs. Nelson only completed a year and a half

34
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of college and gave up the pursuit of a career éu'tside of the home to become a stay at home
mothen" to the couple’s five children; that Mrs. Nelson’s career prior to her marriage and during
the first few years of her marriage consisted of working as a receptionist at a mortgage
company, éales clerk at a department store and a runner at a law firm, with her last job outside
of the home being in 1986,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson’s lack of work experience and
limited education greatly diminishes her marketability. Additi()lnally, Mrs. Nelson solely relied
on Mr. Nelson, as her husband and delegated investment trustee, to‘ acquire and manage

prbperties to support her and the children, and, as such, Mrs. Nelson's ability to support herself

' is essentially limited to the property award that she receives via these divorce proceedings.

‘ THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that While Mfs.-Nelson will receive a substantial
property award via this Divorce Decree, including some income gefxerating properties, the
monthly income genefated and the values of the real property may fluctuate significantly
depending on market conditions. In addition, it could take considerable time to liquidate the
property, as needed, especially considering the current state of the real estate market. As such,
Mirs. Nelson may have significant difficulty in accessing any equity held in those properties.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that conversely, Mr. Nelson has become a formidable
and accomplished businessnian and invéstor. Mr. Nelson’s keen business acumen has allowed
him to amass a substantial amount of wealth over the course of the marriage.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the repurchase of Wyoming Downs by Mr.
Nelson via Dynastsf Development Group and his ability to immediately obtain a loan against
the property to pull out abt;ut $300,000 in equity, clearly evidences Mr. Nelson’s formidable

and accomplished business acumen and ability to generate substantial funds through his
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investment talents. This type of transaction is not atypical for Mr. Nelson and demonstrates his
extraordinary abilit&, which was deifeloped and honed during the couple’s marriage, to evaluate
and maximize business opportunities and will ensure that he is always ablé to support himself,
unlike Mrs. Nelson.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that based the upon the findings addressed
hf;reinabove, Mrs. Nelson is entitled to an award of spousal support pursuant to NRS 125.150
and the factors emmciated in Sprenger®

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that during the marriage, at the direction of Mr.
Nelson, Mrs. Nelson initiatly received monthly disbursements in the amount of $5,000, which
was increased to $10,000 per month, and ultimately increased to $20,000 per month dating

back to 2004. The $20,000 per month disbursements did not include expenses which were paid

directly through the Trusts.

~ THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that based upon the distributions that Mrs. Nelson

was receiving during the marriage, $20,000‘ per month is a fair and reasonable amount

~ necessaty to maintain the lifestyle that Mrs. Nelson had become accustomed to during the

course of the marriage.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that based upon the property distribution that will be
addressed hereinafter, Mrs, Nelson will receive some income producing properties (Lindell,
Russell Road, ,Somt: of the Banone, LLC properties).

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the evidence adduced at trial reflected that
the Lindell property should generate a cash flow of approximately $10,000 a month, the
evidence failed to clearly establish the monthly cash flow from the remaining properties.

However, in the interest of resolving this issue without the need for additional litigation, this

2 gorenger v. Sprenger, 110 Nev. 855 {1974).
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Court will assign an additional $3,000 a month cash flow from the remaining properties
resulting in Mrs. Nelson receiving a total monthly income in the amount of $13,000.

| THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that based upon a monthly cash flow in the amount of
$13,000 generated by the income producing properties, a rﬁonthly spousal support award in the

amount of $7,000 is fair and just and would allow Mrs. Nelson to maintgin the lifestyle that she

had become accustomed to throughout the course of the marriage,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mrs. Nelson is 52 yeafs of age_and that spousal
support payments in the amount of $7,000 per month for 15 years, which would effectively
assist and support her through her retirement age, appears to be a just and equitable spousal
support award. ' |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 125.150(a) provides, in pertinent part, that
the court may award alimony in a specified principal sum or as specified periodic payment
(emphasis added). _ .

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Nevada Supreme Court has indicated that 2
luﬁqp sum award is the setting aside of a spouse’s separate propérty for‘ the support of the other
sﬁouse and is appropriate under the statute. Sargeant v.‘ Sargeant, 88 Nev. 223, 229 (1972). In
Sargeant, the Supreme Court affirmed the trial court’s decision to award the wife [ump sum
alimony based on the husband short life expectancy and his litigious nature. The Supreme
Court, citing the trial court, highlighted that “the overal! attitude of this plaintiff illustrates -
sofne possibiﬁty that he might attempt to liquidate, interfere, hypothecate or give away his

assets to avoid payment of alimony or support obligations to the defendant” /d. at 228,
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelsen’s open and deliberate violation of the
Joint Preliminary Injunction evidences his attitude éf disregard for court orders. The Court also
takes notice of Bankruptcy Judge Olack’s fmding'that Mr. Nelson attempted to deplete the
assets of Dynasty Development Group on the eve of the bankruptcy filing, raising the concern
that Mr. Nelson may depléte assets of the ELN Trust precluding Mrs. Nelson from receiving a
periodic alimony award.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson has been less than forthcoming as to
the nature and extent of the aésets of the ELN Trust whigh raises another possible deterrent
from Mrs. Nelson receiving periodic élimony payments. | |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, as addressed hereinbefore, the ELN Trust moved
this Court to dissolve the injunction regarding the $1,568,000 because it “has an opportunity to
purchase Wyoming Racing LLC, a horse racing track and RV park, for $440,000.00; however,
the ELN will be unable to do so unless the Injunction is dissolved.”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that despite the representation to the Court that the

m;unctmn needed to be dlssolved so that the ELN Trust would be able to purchase Wyoming

‘Downs, less than a month aﬁer the hearing, the ELN Trust, with Mr. Nelson serving as the

investment trustee, completed the purchase of Wyoming Downs. This leads this Court to
believe that Mr. Nelson was less than trathful about the extent and nature of the funds available
in the ELN Tx;ust md such conduct on the part of Mr. Nelson raises serious concerns about the
actions thaf Mir. Nelson will take to preclude Mrs. Nelson from receiving periodic spousal

support payments.

38
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THE CIOURT FURTHER FINDS ;‘.hat Mr. Nelson alleged numerous debts and
liabilities worth millions of dollars, but forensic accountant, Mr. Bertsch, found that these
alleged dcbfs and liabilities were based solely on threats and speculations.
| THE COURT FUR’I‘HER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s practice of regularly transferring
broperty and assets to family members, as highlighted in the transactions involving the High
Couﬁtry Inn and Russell Road properties, contributes to this Court’s concern that Mr, Nelson
may deplete the assets.of the ELN Trust via such family transfers, and, thereby, effectively
preclude Mrs, Nelson from receiving a periodic »quusa] support award.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr, Nelson’s overall attitude throughout the
course of these proceedings illustrates the possibility that he might attempt to liquidate,
inierfcre, hypothecate or g.ive away aséets out of the ELN Trust to avoid payment of his support
obligations to Mrs. Nelson, thereby juétifyiﬁg a lumb sum spousal support award to Mrs. -
Nelson based on the factors addressed hereinabove and the rationale enunciated in Sargeant,

i THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that calculation of a monthly spousal éupport

obligation of $7,000 for 15 yeai‘s results in a total spousal support amount of $1,260,000 which

+ needs to be discounted based upon being paid in a lump sum. Accordingly, Mrs, Nelson is

entitled to a lump sum spousal support award in the amount of $800,000.

| THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the ELN Trust should be réquired to issue a
distribution from the $1,568,000 reflected in the account of Dynasty Development Group, LLC,
and currently held in a blocked trust account pursuant to this Court’s injunction, to satisfy Mr.
Nelson’s lump sum spousal support obligation and to saﬁsfy his child support arrearages

obligation.

39
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'THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson argues that Dynasty Development
Group, LLC, is 100% held by the ELN Trust, and, therefore, he has no interest in Dynasty nor
the funds reflected in the Dynasty account as all legal interest rests with the ELN Trust.”

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that various statutes and other sources suggest that
the interest of a spendthrift trust beneficiary can be reached to satisfy support of a child or a
former spouse.** Specificatly, South Dakota,vwhich also recognizes self-settled spendthrift
trust, has addressed the issue in South Dakota Codified Law § 55-16-15 which states: v

~ Notwithstanding the provisions of §§ 55-16-9 to 55-16-14, inclusive, this chapter does
not apply in any respect to any personto whom the transferor is indebted on account of
an agreement or order of court for the payment of support or alimony in favor of such
transferor's spouse, former spouse, or children, or for a division or distribution of
property in favor of such transferor's spouse or former spouse, to the extent of such debt

(emphasis added). .

Wyoming, which also allows self-settled spendthrift trust, has also addressed the matter
through Wyoming Statutes Annotated § 4-10-503(b):
(b) Even if a trust contains a spendthrift provision, a person who has a judgment or
~ court order against the beneficiary for child support or maintenance may obtain from a
court an order attaching present or-future distributions to, or for the benefit of, the
beneficiary. ’ , . :

‘THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, while not binding on this Court, these statutes

clearty demonstrate that spouses entitled to alimony or maintenance are to be treated differently

than a creditor by providing that the interest of a spendthrift trust beneficiary can be reached to

satisfy support of a child or a former spbuse.

B NRS 166.130
% Restatement (Third) of Trust § 59 {2003).

40




THE‘,‘ COURT FURTHER FINDS that in Gilbert v. Gilbert, 447 S80.2d 299, the Florida
Court of Appeals affirmed the district court’s order that allowed the wife to garnish the
husband’s beneficiary interest in a spendthrift trust to satisfy the divorce judgment regarding
alimony payments.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Gilbert court found that while “the cardinal
rule of construction in trusts is to determine the intention of the settler and give effect to his

wiShe_S .. . there is a strong public policy argument which favors subjecting the interest of the
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10|| beneficiary of atrusttoa claim for alimony.” The Court went on to state that the dependents

111| of the beneficiary should not be deemed to be creditors as such a view would “permit the

12|| beneficiary to have the enjoyment of the income from the trust while he refuses to support his

13 dependents whom it is his duty to support.”*® The Gilbert couﬁ went on to state that a party"s

14 réSponsibility to pay_ alimony “is a &uty, not a debt.”

iz THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that there is a strong public policy argument in favor

17 of subjectirig the interest of the beneficiary of a trust to a claim for spousal support and child

18|| support, and, as such, Mr. Nelson’s beneficiary interest in the ELN Trust should be subjected to

19{| Mrs. Nelson award of spousal support and child support.

204 Artorney’s Fees |

21 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that NRS 18.010(2)(b) provides, in pertinent part, for
' 2,2 the award of at’comcy’; fees to the prevailing party: “whcn the court finds that the claim,

;i counterclaim, cross-claim or third-party complaint or defense of the opposing party was

25 brought or maintained without reasonable ground or to harass the prevailing party.”

26 |

27|| »u at 301.

©  Gilbert v. Gilber, 447 S0.2d 299, 301
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson, as the Investment Trustee for the
ELN Trust, was fhg person authorized to institute legal action on behalf of the Trust.

THE COURT FUI‘{THER‘FINDS that Mr. Nelson did not request that the ELN Trust
move to be added as a necessary party to these proceedings until almost two years after
initiating this action and following the initial six days of trial. It is apparent to this Court that
Mr. Nelson was not saﬁsﬁed with the tenor of the courts preliminary “findings” in that it was
not inclined to grant his requested relief, and, consequently, decided to pursue a “second bite at
the apple” by requesting that the ELN Trust pursue being added as a necessary party.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that adding the ELN Trust as a necessary party at this
rather late stagev of the proceedings, resulted in extended and protracted litigation including the
re-opening of Discovery, the recalling of witnesses who had testified at the initial six days of
trial, and several additional days of trial.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that Mr. Nelson’s position that he had a conflict of
interest which prevented hlm from éxercisjng his authority to institute legal action on behalf of
the ELN Trust waé not credible as he had appeared before this Court on numerous occasions
regarﬁing community anste issues and the traﬁ;fer of as‘s"e,ts from the ELN Trust and the LSN
Trust and had never raised an issue as to a conflict of interest.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while both parties were aware of the existence of
the ELN and LSN Trusts from the onset of this litigation, and, as such, Mrs. Nelson could have
moved to add the ELN Trust as a necessary party, Mr. Nelson had consistently maintained
throughout his iniﬁal testimony that the assets held in the ELN Trust and the LSN Trusts were

property of the community.




1
2 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that, while this Court fully respects and supports a
3|| party’s ﬁght to fully and thoroughly litigate its position, Mr. Nelson’s change in position as to
4|\ the character of the property of the ELN Trust and LSN Trust in an attempt to get a “second
S| pite of the apple”, resulted in unreasonably and unnecessatily extending and protracting this
6 litigatioﬁ and additionally burdening this Court’s limited jﬁdicial resources, thereby justifying
; an award of reasonable attoméy fees and costs in this matter. o
ol THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in considering whether or not to award |
10 reas;onable fees and cost this Cdurt must coﬁsider “(1) the qualitiés of the advocate: his ability,
11)] histraining, educaﬁon, experience, professional standing and skill; (2) the character of the work
12 to be done: its difficulty, its intricacy, its importance, time and skill required, the responsibility
13| imposed and fche prominence and character of the parties where they affect the importance of
14 the litigation; (3) the Work actually performed by the lawyer: the skill, time and attention given
iz to the work; (45thc result: whether the attofney waé. successful and what benefits were
17 derived.” Brunzell v. Golden Gaté Nat’l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 349 (1969).
18 THE COURT FURTHER FINDS Attorney Dickerson has been Mrs. Nelson’s legal
'19 counsel continuously since September 2009 and ié a very experienced, extremely skillful and
‘ 20| well-respected laW)'fel" in the area of >Family Law. In addition, this case involved some difficult
_21 Aand Edmp]icate& legal issues concerning Spendthrift Trusts and required an exorbitant
. 22 comfnitment of time and effort, including the very detailéd and painstaking review of
zi VOlmninous real estate and financial records. Furthermore, Attorney Dickerson’s skill, expertise
25 and efforts resulted in Mrs. Nelson’s receiving a very sizeable and equitable property
26| scttlement,
27
28
oot
gretiia | -
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that upon review of attorney Dickerson’s
Memorandum of Fees and Costs, this Court feels that an award of attorney fees in the amount
of $144,967 is fair and reasonable and warranted in order to reimburse Mrs, Nelson for the
unreasonable and unnecessary extension and ﬁrotraction of this litigation by Mr. Nelson’s
change of position in fega.tds to the community nature of the property and his delay in having
the ELN Trust added as a necessary party which added significant costs to this litigaﬁén.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that while the Court could invalidate the Trusts‘ based
upon Mr. Nelson’s testimony as to community nature of the assets held by each Trust, the
breach §f his fiduciary duty as a spouse, the breach of his fiduciary duty as an investment
trustee, the lack of Trust fOrmahtms under the principles of a constructive trust, and under the
doctrine of unjust ennchment the Court feels that keeping the Trusts intact, while transferrmg
assets between the Trusts to “level off the Trusts”, would effectuate the parties clear intentions
of “supercharging” the protection of the' assets from creditors while ensuring that the respective
values of the Trusts remained equal,

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in lieu of fransferring assets between the Trusts
to levél off the Trust and to achieve an equitable allocation of the assets between the Trusts as
envisioned ﬁy the parties, the Couﬁ could award a sizable monetary judgment against Mr. -
Nelson for the extensive property and monies that wére transferred from the LSN Trust to the
ELN Trust, at his direction, and issue a corresponding charging order against any distributions

to Mr, Nelson until such judgment was fully satisfied.
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THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that the Court has serious concems that Mrs, Nelson
would have a very difficult time collecting on the judgment without the need to pursue endless
and costly litigation, especially considering the extensive and litigious nature of these
proceedings.

- THE COURT FURTHER FINbS that due to Mr. Nelson’s business savvy and the
complexity of his business transactions, the Court is concerned that he could effectively deplete
the assets of the_ ELN Trﬁst wifhout the need to go thfough distributions, thefeby eircumventing
the satisfaction of the judgment via a charging order against his future distributions. |

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that ifs concern about Mr. Nelson depleting the assets
of the ELN Trust seems to be well founded when considering the fact that Bankruptcy Judge
Olack found tﬁat Mr. Nelsoﬁ depleted the assets of Dynasty on the eve of its bankruptcy filing.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that upon review of Mr. Bertsch’s Second

| Applicatioh of Forensic AcCountants for Allowance of Fees and Reimbursementvof Expenses

for the Period from April 1, 2012 through July 25, 2012, Mr. Bertsch is entitled to payment of
his outstandmg fees in the amount of $35,258.

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that in preparing this Decree of Divorce, the
monetary yalues and figures reflected herein 'were‘based on values listed in Mr. Bertsch’s
report ahd the testimony elicited from the July and Aungust 2012 hearings.28

THE COURT FURTHER FINDS that as to the repurchase of Wyommg Downs by the
ELN Trust via the Dynasty Development Group, this Court is thhout sufficient information
regarding the detalls of the repurchase of the property, the value of the property and the

encumbrances on the property to make a determination as to the disposition of the property,

B Supra, note 6.
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and, accordingly, is not making any findings or decisions as to the disposition of the Wyoming
Downs property at this time. |
Conclusion |

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the
bo‘nds of matrimony now existing between Eric and Lynita Nelson are dissolved and an
absolute Decree 'of a Divorce is granted to the parties with each party being restored to the
status of a sving]ev, unmarried person.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Brianhead cabin, appraised at a value of $985,000
and currently held jointly by.the ELN Trust aﬁd the LSN Trust, is to be divided equally
betwéeﬁ the Trusts.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that both parties shall have the right of first refusal should
either Trust decide to sell its interest in the Brianhead cabin,

IT IVS FURTHER ORDEREb fhat the 66.67% interest in the Russell Road property
($4,333,550) and the 66.67% interest in the $29'5,000>n6tc/dced for rents and taxes ($196,677) |
currently held by the ELN Trust, shall be equally divided between the ELN Trust and the LSﬁ
Trust. |

vIT IS FURTHER ORDERED that both parties shall have the right of first refusal should

either Trust decide 1o sell its interest in the Russell Road property. ’
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the following properties shall remain in or be

iransferred into the ELN Tnist:

Property Awarded Value
Cash $ 80,000
Arizona Gateway Lots $ 139,500
Family Gifts $ 35,000
Gift from Nikki C. $ 200,000

. Bella Kathryn Property $1,839,495
Mississippi Property (121.23 acres) $§ 607,775
Notes Receivable $ 642,761

- Banone AZ Properties $ 913,343
Dynasty Buyout $1,568,000
14 of Brianhead Cabin $ 492,500
1/3 of Russell Road (+ note for rents) $2.265.113.50 (82,166,775 + $98,338.50)
Total $8,783,487.50

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the following properties shall remain in or be

transferred into the LSN Tﬁist:

‘Property Awarded - Value
Cash $ 200,000
Palmyra Property $ 750,000
Pebble Beach Property $ 75,000
Arizona Gateway Lots $ 135,500
Wyoming Property (200 acres) $ 405,000

* Arnold Propetty in Miss. $ 40,000
Mississippi RV Park § 559,042
Mississippi Property $ 870,193
Grotta 16.67% Interest § 21,204
Emerald Bay Miss. Prop. $ 560,900
Lindell Property $1,145,000
Banone, LLC $1,184,.236
JB Ramos Trust Note Recewable § 78,000
Y of Brianhead Cabin $ 492,500

1/3 of Russell Road (+ note for rents) $2.265.113.50 (52,166,775 + $98,338.50)

Total $8,785,988.50
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that due to the difference in the value between the ELN
Trust and the LSN Trust in the amount of $153,499, the Trusts shall be equalized by
transferring the JB Ramos Trust Note from the Notes Receivable of the ELN Trust, valued at
$78,000, to the LSN Trust as already reflected on the preceding page.z'9

ITIS ‘FURTH.ER ORDERED that the injunction regarding the $1,568,000 reflected in
the account of Dynasty Development Group, LLC, (“Dynasty Buyout”) and currently held in a
blocked trust account, is hereby dissolved.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that the ELN Trust shall use the distribution of the

$1,568,000, herein awarded to the ELN Trust, to pay off the lump sum spousal support

awarded to Mrs. Nelson in the amount of $800,000. Said payment shall be remitted within 30 ‘

days of the date of this Decree.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Mrs. Nelson is awarded child support arrears in the

amount of $87,775 and that the ELN Trust shall use the distribution of the $1,568,000, herein

* awarded to the ELN Trust, to pay off the child support arrears awarded to Mrs. Nelson viaa

lump sum payment within 30 days of issuance of this Dectee.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the ELN Ttust- shall use the distribution of the
$1,568,000, herein awarded to the ELN Trust, to pay Mr. Bertsch’s outstanding fees in the
amount of $35,258 within 30 days of issnance of this Decree.*

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the ELN Trust shall use the distribution of the
$1,568,000, herein awarded fo the ELN Trust, to reimburse Mrs. Nelson for attorney’s fees

paid to Attorney Dickerson in the amount of $144,967 in payment of fees resulting from Mr.

® Defendant’s Exhibit GGGGG.

30 Second Application of Forensic Accountants for Allowance of Fees and Reimbursement of Expenses for the
Period from April 1, 2012 through July 25, 2012. :
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Nelson’s unreasonable and unnecessary extension and protraction of this litigation. Said
payment shall be remitted to Mrs, Nelson within 30 days of the date 61‘ this Decree.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the funds remaining, in the amount of approximately
$500,600, from the distribution of the $1,568,00('),'herein awarded to the ELN Trust, after the
payment of ﬁe spousal support, child support arrears, Mr. Bertsch’s fees and reimbursement of
the attorney fees to Mrs. Nelson, shall be distributed to Mr. Nelson within 30 days of issuance
of this Decree |

IT Ié FURTHER ORDERED that Mr, i\Ielson shall pay Mrs. Nelson $2080 in child
support for thé month of June 2013 for their children Garrett and Cmﬁ.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Mr. Nelson shall ]ﬁay Mrs. Nelson $1,058 a month in
support of their child Cafli, commencing on July 1, 2013 and continuing until Carli attains the
age of majority or completeé hi.gh school, which ever occurs last. |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Mr. Nelsbn shall maintain medical insurance
cdverage for Carli. - - -

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that any medical expenses» not paid by any medical
insﬁrance covering Carli shall be shared equally by the parties, with such payments being made
pursuant to the Court’s standard “30/30” Ru]g. | |

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the parties shall equally bear the private education

costs, including tuition, of Carli’s private school education at Faith Lutheran.

49




e & 3 & A W e

NNNNNNNHHHH;—AHUw)—Q)—
SO\MAuMHc\DOch\mAMNHG

28

FRANK R SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT, O
LAB VEGAS NV 89101

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the pai’ties shall keep any personal property now in

their possession and shall be individually responsible for any personal property, including

vehicles, currently in their possession.

Dated this 7 ~ _ dayof June, 2013,

4/7 L

Honorble Frank P. Sullivan
District Court Judge — Dept. O
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L. INTRODUCTION

On June 3, 2013, the Honorable Frank P. Sullivan, Eighth Judicial District
Court, entered a fifty (50) page Decree of Divorce (“Decree”), dissolving the
marriage of ERIC L. NELSON (“Eric”), and LYNITA S. NELSON (“Lynita”) (Eric
and Lynita are collectively referred to as the “parties”). Almost immediately
thereafter, Petitioner, NOLA HARBER, as purported DISTRIBUTION TRUSTEE
of the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001 (“ELN Trust”),
filed two (2) Petitions for Writ of Prohibition with this Court (the instant case, and
Case No. 63545), challenging the Decree and attempting to deprive Lynita of all of
the property awarded to her in such Decree. The ELN Trust also requested
emergency, temporary stays in both cases, which stays were granted temporarily by
this Court.
The ELN Trust’s Petitions for Writ of Prohibition have been pending for over
nine (9) months. During that time period, Lynita has continued to suffer substantial
and irreparable financial harm as a result of her inability to receive, or derive income
from, almost all of the property awarded to her in the Decree. There has also been
continued litigation in the underlying divorce action, and Eric and the ELN Trust
continue to take any course of action possible to delay the final disposition of the
parties’ divorce. Eric and the ELN Trust continue to receive the benefit of, and
expend the income derived from, the property awarded to Lynita, abusing the stay
issued by the Court. To continue the temporary stays issued by the Court would be
grossly inequitable, and will only cause further harm to Lynita.
II. PROCEDURAL HISTORY AND STATEMENT OF FACTS

On June 3, 2013, the District Court entered its Decree. Exhibit A. In the
Decree, the District Court, in part, made the following relevant findings:

(1)  During the first phase of trial, Eric, individually, and as Trustor and
Investment Trustee of the ELN Trust, testified repeatedly that the assets held by the
ELN and LST Trusts were community property and should be divided by the Court.

1




Exhibit A, pg. 6, line 7, to pg. 7, line 24.

(2)  After six (6) days of trial, Eric sought to have the ELN and LSN Trusts
joined to the divorce action, not satisfied with the way the proceedings were heading,
and in a legal tactic intended to give him a second chance of denying Lynita a large
share of the parties’ community assets. Exhibit A, pg. 42, lines 2-26.

(3) In 2001, Eric and Lynita, upon the advice and counsel of Jeffrey Burr,
Esq., created the ELN Trust and LSN Trust. Exhibit A, pg. 4, lines 12-15, 20-23.
The parties’ testimony “clearly established that the intent of creating the spendthrift
trusts was to provide maximum protection from creditors and was not intended to be
a property settlement in the event that the parties divorced.” Exhibit A, pg. 5, lines
16-18. Attorney Burr suggested that the parties periodically level off or equalize the
property in the ELN and LSN Trusts. Exhibit A, pg. 8, lines 2-4. The Parties
intended to maintain an equal allocation of assets between the trusts as reflected in
Minutes from a Trust Meeting, dated November 20, 2004, wherein it was stated that
property was transferred from the ELN Trust to the LSN Trust, in part, to “level off
the trusts.” Exhibit A, pg. 8, lines 9-16.

(4) That on “numerous occasions, [Eric] requested that [Lynita] sign
documentation relating to the transfer of LSN Trust assets to the ELN Trust.”
Exhibit A, pg. 9, lines 2-4. That Eric violated his fiduciary duties to Lynita as both
Investment Trustee and Trust Adviser to the LSN Trust, and as Lynita’s husband, by
failing to discuss the factors relating to the numerous transfers from the LSN Trust
to the ELN Trust. Exhibit A, pg. 9, lines 14-17; pg. 11, lines 22-27; pg. 12, lines 2-4.
That Eric was able to exercise control over properties in the LSN Trust and ELN
Trust, and freely transfer same, under the “guise that [such] property transfers
benefitted the community,” and because he “assured [Lynita] that he managed the
assets in the trusts for the benefit of the community.” Exhibit A, pg. 15, lines 4-9;
pg. 14, lines 19-21.




(5) That prior to the parties’ divorce action, millions of dollars worth of
properties were taken by Eric from the LSN Trust and transferred to the ELN Trust
without compensation, and the retention of same by Eric and the ELN Trust would
result in unjust enrichment and injustice. Exhibit A, pgs. 12-20.

(6) That Eric failed to follow the formalities of the ELN and LSN Trusts,
and had complete and unfettered access to the properties contained within such trusts.

Exhibit A, pg. 27, line 15, to pg. 29, line 12.

(7)  That Eric lacked credibility, and during the divorce proceedings: (a)
“failed to answer questions in a direct and forthright manner,” (b) violated the District
Court’s injunction; and (c¢) “misstated the ELN Trust’s financial position, or at the
very least was less than truthful with [the District Court].” In fact, the District Court
referenced Eric’s lack of credibility, violation of Orders, and deplorable behavior
throughout its Decree, and even included a whole subsection concerning his lack
of credibility. Exhibit A, pg. 23, line 9, to pg. 25, line 16.

Based upon the findings set forth in the Decree, the District Court ordered an
approximately equal division of the properties held in the ELN and LSN Trusts. The
District Court’s division of property was accomplished by ordering properties
transferred between the two (2) trusts, and imposing constructive trusts over those
properties wrongfully taken by Eric from the LSN Trust, without specifically
invalidating the trusts. See generally, Exhibit A. The District Court also found that
the ELN and LSN Trusts were sham trusts and essentially Eric’s alter egos (based on
the findings cited above), and that it would have been wholly justified in invalidating
such trusts. Exhibit A, pg. 29, lines 13-18; pg. 44, lines 9-17.

In addition to dividing the parties’ property, the District Court also awarded
Lynita $800,000 for lump sum alimony, $87,775 in child support arrears, and
$144,967 for attorneys’ fees and costs (for atotal 0o $1,032,742). Exhibit A, pgs. 48-
49. The District Court also ordered the ELN Trust to pay the remaining balance owed
to the District Court appointed expert, Larry Bertsch, in the amount of $35,258.
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Exhibit A, pg. 48, lines 19-21. To ensure that Lynita received her alimony, child
support arrears and attorneys’ fees, and that Mr. Bertsch received his remaining fees,
the District Court ordered that such payments be made by the ELN Trust within thirty
(30) days from the date of Decree from monies previously enjoined in David
Stephens, Esq.’s trust account. Exhibit A, pg. 48, linel0, to page 49, line 3. Said
monies were first enjoined by the District Court at a hearing held April 4, 2011, and
remained in said account until sometime shortly after the District Court issued its
Decree on June 3, 2013. To allow the ELN Trust and Eric to access the $1,568,000
and make the aforementioned payments, the District Couft also dissolved the prior
injunction freezing the $1,568,000 in Mr. Stephens’ trust account. Exhibit A, pg. 48,
lines 6-9.

On June 19, 2013, the District Court entered its Order for Payment of Funds
Pursuant to June 3, 2013 Decree of Divorce (“Order for Payment of Funds”),
requiring the $1,032,742 awarded to Lynita, and Mr. Bertsch’s fees, to be paid
immediately, either from Mr. Stephens’ trust account, or from Eric and the ELN Trust
if they had already received the previously enjoined funds from Mr. Stephens.
Exhibit B, pgs. 3-4. Two (2) days later, on June 21, 2013, the ELN Trust filed its
first Petition for Writ of Prohibition (the instant case), challenging the Court’s awards
of support and fees to Lynita, and the order to pay Mr. Bertsch’s outstanding fees.
That same day, the ELN Trust also ﬁied its Emergency Motion Under NRAP 27(e)
for Stay to Issue by 2:00 p.m. on June 21, 2013, Pending Resolution of Writ
Proceedings; NRAP 27(e) Certificate, seeking a temporary stay ofthe District Court’s
Order for Payment of Funds.

On June 21, 2013, the Court entered its Order Directing Answer and Granting
Temporary Stay, requiring Lynita to file an answer within 15 days, and granting a
temporary stay of the Order for Payment of Funds “to allow for receipt and
consideration of any opposition to the stay motion and the answer to the writ

petition.” On June 26, 2013, the ELN Trust filed its second Emergency Motion
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Under NRAP 27(e) for Stay To Issue by 5:00 p.m. on June 27, 2013, Pending
Resolution of Writ Proceedings; NRAP 27(e) Certificate, requesting that the Court
extend its temporary stay to the Decree, which required payment to be made to Lynita
and Mr. Bertsch within 30 days. That same day, the Court entered its Order
Extending Temporary Stay, extending the temporary stay to the Decree.

On July 9, 2013, Lynita filed her Answer to Petition for Writ of Prohibition,
and Oppositions to both of the ELN Trust’s motions for temporary stays. On July 23,
2013, the ELN Trust filed its Reply to Answer to Petition for Writ of Prohibition, and
Reply to Lynita’s Oppositions to the motions for temporary stays. The Court has not
yet issued a ruling on the Petition for Writ of Prohibition, or a further ruling on the
temporary stays following Lynita’s Oppositions. The District Court, however, has
since enjoined the funds awarded to Lynita and Mr. Bertsch.

On July 9,2013, the ELN Trust filed its second Petition for Writ of Prohibition,
Case Number 63545. The ELN Trust’s second petition challenged the award of a
50% interest in the Russell Road Property, and 100% interest in the JB Ramos
Promissory Note, Lindell Property and rental properties held in Banone, LLC, to
Lynita. The total value of these properties was valued at $4,672,349.50 in the Decree.
Exhibit A, pg. 47. These properties also comprised almost the entirety of the income

producing properties awarded to Lynita. Also on July 9, 2013, the ELN Trust filed
its Emergency Motion Under NRAP 27(e) for Stay to Issue by 5:00 p.m. on July 9,
2013, Pending Resolution of Writ Proceedings; NRAP 27(e) Certificate in Case
63545, requesting that the Court temporarily stay the transfer of the aforementioned
properties to Lynita in accordance with the Decree.

On July 10, 2013, the Court issued its Order Directing Supplement to Petition
and Directing Answer in Case 63545, requiring the ELN Trust to file a supplement
to its Petition “demonstrating why extraordinary reliefis warranted at this time, given
that the issues can ultimately be raised on appeal from a final judgment,” and Lynita

to answer within 11 days of the supplement. Exhibit C. On July 15,2013, the ELN
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Trust filed its Supplement to Petition for Writ of Prohibition. On July 19, 2013,
Lynita filed her Opposition to the ELN Trust’s request for a temporary stay. On July
26,2013, Lynita filed her Answer to Petition for Writ of Prohibition.

On July 29, 2013, the ELN Trust filed a request for ruling on its motion for
temporary stay in Case 63545. On July 30, 2013, the Court, “having considered
petitioner’s renewed motion for a stay,” issued its Order Granting Temporary Stay,
temporarily staying the transfer of “the Lindell Property; the rental properties owned
by Banone, LLC; the JB Ramos Trust Note Receivable; and a percentage interest in
the Russell Road Property . . . pending further order of this court.”’ Exhibit D. The
Order Granting Temporary Stay also directed the ELN Trust to file a reply to the
answer to the petition, and on August 12, 2013, the ELN Trust filed its Reply. To
date, the Court has not yet ruled upon the Petition in Case 63545, or made further
orders with regards to the temporary stay.

For the duration of the District Court proceedings, Eric had the benefit and use
of nearly all of the assets and income which were at issue in the parties’ divorce
action, and which Eric maintained were the parties’ community property through the
first six (6) days of trial. Lynita first requested that the District Court order Eric to
provide her with financial support by the filing of her Motion for Temporary Support
on January 21,2011. Exhibit E. In such motion, Lynita informed the District Court
that the sole asset which she had control over and could draw upon for support and
litigation was her Charles Schwab/Capstone Capital investment account. Exhibit E,
pg. 4, lines 16-18. While Lynita was supporting herself from her investment account,
Eric continued to access and utilize all of the income received from the parties’ assets,
many of which were wrongfully taken from Lynita by Eric by misrepresentation
during the parties’ marriage, as specifically found by the District Court. Exhibit E,
pg. 4, line 15; Exhibit A, pgs. 9-20. In response to Lynita’s request to share in the

' The Order Granting Temporary Stay did not indicate whether the Court had considered
Lynita’s Opposition yet, which had been filed only 4 days prior.
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income produced by the parties’ assets, the District Court appointed a forensic
accountant, Larry Bertsch, CPA (“Mr. Bertsch™), to trace and document the parties’
assets, and deferred ruling on Lynita’s request for financial relief. Exhibit F, Order
entered May 25, 2011.

As confirmed by Mr. Bertsch during the divorce trial, in 2009 Eric provided
Lynita with $65,505.94 ($47,922.00 in direct payments, and $17,583.94 in expenses
paid on Lynita’s behalf) in income. In 2010, Eric provided Lynita with a mere
$13,003.58 (which consisted of only $2,300.00 in direct payments, and $10,703.58
in expenses), and in 2011, with a mere $10,763.60 ($5,750.00 in direct payments
which were court ordered attorneys’ fees and mediation fees, and $5,013.60 in
expenses). Shockingly, during the first three (3) months of 2012, Eric gave Lynita
the nominal sum of $244.00 (which was simply a reimbursement for unreimbursed
medical expenses). Exhibit G, Mr. Bertsch’s Notice of Filing Source and Application
of Funds Pursuant to April 10, 2012 Hearing, Exhibit B-1. Meanwhile, during the
same period of time, Eric received personal draws and paid personal expenses totaling
$697,476.29, gave his family members (other than the parties’ children)
$3,900,115.29, gave $407,392.13 to the parties’ children (of which $333,501.46 was
given to the adult children), and spent $1,839,494.79 on his personal residence.
Exhibit G, Exhibit B-1.

At the start of the divorce litigation, Lynita had access to approximately $2
million, but by August 2012 she had less than $200,000 remaining at her disposal;
she was forced to deplete every dollar she had on professional fees (which were
exponentially increased by Eric’s vexatious litigation tactics) and living expenses,
without ever being able to replenish same with the large amount of income that was
received by Eric during the same period of time, much of which belonged to Lynita
and the LSN Trust as found by the District Court. Exhibit H, Defendant’s Post-Trial
Memorandum, pg. 3, lines 9-13; and generally Exhibit A. Specifically, from January
1, 2009 through March 31, 2013, Lynita incurred $1,984,289.55 in expenses for her
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support, for the support of the parties’ minor children, and for the defense of the
divorce litigation through the liquidation of the only cash available to her. Exhibit
I, Mr. Bertsch’s May 1, 2012 Notice of Filing of Income and Expense Reports for
Lynita Nelson, Exhibit A attached thereto. By June 5, 2013, Lynita’s available cash
had dwindled to $19,000, with household bills of $3,130.00, and an outstanding
balance for attorneys’ fees and costs of over $140,000 caused by Eric’s unreasonable
change of positions during the parties’ divorce litigation. Exhibit J, Defendant’s
Motion for Payment of Funds, pg. 6, lines 10-12. Unlike the assets titled in the name
of the ELN Trust, the assets held in the LSN Trust currently are not producing any
income for Lynita. Exhibit K, Mr. Bertsch’s July 5, 2011 Asset Schedule.

As aresult of the temporary stays issued in the instant case, and the temporary
stay issued in Case No. 63545, Lynita continues to be deprived of the great majority
of property and cash awarded to her in the Court’s Decree. Meanwhile, Eric and his
sham trust continue to have complete and unfettered access to the income producing
properties, collecting monthly rental payments that would belong to Lynita but for the
stay. In fact, Eric has even made numerous child support payments from Banone,
LLC, which holds the properties awarded to Lynita in the Decree, essentially paying
Lynita child support with her own money. See Exhibit L.

Unfortunately, Lynita’s continued deprivation of the property awarded to her
has caused her to have to further liquidate the limited property available to her in
order to sustain herself and to continue to meet Eric and his trust on equal footing in
this litigation. On October 30,2013, Lynita sold herresidence of 26 years to continue
meeting obligations during the pendency of the underlying divorce action and the
actions pending in this Court. Exhibit M.

The underlying divorce litigation still has not been concluded. The parties
were scheduled to go to trial on the last remaining issue on December 11, 2013 (the
Wyoming Downs property not disposed of in the Decree). Unfortunately, however,
on December 3, 2013, the ELN Trust filed a Motion to Disqualify Judge Sullivan
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(“Motion to Disqualify”). The District Court cancelled all previously scheduling
hearings while the Motion to Disqualify was pending. On January 10, 2014, the
Honorable Jennifer Togliatti entered an Order Denying Motion to Disqualify Judge
Frank P. Sullivan, ruling that the ELN Trust’s Motion to Disqualify was both
procedurally and substantively deficient. Exhibit N. The previously scheduled trial
concerning Wyoming Downs has since been rescheduled for May 30, 2014.

Finally, it must be pointed out that the District Court has, at numerous hearings
since entry of the Decree, confirmed that it could have set aside the ELN and LSN
Trusts in its Decree based on the evidence presented at trial, but did not do so because
it believed it could accomplish the justice afforded in the Decree without specifically
invalidating the trusts. See, e.g., Exhibit O, Transcript from October 21, 2013
Hearing, pg. 12, lines 19-24, and pg. 17, lines 4-14. The findings in the Decree were
intended to make clear that the trusts could have been invalidated based on the
evidence presented at trial.
1. LEGAL ANALYSIS

The Court should enter a decision regarding the requests for temporary stays
filed on June 21 and 26, 2013, granted temporarily on June 21 and 26, 2013 to allow
for oppositions thereto, and dissolve the Orders granting temporary stays which were
issued. The legal analysis regarding the requests for temporary stays was previously
set forth in Lynita’s Opposition to such requests filed on July 9, 2013, and is not
restated herein. Instead, such Legal Analysis is incorporated herein by reference.

As set forth in the Factual Statement, above, Lynita continues to suffer
irreparable financial harm as a result of the temporary stays entered by this Court.
She has had to sell her home of 26 years in order to maintain her pursuit of justice,
and continue meeting her living expenses.

In addition, and as was set forth throughout Lynita’s Answer to Petition to Writ
of Prohibition filed in this matter, Petitioner does not have a likelihood of success on

the merits of the multiple petitions filed with the Court. This fact has been confirmed
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by the District Court’s numerous indications that the evidence at trial would have
justified setting aside the ELN and LSN Trusts, and that the only reason the District
Court did not set aside such trusts was because it believed it could accomplish the
justice afforded in the Decree without specifically invalidating the trusts.
IV. CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, and in Lynita’s Opposition filed July 9, 2013,
the Court should enter a ruling on the June 21 and 26, 2013 requests for temporary
stays, granted temporarily to allow for an opposition thereto, and dissolve the
temporary stays previously issued.

DATED this {&"day of April, 2014.

THE DICKERSON LAW GROUP

b

Nevatla Bar No. 000945
JOSEF M. KARACSONYT, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 010634

KATHERINE L. PROVOST, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 008414

1745 Village Center Circle

Las Vegas, NV 89134

Telephone: (702) 388-8600

Attorneys for Real Parties in Interest
LYNITA NELSON and the LSN NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that I am an employee of The Dickerson Law Group, and that,

on the ﬁ%wday of April, 2014, I served true and correct copies of MOTION FOR
RULING ON REQUESTS FOR STAYS AND/OR TO DISSOLVE TEMPORARY
STAYS via United States Mail, with postage fully prepaid, to:

RHONDA K. FORSBERG, ESQ .
RHONDA K. FORSBERG, CHARTERED
64 North Pecos Road, Ste. 800
Henderson, Nevada 89074
Attorneys for Real Party in Interest, ERIC NELSON

MARK A. SOLOMON, ESQ.
SOLOMON, DWIGGINS, FREER & MORSE, LTD.
9060 W. Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada §9129
Attorneys for Petitioner

THE HONORABLE FRANK P. SULLIVAN
Eighth Judicial District Court, Department O
Family Court and Services Building
601 N. Pecos Road
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

espondent

LARRY L. BERTSCH
Larry L. Bertsch, CPA & Associates
265 E. Warm S rings Road #104
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Real Party,in Interest

bl g/

An employee of The Dickerson Law Group
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